STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY | VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise. :

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 17, 2016
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 19, 2016

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 04/25/2016 for $120,128.99 and $72.877.92 and
check date 05/06/2016 for $468,350.67. Accounts Payable Checks date 04/29/2016 for $106,224.88
and $14,090.28,

6. For possible action approval of April 2016 Treasurer Report.
1




7. For possible action approval of the Treasurer’s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due Notice for all
Delinquent Parcels.

8. For possible action approve update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including Policy 506 Acting Pay, and by adding Field Training Officer (FTO) Pay to the policy.

9. For possible action approval of special meeting of the Storey County Commissioners scheduled for
Tuesday, May 24, 2016 at 10:00am at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South
B Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

10. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.
B.
C.

D.

oz gr RT™ ~zQ

=

~ O

cHw

F & G CONSTRUCTION LTD. - Contractor / 20 Martin Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)

CLP RESOURCES, INC. ~- General / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (temp employment agency)
CHRISTENSON ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 17201 NE Sacramento St ~ Portland (elect
cont.)

CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - Contractor / 1601 Lewis St ~ Reno
(contractor)

A CAMPAGNA CO., LLC - Contractor / 1993 Whitney Mesa Dr ~ Henderson (contractor)
ATLAS COPCO TOOLS & ASSEMBLY SYS, LLC - Contractor / 7 Campus Dr ~ Parsippany,
NJ (cont.)

OLSON ELECTRICAL SVCS. - Contractor / 3237 E Mustang ~ Sparks (contractor)
GREGORY P LUTH & ASSOC - Professional / 3350 Scott Blvd ~ Santa Clara, CA (engineer)
E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINERY, INC. - General / 126 Mill St ~ Healdsburg, CA
(distributor)

M & M CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4960 Gila-Bend Rd ~ Reno (contractor)

LOTUS AUTOMATION USA - Contractor / 9611 NE 117t Ave ~ Vancouver, WA (industrial
SVCS.)

KAHL COMMERCIAL INTERIORS - Contractor / 2675 Mill Street ~ Reno (installation svcs)

. CALDWELL TANKS, INC. - Contractor / 4000 Tower Road ~ Louisville, KY (steel

construction)

. ASPEN ENGINEERING - Professional / 5474 Longley Lane ~ Reno (engineer)

WESTERN LANDMARK ENT.,, LLC dba Reno Renovations - Contractor / 5401 Longley ~
Reno (contractor)

W&W-AFCO STEEL, LLC - Contractor / 1730 West Reno ~ Oklahoma City, OK (steel
fabricator)

JACOBS'S ENGINEERING GRP, INC. - Professional / 111 Corning Rd ~ Cary, NC (engineer)
OUTSOURCE, LLC - General / 1960 East Grand ~ El Segundo, CA (temp employment
agency)

THE CIDER HOUSE - General / 420 South B Street (restaurant) VC

WESTERN SINGLE PLY ~ Contractor / 1560 Industrial Way ~ Sparks (contractor)

. TOMARCO CONTRACTOR SPECIALTIES - Professional / 4125 Wagon Trail Rd ~ Las Vegas

(consultant)
END OF CONSENT AGENDA

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff




12. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Review of the 3rd Quarter 2016
Unaudited Budget to Actual Review.

13. BOARD COMMENT (No Action -~ No Public Comment)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of and possible action to approve the
transfer of the County’s allocation of authority to issue private activity bonds to the Nevada
Rural Housing Authority in the amount of $208,217.19.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a National Park Service
Historic Preservation Grant award in the amount of $25,088.00 for Training at the 2016 Historic
Preservation Forum and Storey County Courthouse Building Safety improvements and
authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amend the Cooperative Agreement for the Creation of
Nevadaworks by and among 13 counties of the State of Nevada and the Nevadaworks in order
for the agreement to conform to the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014,

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and providing for
other properly related matters.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 5.04 Business Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and
section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business
and liquor licenses, and providing for other properly related matters.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance No. 16-272, an ordinance

extending interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code
by extending through August 31, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will
be in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or
August 31, 2016 whichever comes first,

20. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. LUNA INSTRUMENT CO., LTD - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (machine installation)
B. MMC CONTRACTORS WEST - Contractor / 4591 Longley Lane ~ Reno (plumbing
contractor)




et

C. ACTION DIRECT dba Redpoint Contracting - Contractor / 39506 N. Daisy Mtn ~ Phoenix

(gen. cont.)

D. SYSTEMS AUTOMATED CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 12751 Foothill ~ Sylmar, CA (elect

cont)

E. SID TOOL CO., INC dba MSC Industrial Supply - Contractor / 2300 E. Newlands ~ Fernley
(whse dist)

F. PANASONIC ENVIRONMENTAL SYS & ENG - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (utility
installation)

G. DIVERSIFIED CONSULTING SVCS. - Professional / 6490 S. McCarran ~ Reno (engineering)

H. BEST PLUMBING & HEATING, LLC ~ Contractor / 1240 Greg St. ~ Sparks (plumbing
contractor)
MASTEC NETWORK SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 3443 Airport Rd ~ Sacramento (wireless
contractor)

MOLDMAN SYSTEMS, LLC - Contractor / 4649 Aircenter Circle ~ Reno (machinery
assembly)

K. AFNOVAKHOLDINGS, LLC dba Rounds Bakéry - General / 294 East Moana ~ Reno (whisle

bakery)

L. TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo - General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry)VC

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

22. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact

4




the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_custhtml and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommeodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 8§9440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before May 10, 2016; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 5 C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 27 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department Jocated at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for April 19, 2016
2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
S. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
L] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

s

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney Anne Langer, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin,
Public Works Director Mike Nevin and Director of Security Melanie Keener.

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:00am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 19, 2016

Motion: Approve Agenda for April 19, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for March 15, 2016

Motion: Approve Minutes for March 15, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)




CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 3/30/16 for $4,844.54, date 4/07/16 for
$120,306.05, date 4/07/16 for $72,346.63 and 4/08/19 for $470,416.41. Accounts Payable Checks
date 4/01/16 for $1,242,086.42 (not including check 85107) and date 4/05/16 for $28,828.08.

6. For possible action approval of the Justice Court Quarterly report.

7. For possible action approval of Treasurer report for March 2016

8. Correspondence
A. Storey County Fire Protection District Monthly Report

9. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.

B.

C.
D.

CRTS T o w

czg

FERNTUCKY BBQ ~ General / 4520 Glenwood Drive ~ Fernley (Food Truck)
ANCHOR DOOR & HARDWARE, INC. - Contractor / 335 Edison Way ~ Reno (doors,

frames cont.)
WIRTZ MFG. CO., INC. - Contractor / 1105 24% St ~ Port Huron, MI (equipment setting)

GREG A. BAILOR - Contractor / 405 Sparrow Way ~ Carson City (drywall & painting
contractor)
ENHANCED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 888 Deming ~ Sparks (elect
cont.)
IT"S MY COMMUNITY STORE, LLC - General / 1140 Financial Blvd ~ Reno (office supply
sales)
ENVIRONMENTAL WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 1162 E. Dominguez ~
Carson, CA (equip. svcs.)

. STANLEY ACCESS TECH, LLC - Contractor / 6225 S Valley Blvd ~ Las Vegas (automatic

doors)

CHIKUSHI ELECTRIC CO., LTD. - Contractor / Amagasaki, JAPAN (machine installation)
AQUA TECH CO., LTD. - Contractor / Fukuoka, JAPAN (machine installation)
ENVIROTROL, LLC - Contractor / 114 Landmark Dr., ~ Greensboro, NC (hvac contractor)
CAPSTONE LOGISTICS, LLC - Contractor / 6325 The Corners Pkwy ~ Peachtree Corners,
GA (warehouse services)

. SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI
. SWITCH, LTD - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI

SWITCH RIG, LLC - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:




¢ The TRI draft phase of the roads capital improvement project contracted out to Farr West
Engineering, has been completed. The budget for the next fiscal year includes some of
those high priority projects which will be seen when the CIP is complete and presented.

* The restrooms in the visitors’ area at the north end of Virginia City will be open prior to
this weekend. It is the goal to turn this area into a year round location for public use -
with the exception of outside water in the winter.

Commissioner McGuffey: Is Public Works still planning to install a new roof on the gazebo in the
Highlands?

Mr. Nevin: It is anticipated this will be done this season.

Commissioner McGuffey: There is a controversy regarding Park Fund money. Basically this is
supposed to be used for capital improvements or new stuff - equipment?

County Manager Whitten: May need to look back at the statute that authorizes the County to collect
on that Park Fund. Periodically, the Legislature makes changes. The general concept is, it is not
intended to be used for maintenance. Mr. Whitten will work with the District Attorney to make sure
this is an appropriate use.

Commissioner McGuffey: It was stated that funds “may” come out of Park Fund - not that it “will”.
Mr. McGuffey sees this as a complete teardown, with a completely new and better roof - not a repair,
but a new roof.

Comptrolier Hugh Gallagher:

¢ Regarding the Park Fund issue - 377b is the section that states what can and cannot be
used as an expense. Mr. Gallagher is fairly certain that if it is a replacement, rather than
maintenance, it would be okay. This section will be reviewed. Repairs and on-going
maintenance are not covered by the Park Fund.

» The budget committee met to review the next round of meetings with department heads
to bring the budget down from the deficit expenditures over revenue. Looking at the
Department of Taxation numbers, ad valorem may be a bit lower than before.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

* Special guest, Federal lobbyist and retired-Congressman John Porter, will attend the May
31 Commission meeting, as well as staff meetings, addressing matters of overall Federal
concern and projects specific to Storey County. Mr. Porter is the group the County has
worked through to help with the Public Lands Bill passed in the prior session of Congress.
Mr, Porter is currently working diligently with the County on the sales tax issue, along
with other items.

* Aplanisin the works to relocate the Justice Court into its own facility based on long-
standing verbal agreements with the District Courts that use this facility on an interim
basis. An organizational meeting was held to identify properties and construction sites
that may be viable. One target area looks to be an annex to the Courthouse. It appears
that approximately 2,500 square feet will be needed.

¢ The Ordinance on nuisances was approved at a prior meeting. District Attorney Langer
had training on the Ordinance with Dean Haymore's work group. A written nuisance was

3




submitted regarding a potential “dark skies” violation and is being worked under the new
process.

* Save the date of June 7th, 3PM, for a ribbon-cutting ceremony at the groundbreaking of
work on USA Parkway. It is anticipated that the Governor will attend. Most likely the
Commission meeting will be cancelled for that day.

¢ Mr. Whitten, along with Commissioner McGuffey and Mr. Gallagher, meet tomorrow
with Carson City Mayor Bob Crowell and the Rail Commission Chairman.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:
* The old Miner’s Hall is being cleaned up by the Fraternal Order of the Eagles in
preparation for the State convention the last week of April.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a National Park Service Land
and Water Conservation Grant award in the amount of $30,000.00 for replacement of Playground
Equipment and Improved Amenities at Miners Park and authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign
all associated grant documentation.

Cherie Nevin stated this grant was applied for in May 2015:

¢ The grant is administered by the Nevada State Parks Division.

* The project includes site preparation, demolition of outdated, unsafe playground
equipment, and replacement with appropriate equipment.

 This project will improve walking surfaces around the park, including installation of
playground bark and extending a walkway to the play area.

» Miners Park is used on a daily basis by community children and visitors.

» This grant comes with a match made up of in-kind and cash in the amount of $30,532,
which is spelled out in the application. The total project cost is $60,532.

¢ Anotice to proceed should be ready by May 1+t.

Commissioner McGuffey: Will the work affect the use of the park by the car club.

Ms. Nevin responded only the small area of the playground and some walkway surfaces in that area
will be affected - not the baseball field or gazebo.

Chair McBride: This is a great deal - a federal grant. Of the $400,000 awarded to Nevada, Storey
County received $30,000.

Public Comment:

County Manager Pat Whitten: A huge thank you to Cherie Nevin for not only getting the funds, but
keeping in compliance (on grants}) as well. These grants are critical and take a lot of time, work and
patience in dealing with various agencies. Atsome point, the number of grants that have benefited
the County will be added up and the number will be staggering.

Motion: Approve and accept a National Park Service Land and Water Conservation Grant award in
the amount of $30,000.00 for replacement of Playground Equipment and Improved Amenities at

4




Miners Park and authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of indenture from Union
Pacific Railroad Company amending and restating the grant of a right to construct, reconstruct,
maintain and use the Mustang Ranch underpass where it crosses the railroad right of way.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item.

In 1974 the Southern Pacific Railroad Company issued an indenture to Storey County to build
and maintain an easement across Southern Pacific property where Mustang Road is now
located.

A piece of property has been purchased in the area to be developed.

For the purpose of obtaining Title Insurance that will insure access to the property, a new
indenture must be issued correctly describing the location of Mustang Road. With this new
indenture the purchaser, Skinnell Properties, should be able to obtain Title Insurance.

Union Pacific, the successor to Southern Pacific, has issued a new, re-stated indenture that
has the correct description of Mustang Road as the area entitled to be maintained and used by
Storey County.

The property is actually located in Washoe County. Mr. Loomis understands Storey County
would like to move the obligation to maintain that road to Washoe County. They (Washoe
County) are prepared to do this.

Present today is Shannon Hogan from Holland & Hart, and Dave Solaro from Washoe
County, who are available to answer questions.

Public Comment:

Mr. Whitten: Thank you to our neighbors from Washoe County for attending this meeting. This is a
great example of the relationship between Storey and Washoe counties which has grown stronger
over the last years. When Skinnell Properties came to Storey County it appeared to be a “no-
brainer”. Storey County has wanted to eliminate rights to hold land in other government
jurisdictions for years. Thank you to both Ms. Hogan and Mr. Solaro. This is the next step - there
will be more legal work to follow in this matter.

Mr. Loomis: At some point, the indenture and maintenance will be moved to Washoe County

Motion: Accept the indenture from Union Pacific Railroad Company amending and restating the
grant of a right to construct, reconstruct, maintain and use the Mustang Ranch underpass where it
crosses the Union Pacific right of way, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of check 85107 to the Bucket of Blood Salcon in
the amount of $4,500.00 for parking lot lease.

Mr. Whitten requested continuance of this item to the May 2, 2016 Commission meeting as Chairman
McBride will abstain from voting due to having a pecuniary interest in the Bucket of Blood Saloon.

5




Public Comment;
None

Motion: Continue approval of check 85107 to the Bucket of Blood Saloon in the amount of $4,500.00
for parking lot lease to May 2, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of interlocal agreement
between Storey County, State Public Works Division and Nevada Department of Transportation
regarding replacement of a portion of the water pipeline crossing under US Highway 580 carrying
water from the Marlette Lake Water System to Storey County.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item:

+ This item arose from work done in 1963 under highway 580 resulting in improper fill and
damage to the pipeline.

 Based on an interlocal agreement with the Department of Public Works, NDOT is proposing to
replace the entire pipeline where it crosses under US 580, The Department of Public Works is
actually responsible for maintaining the Marlette Water System.

» Storey County has a maintenance obligation to the mid-point of US 580.

» NDOT is going to do the work, and pay for it, which is contracted to Q&D Construction.

» The Department of Public Works will inspect and be responsible for providing engineering
services.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

 This project has been discussed at prior Commission meetings.

» The project is at the point for approval of the interlocal agreement. This agreement is just for
that portion mentioned.

« Once work is complete, the Marlette System and Storey County accept the responsibility from
that point forward per the existing agreement for the maintenance of the new pipeline.

* The pipeline work will not start until these agreements are in place and an occupancy permit
from the Federal government is received - probably in June.

» Thank you to Mr. Loomis and the District Attorney’s staff for getting this item done quickly,

Chair McBride: This pipeline is very important to this community, being the only source of water.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve interlocal agreement between Storey County, State Public Works Division and
Nevada Department of Transportation regarding replacement of a portion of the water pipeline
crossing under US Highway 580 carrying water from the Marlette Lake Water System to Storey
County and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consider appointment of Board Member to attend Supreme
Court settlement conference in the Malfitano case.

6




Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item:

» The District Court decided the Malfitano case in favor of the County.

* As a result of this decision, the petitioners filed a case in the Nevada Supreme Court. A
possibility of settlement was indicated in the appeal.

* The Supreme Court sent the case to its settlement program. A settlement conference is set for
May 19th,

» All parties have been directed to be present.

» The Board is requested to appoint a single member of the Board of County Commissioners to
participate in the settlement conference. The County Manager and the District Attorney’s
Office will also be in attendance.

* The settlement Judge has been advised that because the full Board will not be present, any
proposed settlement will have to be brought back to the full Board for possible approval.

Chairman McBride volunteered to fill the appointment and attend the settlement conference.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve appointment of Marshall McBride to attend Supreme Court settlement conference
in the Malfitano case, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the second reading of the Café Del Rio’s (Brian
Shaw) request for a Cabaret license as an addendum to the current license.

Sheriff Antinoro presented this item:
« This is an addendum to a long-standing, existing license in good standing.
« Approval is recommended so that Café Del Rio can provide live entertainment.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the second reading of the Café Del Rio’s (Brian Shaw) request for a Cabaret license
as an addendum to the current license, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

19. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BROTHEL LICENSE BOARD

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Work card appeal/revocation hearing for Dina Maria
Petrone, Sade M. Flatts and Michelle Tanguay.

Jennifer Barnes and Tara Adkins presented this item and stated that only Dina Maria Petrone is being
represented. Ms. Flatts and Ms. Tanguay are not present. The work card for Michelle Tanguay has
been granted by the Sheriff.




Ms. Adkins discussed the application, records and background of Dina Maria Petrone. Dina started
working in 2011 and has had three work cards. On the last work card, Dina included more information
than on the first two.

Chair McBride questioned background information regarding applicant Petrone.

Sheriff Antinoro reviewed Ms. Petrone’s current application. The Sheriff said he is leaving the
decision up to the Board. The Sheriff's only concern is Ms. Petrone’s history. There has been nothing
in the last five years.

Commissioner McGuffey asked about background information on the previous applications
submitted by Ms. Petrone.

Mr. Whitten asked Ms. Petrone to clarify information in the application. Ms. Adkins and Ms. Petrone
responded.

Jennifer Barnes indicated there was nothing in Ms. Petrone’s background that would not allow Ms.
Petrone to obtain a work card.

Chair McBride said the situation with Ms. Petrone’s application was the non-disclosure of issues. This
has been a concern in the past with other applicant/employees. Chairman McBride recommended
reinstating Ms. Petrone’s work card provided nothing happens in the future.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the reinstatement of work card for Dina Maria Petrone, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Chairman McBride, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Sheriff Antinoro abstained from vote on this item.

County Manager Whitten addressed Ms. Barnes and Ms. Adkins, saying Mr. Whitten would like to
discuss with someone the issue of “no shows” when the matter has been agendized.

Ms. Barnes responded that on this item, Sheriff Antinoro approved Ms. Tanquay’s work card and Ms.
Barnes also indicated that Sade M. Flatts could not be represented at this time.

Based on this comment, Mr. Whitten said he would not be agreeable in the near future to have an item
placed on an agenda regarding an appeal by Ms. Flatts. There is a certain amount of work to placing
these items on an agenda that needs to be considered.

21. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
22. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

8




3

L OFEEmg N0

—

radien

© z £

s<a 83 ® o

<

Y.

Z.

PHO REAL, LLC - General / 4047 Zermatt Road ~ Tahoe City, CA (Food Truck)

PROCLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC. dba PCM Bldg Svcs - Contractor / 4587 Longley ~
Reno (cleaning)

PAMPA TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 3 Waters Park Drive ~ San Mateo, CA (IT
Contractor)

TAIKISHA, LTD - Contractor / Tokyo, JAPAN (Equipment Installation Contractor)

SATO CO., LTD - Contractor / Kyoto, JAPAN (Equipment Installation Contractor)

ITRUST JAPAN - Contractor / Osaka, JAPAN (Equipment Installation Contractor)

MIRAPRO CO., LTD - Contractor / Yamanashi, JAPAN (Equipment Installation

Contractor)

DAIKOU KOUKI CO., LTD. ~ Contractor / Kyoto, JAPAN (Equipment Installation
Contractor)

AIR PRODUCTS & CHEMICALS, INC., -- Contractor / 7201 Hamilton Blvd., ~ Allentown,
PA (Fuel Supplier)

LEADING 2 LEAN, LLC - Contractor / 88 Deer Pass Road ~ Wellington, NV (IT Contractor)

RISHA ENGINEERING GROUP - Professional / 410 Cypress Ave ~ Burbank, CA
(Engineering)

NASON’S SCANNING SERVICE, LLC - Contractor / 1187 Rancho Mirage ~ Sparks
(Concrete Scanning)

FACILITIES PROTECTION SYSTEMS - Contractor / 1150 W. Central ~ Brea, CA (Fire
Protection)

BERGELECTRIC CORP., -- Contractor / 5650 W. Centinela ~ Los Angeles (Flectrical
Contractor)

LAWSON DRAYAGE, INC,, -- Transportation / 3402 Enterprise ~ Hayward, CA
(Transportation, Rigging)

K B L REINFORCING, INC., -- Contractor / 4660 S. Eastern ~ Las Vegas (Rebar Installer)

TRICOM NETWORKS, INC. - Contractor / 24335 Prielipp Road ~ Wildomar, CA (Telecom
Contractor)

ENDRESS & HAUSER, INC. - Contractor / 2350 Endress Place ~ Greenwood, IN
(Instrumentation Cont.)

SANDEX, INC. ~ Contractor / 4768 West 1400 South ~ Cedar City, UT (Drill & Blasting
Contractor)

J.E. PEEBLES FIREARMS INSTRUCTOR - General / 349 Occidental Dr. ~ Dayton (CCW
Instructor) '

AMES CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1705 Peru Dr. (Contractor) TRI

TURNING POINT, INC. - General / 55 North C Street (Evaluation Services) VC

STONCOR GROUP, INC. - Contractor / 1000 East Park Ave ~ Maple Shade, NJ (Epoxy
Flooring Cont.)

NATIONAL HIGH VOLTAGE SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 4530 Winter Oak ~
Antelope, CA (Electrical Inspection Service)

UHK ENTERFPRISES dba Snap-On Tools - General / 7435 Indian Springs ~ Sparks (Mobile
Tool Sales)

DIVIDE FITNESS, INC. - General / 800 South C Street (Fitness Facility) VC

AA.  BINUTRACEUTICALS -~ General / 625 Waltham Way TRI




County Manager Whitten, on behalf of the Community Development Department, recommended
approval of all items. Note, there are five companies from Japan. This can be called a “culture
shift” in Storey County and the region, both of which are getting exposure.

Mr. Whitten discussed BiNutraceuticals. This company grinds materials such as bark, twigs, roots
and into spices and powders in an USDA approved, sterile environment. Mr. Whitten is also very
excited about Divide Fitness. There was a great turnout at the recent open house. This company has
a tremendous investment in the community and county, and provides state of the art equipment.

Motion: Approve items A. through Z., and AA., Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=2)

Public Comment;
None

23. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Recently Chris Thompson had a statement on the Highlands
blog, saying that Lance Gilman and TRI had done a study for $19,000 of the various ways to provide
tax rebates or relief to the citizens of Storey County. What were the results and where is this report?
Ms, Barde would like a copy.

Commissioner McGuffey: Did not see this statement.

Chairman McBride: The statement was on the blog, but Chair McBride has not seen the report. It may
have been done, but it has not been seen.

Mr. Whitten: To the best of his knowledge, staff has not seen this report.

Ms. Barde: If Mr. Gilman is a Commissioner and there is a report out there, isn't that part of public
record?

Chairman McBride: Not if it was done privately. The County did not pay for it.

Ms. Barde: Chris made the statement that Lance had commissioned the report due to his commitment
to try to get money back to the citizens.

Chairman McBride: Cannot answer this question because no one (here) knows.

Ms. Barde thought the Board would have the report, given it was done by a Commissioner for the
County.

Chairman McBride: Does not know if it was done for the County or if it was done as a private entity.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: The County has not paid for anything nor has anything been seen,
There was a rumor that someone out there was looking at some tax issues. It would have had to

10




come to the Board first to be paid for. It has to be a private document - Mr. Gallagher does not who,
and the County does not have a copy.

Ms. Barde: If this becomes the basis of making a decision for a tax rollback, or anything like that,
does that become public?

Mr. Whitten: The answer is yes. Unless advised otherwise by counsel, the minute the County is in
possession of that document it becomes public record.

District Attorney Anne Langer: At this time, it appears that Mr. Gilman may have a document

having to do with TRI. It sounds like it was not “commissioner” but “commissioned” through
private industry. It sounds like it is a private document at this time.

24. ADJOURNMENT

The Chair adjourned the meeting at 11:02am

Respectfully Submitted,

Vanessa Stephens J lerk Treasurer

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 04/25/2016 for $120,128.99 and
$72,877.92 and check date 05/06/2016 for $468,350.67. Accounts Payable Checks date
04/29/2016 for $106,224.88 and $14,090.28.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __ NA  Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No. F




HAINSTHEAL

HATIOLLINOD

HENCISS THWOD HENQISS INWNOD NYWHIVHD

ISISUOTSSTHNO] JO PARCH Ajunol Asxoas suyj Agq pasoxddy

66°BZT 021 TSI ICIAMPST TRIOL
00" i8dLAH 103 IDISURLY, I3sn [eI0L
Junouy @aded # pea  # aa

/% dug  /xyooyd

9T/S2/70 i23BQ ¥oOUD Iojompag :adAL [roxded
TYNI S azysthed doayp S0PT9T 9T/9E/%0 :uny
4 abegq WHLSAE TTIOHAYd XINNOD AMNOLS

V0TS0dd :3dey




T¥NIA
z abeg

HANCISS IHWOD

HHANSYIUL

FITIOLLANOD

UEINCISS INWGD

NYNHIVHD

PSISUCTSSTUMGD JO pIeod Ajunod Asxolg syl Aq pasoaddy

E6 LLB'ZL

00-

FJUNOWY

9T/Se/%0 93eq ooy

a23s831B3g yoayn
WALSAS TI0HAYE ALNOGOD AHHOLS

PE0ayD aolonpad [el0

184149 10F I9SURI] Iasn TE30L

saled 4 peg # aa
/& dua /x09yd

aojonpag :adAl Troxked

0E:8T 9T $1/98/%v0 ‘UMY
VOISC0Hd -aday



HTANSVHIL

YATIOULINOD

YENOLSSTHRHROD HUNOISSTHNOD NVIWHIVHD

rsIBUCTSSTWWG]) Fo paveg Ajunc) Asicas syj Aq poacaddy

L9 0SE'89% PPOSATYS T TRIOL
£8° 08BV 'SE 1I032Nps ©3 IaIFURLI IS5 TEIO0L
9% 9E8 ‘6 i91Td dag ITd uec pasix spsg ssdordwy TeIOL
SL"ES¥'SST t31gedsg jpexTd ssdorvdws R3O
28°Z10°1T isyoeyy safoTdwd TeIOL
SETFLYETT PEYOSYD JI0300pad TRIOL
99260 ¢€S iSdIlIR I0J I@jsueai A9S[) TEIOL
Junouy 99ied  § PRA # ad

/# dwm  /yosyy

6 8 4L 9 g ¥ € g 1 ‘ednoxn rroadeq
9T/10/50 :93ed PUI-POTIAd 91/90/50 i93ed XoaUuD aenbay adAL TTOIARd

A¥YNIWI'TIEL Zaastbon ypayd 00FTOIST 9T/£0/50 :unyg
g abed WALSAS TICHAYd ALNNQD AHYOLS ¥oTS0dd :adey




1

¥S St
<8 '59¢%

00" LZE

0P 6eT

00 000°T
0089

06" %S

ZLTEE

TL L¥O'T

¥L 296

£8°80T

6T ¥LT

00°§LE'T

6¥ ' ¥6

00°0TE
LY 89L
TELOL
ADIHD

abeg

¥S'E0T
¥y 19T
06°2

68°0¢€
£8°¢T

SEBL
6T"ST
ST 0€
ST LG
£¥'c

¥S'eLe
e 59¢

Q0 LT
00° 00K

L1 0e
€2 ETT

00700071

00" ¥E
(LIRS 54

06" ¥s
LT

16" 0LT
087948

S2°521T
0L 8LEZ
617854

€87°80T
Qe LE
6L°09
69" 9%
25701
25701
LL"8
05701
00°5LE°T

i1°5¢2
8E"69

co'oty

L¥*89L

LMNOWY

8679L
a6v9L
86¥9L
86¥9L
g6F9L
86%94
86%9L
86¥oL
BEPIL
86T IL

SEGIL

LETSL

95554
EEEER

Z¥594
Z¥539L

TZS9L

82491
£8994

28994

61594

45994
9599L

LESOL
1859L
T859L

¥S59L

g6¥9L
96¥9L
g6P9L
0859L
085924
08594
0859¢

128384

|LGSL
8LS9L

LLS9L

S0994

HFSNTAL

91/62/%
9L/68/ ¥
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
AL/6E/ D
9T/62/%
91/62/%
s1/6e/%
31/62/%
31/62/%

3T/6E/¥%
ST/GE/TV

S1/62/%
ST/68/%

9T/6Z/ ¥
91/862/%

IT/6E/%

9T/62/ %
9T/62/%

9T/68/%
91/6E/F

9T/6E/ ¥
9T/6E/ Y

9L/62/%
ST/62/%
91/62/%

9T/6e/¥
9T/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
9L/6E/ T
9T/62/%
9T/6T/%
9T1/62/¥
91/68/%

S1/6T/¥
91/62/%

IL/628/%

91/6e/%

ZL¥a

IT/6GE/ T

# o/d

HOLOHLNI THNS -NVA ZAIL
JOLDELNT NYA FdId

dOLS TIIM -FLLM ¥4
BEILTIA-AD0LS

g10d -868558LM
SHALTIA-AD0LS
HALTIL-M0Td

HWYL H000-506Zcdd

Sd¥Td dOW-906ZEUd

HONY NIM -906ZTdd

TASANESTA LNTWHSINIYD

LI EATYA-906Z€HA

9T0Z '0Z-4 TI™AY

STEW NI¥d SNNIS
INYIDHEANISIO "NIION4NEI

ATAUNS HWOONIT NIVMIAIYA

YNNALNV-TL 2L SL #LY
LNAIOW / YNNE LNY

ONITIId SWH
H2IA¥ES HINIYFANODETAL

BEBYEOTOOO# " IODV
HALNHD dOLISIA d0d S00d

T¥OISAHd ACTAWIENd ITLIHM
TYOISAHd YWSES
FINDISAHd JIVID LS

ZSGEE0TOCTH ~IIDY
HD

dCHS

dCHS

AUCNOYT ¥4 IS
LEANNYT L 18
AYANOVT 2L LS
AdANOYT TL LS
eieio: -4

SUII4dNS SWA
SAITdANS SHWA

YIVdEE SL ENISNE

SEHITdNS NOILOATH

NOILAT¥DSHA HDIOANI

YILETHAY ADFHD
ALNOOD AHHUOLS

SL¥¥d OLOY ALID T¥LIAYD
TYNOISSHIONd ¥ SsaNIsSng

ONI d¥Id 8.NOLINE

SIMIET LLODE 'T1Idd¥ng

ONTI ANVAWOD dIN¥VL 04

(LIWOD) SINIDHE 40 qUvod

SHSTHIHALNE A¥AEE
aLT LNIWIOTIAIT SAY

IA¥ES FDONHEAENODATIL L3IV

ONI DNTHSITANd ¥IdWodw

STENTIEM NV HIMVEH 28V

dfl ENVdOHd SYOIYENY

ONI 008TIY

QLT 'HIZNEADYW 'HOSTITIY

ONI NON S¥DHIV

ONI dIVddd HOLVIAVY T1-Y
0D NINAIY 'V

HOUNHA

9T/L2 /%0
STETED

ILesg
SLESS

rLESSs

£LESE

ZLESE

TLESE

oLESE
69¢£58

89¢E58

LI9ESE

99¢£48

S9£58

¥o£S8

£9gse

Z9Ese
T9¢€S8
09€£s8
HITHNN
EDHHD

i @jeg unyg
o jaoday



4

60° %2
00" 0E6

00-sg9

00"ZEP'T
St E5L
00°SLE°T

LY ED

SB 6%

007011
gZ2'89
007008

&3 €81

66°LE
56 "BST
00" FLS

LA 141

LT %9%' ¥

907058

IYLOL
HEHD

abeg

60"
00 0¢€6

g0 0%
00" SLZ
00°0%1
007081

00°ZEP'T
St ESL
00 SLE'T

¥¥UeZ
00"92
£E0°%T

SE° 6T
S6°6%
S6°6¥

00701t
S 89
00009

o
627 E8T

66°LT
G6°8ST
00" ¥LS

g0°0¢
o' 0%
S978T
€07 0¥
95" LBT
60°09¢
6'0%
T0°0%

PE SLT'T
PETS6E’T
LETELOT
Q05’618
Z5'LeZ
6%° S

8T 21

LNAOWY

L1594
FOS94

€0s9L
£059L
6859L
68594

Z0s9L
6059L
88594

10994
T0s94
T0G9L

6ESOL
98494
98G9L

LBSOL
FES9L
TT99L

£¥59L
£95994

e¥59L
LSS9L
EiAEIA

SES9L
0093L
9T29L
8%S9L
oossL
¥BSE2L
PBESL
Los9L

66794
6679L
66F%9L
66¥%9L

86%3L
g6v9L
26994

#SHNVHL

IT/ET/¥
91/62/%

T/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
9T/68/¥%

9L/62/ ¥
9T/6E/%
9T/6E/%

9T/6T/%
9T/8E/%
9L/6E/ ¥

9T/62/%
9T/6T/%
9T/62/%

9T/ée/¥
9T/62/%
9T1/68/%

9a1/EC/%
aT/ée/%

91/62/%
9T/6ET/ %
ST/6T/¥

91/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/¥
9T/62/F
ST/62/%
S1/6e/%
S1/62/%
91/62/%

91/62/%
91/6E/¥
9T/62/%
9T/62/¥

9T/6E/P
91/6%/%
9T/62/%

aiva

# o/a

DOTE PNINIVEL O HINON TI¥T
TED “TYA YD -TIIH TI0D

dr¥ddyd -906ccydd
HATTIOYINGD dOCA-PGZS2Md
OTATHSANIM ¥4 JHYOdSNVEL
QTITHSAONTM T4 LUOdSNWHL

AEOM FLHAINCD-dOHS MEN
SEHTZZON -DA
ONIIHOTT Zeld

SANYT-AD0LE
ASY LT1d"E -PRETISHJ
JEEYS ADCT TINY -L5529u4

ADTANES ¥ELYM JOOMADOT
qILVM SL IS
YdLVM ¥L LS

SHNT dWdW
NOLIWOITENd D4dT S10E
S0TH TTAMOH ONM¥d TIYLSNI

dISUNESIE LNIWHSINEYD
Jas¥ENESIU INAWHSINGYD

HSAYATE LIA JdI¥ LSHTJd
ALNS ¥LSA ¥04d SHEITIANS HA
ALIYINOD-LXT dOHS

TO00-S600Z9TLE TUVIAIIY
YI¥d d¥dl

a¥dI &I

NALLIHM d TO8S-t€¥¥ SLL
a¥9dI 0LEZE-9E9-GLL
TO000-LT9LG0ZV6 LODYW
TO000-Z0BLEQZY6 LODY
LOdSLOH IJIM TI¥4Y

Sa ¥ DUy -Md
I8d ¥ PEY-M4
150 ¥ 23FdU-M4

T8A-HOA

SYELTIA ADOLS
HMOYH AACE-TLE
dIEM df -NvA HEIdA

NOTLIJI¥DSAI HOTOANI

91/68/v BILSIDHEY ADEHD

ALNNOD AHIEOLS

IHYNLE T NENEAYE
47 SUDTIHNEHS

ONI SASTUdYILNT NOSNDUAI

ONI 889D LSWd
A¥d EINWIL ‘HAHYS
SLO0Nd0¥d NOTIIYOINAL ONIMA

LR INDH FTIIHEA ADNISUIHE

ONTI ATdd0S OLOY LIOITIE

QNI ¥SN SHOIWA
HEHIENEN ZTYSETOHM 0DLIS0D
(JA) ITIINOEHD MDOLSHOD

NOILONALSNCD SNITICD

AHN 30 HIIA¥IS NOILDETIOD
Z 'ON NOILVIOd¥0D SYINID
AdAng AEYLINYS TYHLINED

LNIQIEEINED

dIHSYANLEYd O2TIAD

ONI CD TIC AETIVA NOSHVD

HOCNIA

ST/LE/%0 ¢

F6E£58

£6€58

[A33°1:]

T6ESE

Q6E58

6BESE

BBESE

LBESE

SBESR

9BESE

¥8€98

t8EEg

[4: R4

t8¢98

08€sg

6LESS

BLEGS

LLESE

HHHWNN
MDHHD
?3eq uny

STETdd oN 3xodsy



L¥r2st

SZ°E6L

6L°28

ZLEO0L'T

Te 0¢E
G0 SET
96ET
L87L0S

TL'9ES'T

T1T°LOE
9T £6E

S¥°LSY

00°L

S5TSP0S

00" ovE

007988

g8 ¥s

E0'TLE'T

LS ES

TYLOL
ADEHD

< afed

Ly 281
Q0rEBS
SZTITIT
6L° 28
807 4L2%
847982
LE'FLE
9T EEE'T
£9°16¢
T6°0E
00"SET
96°¢T
L9 LOS
¥e'et
9T'¥5T
vk
61" 8BES
IT LoT
T €6¢E
LB’ TVT
85 ¥12
0oL
Z1'BEE'E
EFTLOT E
Q08¢
0059
007 St
00" §¢
00°S¢t
00" S5¢
007 00T
00 o09¢g
00" s5ge
88" %S
¥0° 089
66°169
LS ES
LNOOWY

¥E59L

£E659L
£653L

0Ts9L
87994
81994
81954
o¥s9L
8T99L
055924
PI99L
g0&9L
9Z&oHL
LOS9L
LOgoL
LOSSL
LOSSL
TS5%L
2653L

FLSOL
¥LS9L

ET99L

T659L
T699L

ZT99L
2059L
9059L
9059L
9065L
90594
9089L

5BS9L
SBS9L

ELSOL

0534
s0%9L

06592

HSNVHL

ST/62/%

91/62/%
ST/6Z/¥%

9T/62/¥
91/62/%
91/68/%
9T/62/%
9L/6e/%
9T/62/%
aT/6E/%
9L/68/%
9T/628/%
91/62/¥%
91/62/%
S1/62/%
9T/62/%
ST/62/%
91/62/¥%
91/62/%

SE/62/%
ST/6E/T

9T1/6E/ 7

9T/62/%
9T/6E/ P

9T/6E/¥
9T/62/¥
91/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/6Z/%
9T/62/%
9T/6E/%

91/68/%
9T/6E8/F

S1/62/%

91/62/%
ST/62/%

9T/6Z/%

ALYa

9tT/6e/%

SHITIANS SWH

qdd
ddd

L6S60T ¥L-TM

SHAVEDIN Od dEAWOOEY
ALNOCD a¥nd HDLIMS
2102 HDIJA40

HILNTEd qEvD

IANAT ST0220 Odd d900v
SHITAdNS dADIAL40

SHOT TINNNY DDI
SHAL'SONIEO SL-F

SHSOH ~nO1d

dITITA JHEM-AIYE M1
NIYILE-TXE 40HS
STYTYHLYH -IXE JOHS
BHYCI FLIAONOD d0d UOOM
LYLEZT-8TIEET WTA-DWI
SHIT4dNS SKWH

2AYdE AVID/NLLAD IIYHASY
STYIYALYIN LXH-dOHS

AIOUL OWD HIVId IJWAXH

HOHEYT INVID rTHENS
GOHVT LNWIS fENd

TOYINQD I8Fd RTHID
JDLH

INYTd YHL¥M

TICL §OT

AYES WWCO-I8 ) ZLE
HIND ANOD DA

HO

8X S¥
SX 8%

SUOLOW -HD

IS0 ¥ DAY -MT
150 ¥ DIU-MT

qA0053Fd DED/AVdEITT

NOIIAT¥EDSEI TDI0ANI

AELSIDEY ASEHD
ALNOQD AFAGLS

o1 SINIAT HNTE AINDIT

ONI LSISSY-F4IT

SNOS ¥ SIL¥NS N 1

O 4490

TT ADENOS T.LI

HYOLE ALINNWKWOD AW SLI
TIDNNODHIOD TYNOILYNIAINI
AMES TYIMLSNANIT DITNVIAKH

2LE SONILLIA % dS0H

HOIAYHS LITEYD LOd3d HWOH
DNIDYWIOUDINW IdESET HOIH

NITHDS XUNHH

LT ATdENS LSNOD ATddOns dH

NY3Q ' TIOWAYH

aril ‘IVH

§8d ¥ HLIWYIL NISVE LVdIy¥9

HOL ‘' ZAHASHYED

GIDNIVED

DT ADYANE SYHATL

FOANIEA

ST/LE/¥G
STETHd

£I¥E8

[N A1)

TT%S8

01¥s8

60%498
80%S8
LOVS8
a0¥s8

S0¥58

j240 41
£0v58

Z0vsSg

T0%58

00%58

66£58

86€£58

LEESE

26€48

SGESE

THHWON

ADEHD
Poeleg uny
roN 1xedsy



00"86

0E 19T
66 8F0T
Q0 %€
00°00T
86 0092
G0 SLY
00652
a0 19

00 L6
SE°ZTT
PPO¥EE’E
00°9tT
007 L0
00" E8S

LS80S

22921

0002
82 EET

00 0S07ET

00°s8g’'z

TELOL
ADdEHD

v afeg

00'8EY
o0 8L
g0 54
0058
0052
0088
0g€" 137
66 °8%0°T
00 9g
00"00T
86°009°2
00" SLY
00'6SE
0CT 1S
00" LeT
SEEIT
i I3
00797
00" L09
00" €85
S0°9%
¥LT09
¥9° 902
LB LE
81°0¢
S8°T12
¥ sB
0L 02
PEPOTL
[
40708
BZ'E€CT

00°0485'8
007 00%5°%

00°SBZ’Z

LNOCHY

¥093L
¥0%935L
AR
10854
ZIS94
023l
£TS9L
¥9594
£9594
0ES9L
11894
LESoL
£098L
LESSL
FFSoL
62594
9TS9L
€959L
96594
19589L
9099L
PES9L
FES9L
FESHL
CESOL
S669L
66594
6L55L
6L58L
6459L
09994
6T39L

8GG9L
8559L

FEEETA

#ENVHL

9T/62/%
ST/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/6¢/%
9T/62/¥
91/6E/¥%
9T/62/%
aT/ee/lw
31/62/¥%
91/62/%
91/62/F%
9L/68/%
a1/6e/¥%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/6E/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/¥
9T/6E/%
9T/62/%
9L/6E/%
ST/EE/%
9T/EE/F
9T/6T/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
91/68/%
9L/62/F
91/62/%
ST/6E/¥
9T/62/%
91/68/%

9L/62/%
9T/62/%

31/62/%
FIVA

91/68/%

# 0/3

NOLLYITYLSNI WAVI¥ DINvd
HONVATIHEEG 008 WaVIV JINVE
J 8 ZLE WHYTIV JINVA
LDHISNI d¥Id TYINNY
DHNIYOLINOW AINC-ddY
FL¥Adn dWia

INTICd ‘IIQWHIVdS

SUHLLAT NOILYNOO AINL HLY
$10Z '0Z-L II4AY

910% ‘0T TId4Av

S NIDTH 3EI0L° AT0d-d4010¥A
HONVNAINIVI 104D

TYOISAHd HOLIV

SNDIS-DOLN

SHIMOL 99Z-9T dSYD

A0 AW

HSWHOHENG JELYM HOUYW

9L0E ‘0T-L TIEdY

SONTLLIS Stl

SEITA4ANS FDITHA0
HONAJIAZ - SEX0g IDVEOLS
HY1 27I¥D ' Sad "Hddvd
SMOILV2ILSEANT 304 SUAQ
qa4vd

2HIT440S d0I1430

$T0ZR4 - 1ddns

INTHASUNTWI TY
INTWASYNTNT TH
INIWEASANTWNI 3
910& ‘0g-4 fIddv
0d NILSNY AINM

LEOANH HOOLSHOD 40 ALSYL
ANYE ILNAAE HTIHD

9102 AYW 04 WANIV.IIY

NOILATHDSHT HDIQANI

JALSIDHE ADHHD
ALNAGD AHJYOLS

ONI SADIAIT NOILOHLO¥WL
HOLYdSIA ALTAOIHd TI¥DIAANW
NYTdHEMCd

(¥dT1) TIYEHOTD SEMOE AHNLIIA
a OTHPNY 'INIYLEd

JHYD dTIHD FLOYUYD ¥ SYEd
SHIYS INEWAINDA SNAMO

IS ® SDIHAVHD ZAIS HHIL NO
HINED HITYEH TYNOIIWANDIDO
o7 DNILINSNOD NOLYNON
AYAINT MIVTHEEWNYHD NYWION
AATN NIAAN

SANNOHEY ¥ HATH NIWAY AEN
AETIVLEY HONVY ONVLSOK
LD) IS AONISUENE T¥d IO INNW

VAVWYL ‘N¥OIH

NI SNOILOTOS HIIJIAO0 OULHW

ADVD C AALANHOW
HOFSOW NOISNWYH AVIDWA

INI SETHOLWHOBRYT WKW

OTT SINHAH HOTE aInbIt

HOaNHAA

9T/ LE/WO
STETEd

PEVS8
EEPSE
fAR 4731
TEPSSE
0E¥S8
62¥S8
2Evs8
LC¥SB
9ZFS8
STHS8
44411
[ X441
(4441
TEPSE
oZFse

6TFSE

BI¥S8

LIbS8
Eanact:)

ST¥58

PIPS8

HAgWON
ADIHD
io93eg uny
toN 3xodasy



00" sS4
95°1%0°1
05°0T

8876ELT

00’0t
P67 00T

00" 1e6°Z

00" 562
00°6¥%T
00°T€2'T

TTELOL
ADEHD

g abed

S¥'8L
L9 LL
e Z9g
LZE0T
08 €9
967 €L
88798
0E"BY9
96°00¢
s0'e8
09°60T
Y& ¥98

0054
95 TH0 T
Q5'0T
G5 %Z
0g°z
L€°8
10"
¥o-
05"
L8
£8°€
£2'6

PO E
6y €
£E”
00°0T
¥6° 00T
§%°LE
TS 0¥S'E
¥0'ESE
00962
00'6e¥1
Q0'€8%

INAOWY

SL99L
SL99L
SLG9L
SLS9L
SLG9L
SLS9L
SLS9L
SL59L
SLS9L
SLSIL
SLIOL
SLESL

£5534

LTIS99L

99994

86594
8653L
8659L
8669L
86594
86594
B6SG9L
86594
BESOL
86594
86594
B6G9L
B6GIL
86594
2659¢
BEEOL
BES9L
86594
86594
86954
8659L
BBSGIL
86594

0T29L
STgSL
PTS9L
¥IS9L
PTS9L
T¥SSL
SES9L

¥099L

#SNVEL

9T/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
a1/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
9aL/8E/%
91/62/%
91/6Z/¥%
91/62/%
9T/62/F
91/62/%

91/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%

91/62/%
9T/6E/ %
SL/6T/¥
9T/6E/%
9T/62/%
9L/6E/%
9T/62/%
9T/6E/%
9T/6E/ ¥
9T/68/¥%
91/62/%
91/62/¥%
81/62/¥%
ST/62/¥%
S1/62/%
ST/62/¥%
9T/62/¥%
91/62/%
ST/62/¥%
9T/6E/%
ST/62/%
IT/GE/ T
9T/ee /¥

ST/6E/ T
9T/6T/%
9T/62/ %
S1/62/%
$1/62/%
9T/6T/ Y
9T/62/¥
SL/6T/%

ELYa

9T/6T/¥%

# o/d

05 1§ D § €0¢

¥ad 18 2 S 10€

Z/t dOHS d¥ TICL 001
20149 Q¥ TIOL OTT

5078 Q¥ TIOL GET
dOLSLSEY LS D N I8¢
LIND I8 O N SPT

SHY UM LHOIYMI¥YD ZI9¢
¥ IS AWM NOANYD TE¥
ASHAWNd LHOTAMIAYD 0T9Z
IHDIT LS SHINOISSIWWOD OF
SLHOIT 1S ALID YINIDWIA

9T08 TYMANTY
THOEd 9
2T0Z ‘0Z-L IL¥AY

DI0A

ONINNYI

LI

HELNED YOINIS aMdT
SMACM DITEnd

(o) @8I
HANOISSIHWOD

vd

HOLIYASIG TYHLNED
dOSSEASSY
INIRNdOTIAAT ALINOWHOD
(24) HEIA
TOOMADOT,/AATd
NIWJY /I TTONLIHOD
AITHIHS

an

AdTHIHS

SYMOM DITENd

(DA) TYIA
HITIODTY

A¥ITD

I¥L/AITSA

TIATA- ALTNORHOD

SONOWH ¥ NIAEN ST/ET1/0T
DIMYW AV¥d ARLHONVI HIHIYVA
HIVdHA-066TIMd

NOHTTY "EONVIVE -865594d
EDIANAS qYOU-P0LMI
DNINIVEL YZOaNHK

ALIAYS HSAd LNOWA YANIAYH

HOILITYISNT WYYTY JINVd

NOTLAI¥EDHSHT HDIOANI

HALSIDAE AIFTHD
ALN(OD ATHOLS

00 ¥HMOZ DJIdINVd WHUEIS
ATAM SSEANISNE AN NYEHIAON
ANYANOD TYOIWIHD vHddIS

NATIV NWIVd ‘JdWOHS

a7 NI SHDIAM3S TVHOTD D48
LdET NCILYONGE YSWHEY

ONI SHIDILYHELE avy

00 ¥uEgdnNyd ® FdIL TIHoHnd
DNINIVUL ADNADY DITdANd

‘SNOILNTOS SNINMYET HoXdd

HOANgA

9T/LE/ PO
STE1Hd

¥¥¥Sg
£¥¥Se
[A44°T]

1vvs8

Qvbse
6E¥SS

BE¥SB

LEPSY
9EPSE
SEPSE
HIEWAN
ADFHD

2 ejeg uny
i0N 3acdey



9

06 °68€
£7°58¢

Te'96L 91808
T6"96L
-31°808

Q0 8P C0"8%T

00°8TL 00°85
00099

00°000°'T
9L°ET19 SL'ETS
00" 8ET 00°8ET
0T " BEZT'T
00'sLE 00"5Le
g0 ose 00-osz
00758 00" 56

L6 FEG'S 8T"682
[ 4
96" 96
€57 LO0T
667 CE
[4AAY
TE T8T
[AANN A0
%68
&€ ELT
T80T
0558
61769
E¥ " ELS

T6°906°T

6L LY
19°60%
s0r8se
ZE'EE
097 €8T
ST'T¥
ST°69
¥LT0E
(A3 A
1&6'L¥
€% LET

BE'BTIT'T

L6°8T
9578494
ZTETT

AYLOL LNOOWY
ADEHD

abeg

00700071

0T 8€€'T

2ES9L
gE99L

2EI9L
ZZ99L
€C99L

L?S9L

B9ESL
B9595L

L959L
£5594
9v§9L
99559L
80994
60994
STS9L

SLS9L
SLSOL
SL5oL
SLEOL
SLS9L
SLESL
SLSSL
SLESL
SLE9L
SL59L
SL89L
SLS9L
SLG9L
SLG9L
alS9L
SLSSL
SLS34
SLS9L
SLS9L
SLG9L
SLSOL
SLGeL
SLS9L
S4L95L
SLS5L
SLS94
SLS9L
SLS9L
SL59L
SLS94

#SNVIL

91/62/¥
9T/6T/¥%

9T/6E/%
9L/62/%
9L/52/%

91/6Z/ ¥

ST/68/%
91/62/%

9T/62/%
9T/62/ ¥
ST/62/¥
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/6E/%
31/62/%

31/62/%
91/62/¥%
91/62/%
8T/62/¥%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
91/62/%
9T/62/%
S1/62/%
ST/6Z/%
9T/62/%
9T/6T/¥
9T/62/¥
9T/62/%
91/62/%
9T/62/%
91/62/%
91 /8E/ %
9T/68/%
9T/6C/F
91/62/¥F
31/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/62/¥
IT/6E/%
91/62/%
9T/6E/%
9T/62/%
91/6E/%

dLVa

SLO0E INZWIEDIVIITT NESCU
ZILNCA SWICAINO

ANYL N¥Ed MEN-TIN
ANYL Q¥Ed MEAN-TINI
¥BLLOLL LIGHHD

S¥UIVAAY IATIOL TIIWLD

9702 '02-L TI¥AW
SOINOULIHET MO¥HY JUD
LHOGSNYHL HLYWNI

dalL TIvr

UIND YOLISIA 304 NID WAD
LEAS A¥d NO 9SNILINSNOD L1I
SQ¥YD ADVH 464

HSENGHIEY TdD/10d

HSHAEIA LHPTYMINYD 0192
(NIYLNOOL) 0dd a¥ 1T0L 00T
SLIHOIT YIG HD J0 MMOL

¥ 40 9 /IS NOINO 09T
AUYd 0¥ HONYY Td¥dd 000T
AY¥d HOA J¥ FYIdWE T$TE
¥ LIND XM NOANYD 02%

H LINO XYM NOANYZ Q2%

I8 O N S8T

Q¥ HONYY I¥HEd 008

SIHDIT IS5 2 5 LES
SIHOIT LS O 5 Z¥%E
SIHDIT L8 D N 9LT
HSN0HIYNCD IS 9 § 9¢
NOANWD #'IIW XIS QgZe
L04Hd HD LINO LS NIVW
(ONTINTYHI) IS 2 H THT
SHEAEIL L8 D N

AEV4TIVE L8 NOSHYD

QA LINR IS O 8

LHOIT TWd/400dIN0 &5 2 8§
IS D TLESDA ZIINN 1§ O 8
LS NOLINS

A¥YE DA L5 d N S0z

why GF INIAVY TYINYAS 00§
OWIS¥D I8 D 8 12

INTd ¥ILM LS HLOCS MOQT
A¥Vd  SNEWETD WVS 06F
TI¥0M T%E AMH S0 T16

0§ 18 D § s0¢%

NOILATYISHT HIIOANT

9T/6E/Y WALSTOIY ADTHD

ALNNOD AFIOLS

OTT WAYAEN A0 ALIWHOIINN

OTT WOHTOALEd SYWOHL

dWALYWHEHL

SHSINAYALNT A¥Hd NAS
LITULETA TOOHDS 0D LS
ZONTINHWY 0D LS

IIT £ DININOQ 'ENOTIYAS
SITYIAS UNY FNIM NITHLOOS
SHTIYNIA 5 NVOIS

YHO 27T SATALSNANI ADITIS

LNTEL YLLEENS

HOANIA

9T/LE/ B0
sTETEd

SERSe

FS¥SE

£a758

€5%se

15vs8

CSFsg

6¥¥S8

8vvag

LY¥PSS

2%¥98

S¥¥as

HHANNN
ADEHD
sleq uny
ioN aj3oday




L

B8 '¥CL 90T

BS 0EZ’'8

007008

06°3%9

007 9T

00°999"1

00928

00°T06°2

€0 ¥LO'E

ST IBL €

8% 892%
LL°880'T

IYLOL
HDEHD

abeq

TYLOL SHDHEHD
T197599%
LE"9EE’T
00°0BO0'¥
0L 8%E’T
g0° 008

0E'BEZ
002

a0 °01S
007907

007999°1

007008
00-92

00°TT
00 UER'E

EQ FLO0'E

To TL9'E
¥I°0TIT

8¥°"Sg9
¥eTETY

LNOOKHT

£ES9L
CEGOL
£EG9L
£E€59¢
TLESL

<ESSL
ZEG9L

TES9L
TES9L

TZs9L

0L99L
06594

69554
6255L

0Z259L

02934
0zZ994

8TG9L
BESSL

#SNTIL

9T/6T/¥
9T/6T/ ¥
91/62/%
9T/68/v
91/62/%

aT/ez/%
9T/6T/ ¥

9L/62/¥%
9T/62/%

9L/6T/%

9L/52/%
9T/62/%

3T/62/%
91/62/%

9T/6E/¥

9T1/6E/%
9L/62/%

9T/62/%
9T/6E/%
ALYd

91/8T/¥

# O/d

AD0¥ NIVEQ -1I¥™ JOHS
aN¥Ys DNIDI-Ea
TII4-NOISNELXE dOHS
A5¥E IT EJAL-SAYOM DA
SOINOULIETE MOWAY JuD

SAIT LM “SXOd ATYA
LAa¥ ¥MS ¥-1Xd JdOHS

8 TTIdTOL HA " 1ILId INIVd
SQIT0OE CULIN‘H *T¥0Ed ‘EQ

SEDIAYMES LSIAGHOT
910z "0g-4 TINAY

910Z '9 TIYAY-¥T HOUWHW
SOINCULDETE MOWNY 9T/02/¥%

G6FEPE-100V ESVET ¥II40D

dOHS SOINYHDEW- TY.LNEY
LNANAINDA BLIHM

NOILAIYOSEC EDTOANI

HELSIOEE ADHHD
ALNGOD XTEQLS

ONI ALIHONOD df

NY¥AD ¥TEYD 'NOS'TIM
00 AT4405 VAVAEIN NEALSHM

YT TYININNCIIANE NYALSaM

SHLYIDOSSY ¥ HENTYM
ONI SOOI AXID YINTOMIA

03 ¥¥ HIMONHL ¥ YINIDWIA

SUVDUOLOW $SVID EOVINTIA

YNIH LNIZWdINOE 4H0DNYE Sn

STHINTY JELINO

HOONEA

9T/ LE/ B0
STETEd

52958

¥9¥58

£9%58

Zo9rag

19¥S8

09%asg

65758

85¥S8

LS¥S8

95%58

ATTWOAN

ASHHD
ajeqg uny
oN 3xoday



T

BE 06078

BZ 060 8

TYLOL
add

aBeg

9% 4T
TP 8YT
9.°58
9.'0071
9L°98
00758
L9TTT
66°6¢€T
0L 62
00-569
66°%T
90769
S6°%E
00°0LE
00955
Sg°9T
S¥ 19
00 5¢
0g g
LT 09%
00 %S
00569
LETFT
007001
9L 0T
11" %E
L0 LS
0006
6519
LT'TIST
£€°98
09 Z5T
0s°0Le’'e
SL°TT
00°08
9T ETT
0096
09" S4
9. £¢
05" 1€
0% 0%
[
52725
00" 569
LLTOT
00" 0T
TE"9¢

LNOOWY

ALY

NOILYZIHMCHLOY ONY METARY 40 INIWIDQITMONADY

SS5L
854
854
85L
g5L
asL
854
a5L
854
[A=FA
£5¢L
TLvT
¥SL
¥SL
[4:TA
SSL
5L
TLPT
[A4=TA
[4=T3
[A=12
g5t
TS84
154
gL
Z5L
TsL
854
9S5L
954
¥SL

LSL
SSL
284
254
[4°Y2
CSL
954
954
854
LT
054

TLFT

TLFT
[4:72

#ONTHL

9T/6Z/%
9T/6E/ T
91/62/%
91/62/%
9T/62/%
91/62/%
9T/62/%
91/62/7%
91/62/%
9T/62/¥%
9T/6E/ %
9T/62/¥%
9T/6E/%
9T/6T/%
9T/6E2/Y
9L/6e/ T
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
9atT/62/%
9T/6E/¥
9T1/62/%
9T/62/%
9T/6E/¥
21/6E/¥%
ST1/6E/%
91/62/¥%
ST/68/%
91/6%/%
9L/62/¥
9L/6Z/%
9L/6E/ T
9T/62/%
9T/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
91/62/%
9T/68/%
AT/62/ ¥
9T/6E/ %
9L/6%/%
9T/62/%
9L/6E/ Y
9T/BE/ Y
9T/62/%

HLYC

day dHOUHD HNOHd HTII90W
HHIYLIY 401d¥1 LI

15d 2304

150 HOEYESIa

TSa ATTWOD

Usa 08

SHITAANS HDTJAAC

HIVYHD EDTJJ0

YL HOVIdEE AVAL HEIJGD
DHNINIVEL

HIYMLAIOS HHOAY

SANSSI EHANTHAQOH
S1114dd dvd dWYLS
OZNOA HDOH -5§¥I0 040
TYMENHEYE 10D ALdYd QHEE
ANOD TIWd WNYL HINOT
LONWYLD 'IXE dOLS -TL-d
HOYE " ' WOCHE ' Y08 TIYE
EHVLSO0d

ONINIYHL

SNINYEd LAQIATY
ONINIVYL

SNILEEW ONISH LAY Td
DNINIJO SSHNLIA HAIAIQ
ANOD 'TTI¥d YNYL MANNIQ
HONYNILNIYW #id
ST/8T/%0 S¥D

¥OO0L FTLLOHS

T 19N 50071 ZIGH0HEOYHIY
DAY avd X9 €HWIZY DNDAT
OLOW YETOO0D dWWMS-DSDA
I ¥0d ONIDHUOT YHINYWVS
TdL W04 SATIYHD DNIATOA
HAIAQYA LON SENL HONOT
AN

1Ind

TIAYAL

SOWL ALITTHYLNAQOIIY
ONVMALNIVH SANNOEOIIVd
(¥d) JNANAOY TYENy
ANOO TIVA AHAD SYD
ANNIJ PNILEEW NSSY DA%
HNOHE ALITIALYS
DNINIVEL

SUdHIEd LL0/ XIZ ANVEA
ADYLEOT

SIHOHTT LL 15

NOLLJI THISHd

HELSIDHEY 0H¥) ESYHOHAL

ALNOOD AZECLS

NIATTE L

1-6¥08399F

BOLETVLET

Z596%CSYT

TPLLSSERT

t167988¢LT

L06850

S6959¢€0

LY8EZO

OWd AHHOK

THEAYHNYA

02€EP~85" " # QI SHVHL
dWYLE d3ddNd -dN¥SNs
HAdSOL 34T -dN¥ENSs
AR ZITHdS

HDOUY0d JdALNVIS
THIYELNT VO -VLLATAS
N#50d-0828

ST6TP0 848N TTASSNE
TALNAD NESOY 1Td580d
HOHYL ONIY TTESSNd
QW ETTEATYE

Md DT OY S.AEMOIA Md
LSTE0Td NOSUMYD Md
SSHEdXE YaNvd

LOdEQ EWCH NIAIN
LLFH HINEAYH 91

d % SEn0L STIIW S aX
LYANESEE SNI¥YN0Y ai
dq ILNO¥4 SnIidendvy ax
LOdET HWOH-HALAL
SEHEdXd NNI AYOITIOH
STTAYLE HHOWAYE
Sggar T4

TTAHS § NOXId

5048 ETODID § NOXIA
JHALETHAOT & NOXIA
DLSYId ddI¥Ll W NOXIA
LO4HT dWOE HHL aa
HAQD HHL dd

A HI™EID

8v6T# MDEHD
LEOJAAVOI-NIAAN O

OWa NMOWE

0688%0# ANV
O9LEEQH TANILY

LOdAd AWOH SNIATY
LNINAYL

# HOIQANI

+TR30] DIED+

TQIYD IYIDUAWKOD FNO STTEM

Lddaq-aNnsa

TOANEA

9T/ LT/ %0
L50B¥SEd

8L

TATHNN
od

33eqg uny

ON 3xoday



GG o009

00°'000°9

Te10L
qooyp

abeq

LY

00°000"9

Junowy

AANYOLLY IDIHLISIA

NOLLYZIHOHLOY ONY MIIASNH

g 9T/62/%

#IsUcnon  aseg

40 INTWISAATMONIDY

SAFd ISTALIE0T

uotidransag

ST/62/% &3VBYD dTUCIIDATA 0] 1935160

ALNNCD

AHU0OLS !

T230L s)0ayd

SHIL AV
01T dNOUD JALIOD
SDTOAUT Topusy
9T/LE/%0

HO08ETEd

4

I IqUInNg

YoayD
: ®jeg uny
"OZUHDQmm



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for April 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
, Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@Sgkcgunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Penied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_

Agenda Item No. (D




STZIOLIE'T 5§ IGLEPB S 0TI $ TOETE'SE 5 EESETS § - § ITLSTFIOT § GZOSDE § BSZIL'S § BG'PIR'E § ETIGHTZ $ POERD'ET ¥ TOEPE'SS § VEGRE'OBZ $ LIGEEIZT $ L6ZET0SS  $  TWLOLONVHD

- s - 5 - $ - $ - $ - S 181324
- § 1810 Xd
- s - $ - $ - s - $ - S 1510 XW
€6TOEOVE § - s - $ - $ - $ ETLL06ET § GTEPTT $ TO0ESE § SLESST S + BLBILET $ bLTSEOE § TUTESTET § YoBEYTSY  § 1510 2d"%d
J51
9B'SL6TZr S IELEVB S - $ TLEIESTS GSTR 5 - S 60'TBO'T9 $ OLWOS 5 BECRO'T $ BSTIIT $ 8199061 § BO'B09'S § 99°8ZCIT S SBTBITYR § [SUE6'TLL $ BSVEL'9L 5§ DISNATVLIOL
ususdedrang
0B'9L6'TCY  $ T6LEVB S TLETE'sT & veI8 S 80'I80'T9 § 69V0S S BETZEY'T $ BSIZIT § BL990'6T § BO'B0YS S GYBIEST § LTBITYE $ [SUEGTICT § SSWEL9L  $ 910Z/5T02
200 H - $ - g - H - s 100 $ 100 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ “ $ 100 H " s €00 $  HOldTVIOL
900 s 100 $ 100 5 100 $ £0°0 $ STOT/P10T
- $§ - H - $ - $ - 5 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - s - s - $ - $ [einqng
- $ vIOZ/ET0T
HOSSISSY
EEE/OTS $ - s 0r18 § - $ 8EPNT 5 - S 05Z9v'L $ OP98f § 65602 $ GO6ET S PYSTPT § TT90L 5 ZZT0T S PEBELOT § O0ZTOVY  § SLGR60C  $ SIVEOLI¥O43Y
- m paindag punjay
GEELIVS  $ - $ 018 § - $ BEPSOS S - $ 0540t'f § OWOSE § 6S60Z 6 SOBET  $ PYSTE'T § TTOBL  § TTISOT  § PEEELOT § OTIOPY § SLERS0T § U3WNIISIVEOL
15'882'6 6 - 3 - 4§ BIbIFES 8£809T'Z 4§ 9E9S 0§ TECET 0§ L6LTI 0§ ZOETZ'Z § EOBKO 9 PELGEST § YILoB'6  § 0Z'TOMY § 89ATEBT ¢ OT/STIVIOL
£0°06T 5 06'62 $ 570 $ 280 § S50 $ EE6 $ &7 $ S6L $ BT'Iy $ 0E'(6 $ ssassy (eloadg
8v'8s0'6F  § BLPLLE 888ETZ  $ IT9S  $ GYYSl  $ ZTVLTT S 6961Z'C ¢ 8TSH9 5 62988l $ 965Z8E  $ OZIOWY $ BEDESST  § 9T0Z/5T0T
BLEOE'S $ - s - s - $ 096£2T § 24862 S POOVE $ 8Z'LT 5 89T 3 9T $ BI'BS $ 86991 $ 08EL8 s - S 102907 $ YOS TVIOL
96°00LT 5 - s - $ - $ L8265 § - $ BLE $ BS'LEE § ET6 $ £29 $ pOPOT  $ EOTE $ Treg $ sz s - $ ST'660'T $  Sloz/vToz 1oL
55355y |ePads
L5165 $ 8 $ B6SiEE $ U6 $ £29 § POVOT § E0'IE $ P88 $ €59 $ ST'650'T $ STOZ/FT0T
282952 $ €278 % ¥6°562 $ Srz $ s18 $ st's $ 8EC6 $ 9T $ 158 $ (50% - $ T6'796 $ je30gng
99'096'T $ Lpoos  $ 6L°62Z 5 16T $ €£9 S £TP 5 ELTL $ BO'IZ $ 6603 $ 9volE s - § S9LvL §  vroz/eTozimoL
$0'6T $ tT0 $ 080 $ £50 S 906 $ 197 § ozt $ E66E H LYY6 g ssassy|emads
o0s § 54'00Z $ 49T § €55 $ oLe s 1979 S TSt § LTES [ a:-T44 $ 61°€59 |3 [ardizard
91°ZC9 s 9,181 § ST'99 $ P50 5 8T $ B2 § 4507 § f0'9 $ 85'LT $ IT'T6 5 - $ 9TSIZ $  £T0z-2T0Z(eI0L
55955y |elowds
517709 3 9LIBT § ST'99 $ 50 S 81 $ T S 5907 S 109 s 85LI $ ITTE [ 9Z'sTT s £102/2102Z
- s ZI08/3102
Wi0L %CH/V  LINJYAD %9u/¥  SAILTWNI Weqhedidr  ¥IWI/ I HLNOA 23V ANl 3N QNG ETAH nov 4vd a0 H)$ dOHX aI9 150am TdINID HIWNSVIUL
59Y 9059€-100  YOTYE-TOD 100 00Z | 4 100 58T 010 [Tas 1) 091 0s1 0OS-E00 00

9102 NAdY JO HINOW JHL Y04 VA OV




00" 00" 00° 00" oo” oo’ 00 oo- SANDE TIW TYIOL

oo 00" 00° 00" co” [l oo’ 00" DRIGTOE SIAXWIL GIENDIAS 008
00 00" 00° 00" no- (o [tlthy 1L DNIQIOH SAXVL d3UQ0FEsSNN oog
“S6TLLY'BYY 00" 00" 00" oo’ 28°¥Ze'9T oe- -T2 ZOL'T9% aIv¥ TEOLLOW DLT
-E8 0PI LOT 00" ag” 00" oo’ 00 oe” -€8 0%¥T L0T AONIOHINT TEIZ 032
~E6T9VEPEY T 00° 00" GETLOG‘¥T 9T 9iZ "90€ L9216 TIT -¥1'8ER‘9PC -00' 559 ‘0TS T LOTHLSTA TH1d 0%
~TS 66¥ 'ELT 00" a40- €87 62 vL 898 LT TE LYE TOT -S9°Z1Z°£9 -SL ZEG 6T ROISSIWNOD WSIYQOL oA DEZ
-5%°DED ‘986 oo” 00" 0o0- 1o 00°572° 7y oo* -5F 5L9°0E0'T LOErodd IIVd DA CZZ
-E£0°A1E 00 Q0 00 oo" 1oy 60" -0 8IL GHNA DATH TIY( S JITYIHS CTE
~TT 6T 'SET 00" Q0° 00" TV LIg’L B9°%58'Z9 -L0"Z¥BTE -FI 6%P 0T SINVYD TYHddad 90T
-¥0TE95°020°E 00" 040° 00" Qo” [ oo’ -¥0 €95'020°C MOVHAYA IWL 00T
-%47931'021 o0 a0 (] 00" 00" -00'0se -“BL 9TEETT QNG MYYd 06T
00" 00" 0o0” 00" oo" Lol [el+hy Q0" LEN I™L 6BT
-1t 9E8 % 00° 00" Ph 00" ST'SCE'T -ZT"ZZ8 -¥8 6EE’'SE QN1 LEN0D AJTLSN. LET
~¥0TLLOTT a0 oo 00 00" 9% TLI'LT -6 ETL'S ~16°9Z5'2Z INTAIOOY LNIDIANT S8T
-59°L50 0% a0° 00 00" 00" 002917 -00"5LS -99° BF9 '6¢C LEN0D LOI¥LEIA 08T
-98°265°5T¥ oo-” 00" oo 00" - FBTEGST'P8T -0T EST'LS -09° 665 ‘Z¥S HINLS QLT
-8%°LOS 86 00" [ty ag’ [depy 86700€ -T6 ELD 6 ~S$S°FEL 6B aN0d ADOTONHIEL S9T
-LD"BIB €S Qo 0o0° 0o’ o0” SL°88T°85S -ZTHT¥T 'S5 -0Z"¥9L 95 L83 TQOHDE 09T
~63°LEV'6LT 00" [Hi 00" 0a-° Z8°2T0"20¢€C -¥E€°¥88 982 -LT° 929 ‘P62 TO0HDS 05T
~00°0S 0o oe-” oo 00" 00702 =00 02 -00°0§ IEN0D 2NEd 0FT
-SS EEL'SE8'Z Qo oo o0o° 00° 0c” oo- -SSTEGL'S8B'EZ ooRivd STTEM QHOE ¥aSD SET
09 0TT AL oo’ o0 00~ g1 056 T TFL G -TLTO0TEE -467100'¢ETT HEMES EJIAICQ WINIDHEIA OET
¢o- co- oo’ oc- el 00" 00" 00" ALID YINIDYEIA A0 NMOL 0ZT
-00" 058 00 oo’ oc- 00" 00" 00" -00° 099 TIIH QT2 40 MMOL 0TT
-00 000000 T ee” 00’ [ el i 06" 00" -00° 000000 T HOLILNZITIEYLS 001
L0 S6T'9TS T [1thy oe’ -06° 594 0L STEZ'91 €T LLEOZ -ID"PET'SY -60 BBy LIS'T HWILSAS AILWM 060
-T2 ELZ'TOY’'1 oe-” oo’ [y oo 00- -P0"ETT6T -LL76%T1'Z8E’'T aNNd TERNLONELEVEANT 080
~ZL T96'068'T [Hvhy (3¢ ~6L FE¥ T oo Ly ¥66 16 00t 0% T9F 0867 SLOECLoUd TYLIGYD 0LO
-LBGEYRIT co- Qo 00 080 °ET 0o oe-” -LL"80S'6Z -0T T1¥8'T81 NOTLTSINDOY INZWAINJE 090
-00°000 00T 6o’ 00" oe 00" e +hg 00" -00° 000 00T IDIANES 050
-LT 9L8'v8 00" oo [s[+hy 0o Qe 00" REAAR-TA: A 1] ary ‘TYALOK S0
0p 0o Qo- [l+hy oo Q0 00" a0° LOTHLSTd F¥IA OF0
00" [elv 00" el go” o0 00" 00" ADNEDIIWE EYISE SEO
PG 6966 [ofv 060" (e oo o0 (o 75679764 d¥Id 0€E0
50" €98 oo’ 00" oo [L1the o0” -00°00¢F -GS0 €SS NOILINLILSIY ¥20
-8F 865 "FZET co” 00" L9°Z65'T 95" 62652 LY L56'6E -06° 58819 - EET0EE’T Sa¥0E 0To
90’ [l 00" 0o oe-” og” 240° 00" X¥L- FONYISISSY INIOIONI STO
-LE"YEG¥6¥ 060" 1l 00- oc-” TI66F ‘9 -85 %I8'E ~16°8T9°L6¥ TNOIQAW INASIANI 010
Y5 6EB LEL L 00" 00" -¥Z°9T §Z°L095°85S SE9VE'SPE’T -TZ E9L'B9S'T -EL°ET9°£60°8 TYEANTD TO0
00" 00e a0 00 00" oc” oo il 0g cez YOSSASSY  HSWO ALLEd 506
0ooo0’e 00" 00" 00" el 00- on” oc-oeo‘e JATYEHS HEVD ALLI4 70§
00°00T'T 00° 00’ 00" oo’ [t1the oo’ 00 GBI T HEYD ALXEd £06
0E'5ET 00” 207 Q- oo oo” oo QE"BER SNICGD 410 106
0L v68°BLT’SE agQ” 00" 04° oo-" 0o” oo GL ¥EE'BLT’S LHNODIY dIDT HIei§ 981
0%°¢02 85T "¢ 807 0o ao’ oo 0o- oo’ 05" ToET'eST L LAAEYH XINOW 0DUWd ST73M 16T
ST LOLTLOOTT a0’ 00- -96°Z0T -10°500°2S6 Tl ZPEETR’T LI SEr’088°T LETTB'TESTT LNOODDOW 30 09¥YA STTAM 66T
[+ oo []thy 00 00" a0’ [l+hy oo’ SATYS ALYIA0Nd ¥ A0 € B6T
00’ a0 0 [l uo- 00" o0 00 SOUYDD MNVY SEIANISNE L6T
0S-E€TI’S 00 oo’ oo-” 00" 09" og-’ 0S"€EZT'S JANYH NI HSYD S6T
£ E0T’8 oc- [Je co- 00" 00" oo oZ €E"EB0 '8 DNIQTOH IL¥N0D IDIULISIA #61T
oo " [t (e [H a0” 00" [l oo HSYD YOSN OD¥Yd ST13M T6T
HONYTIYH DNIGNE LNO SASASNWEL NI SATASNYEL SYEIRONOA NJNOL  STIOWAYd SINIWISUNESIA SIdTHAIEA QuVMECE "Iwd NOILAI¥SSAd LOW

9102/%0 ¥Cd
LEZES ONIONWTYE ATHIMOW
DNILENODDY §udTdNSYANL LD:90:60 9T/60/90 uny
T abeg HIENSYIYL ALNQOD AZHOLS 00TZHUL ‘ON 3x0doy




00 "%LS 9T/62/%

LNICdYELNID

¥ 5¥8 ST/62/% AIHSYENLAYd ODTIHED
LT ¥9%'V et/6e/¥% DNI 0D TIO AdTIVA NOSAYD
290°058 9T/62/% S5I¥¥d CINY ALID IYLIAYD
FPSTGEE o1/62/% TYNOISSEAONd B SSHENISNH
£8°59¢2 ST/62/% ONI BYIJ g NoLdng
00" LZE eT/62/% SIMET LLODS ‘T1IEdd0d
0% 6T ST/62/% DNI ANYAWOD ¥dMavd 404
00°000°'T 91/62/% {LAWOD) SLNEDAY 40 QiIv0od
06" %5 et/62/% QLT LNEWAOTEAHO SAY
ZLEE 91/68/% IAYAS ADNIHHAINCOHATHL L3IV
TLLY0'T 9L/6¢/¥ DNI HNIBSITIENd YIOYOUY
£8°80T 9T/6E/% dT ANYAO¥d SYDINHWY
6T FLT 9T/6Z/% ONT ODS8TIVY
6V ¥6 91/62/% ONI NON SYSUIVY
0o0°0TE 9T/62/% DONI ¥IVAEHY HOILVYIAvd I-Y
LY 89L aL/éc/v 00 NIMATE ¥
58769 9T/ST/% ANHYUT ‘OOo0OM
0099 9T/ST/¥ AH0OLOHEIC dvd 0D HOHSYM
00 PLE'T 9T/ST/¥ ONI SdA00L ALID YINIDIIA
2T ¥0T 91/ST/% JLOA
06°ZT19 9T/ST/¥ DNI ‘MD0O¥ 1 2 A
co-8 9T/ST/¥% ONT dAINASLEAY SANYW LNIVS
00'2g 9L/ST/ ¥ I OIEONY " ININLAG
00 9% 9T/ST/¥% SNOISSHIAWI HAIILYAONNI
6§G°82T 9T/GT/¥% ONI THLCH TIIH aT09o
FLOLETE 91/ST/¥ ONI SHSIIdUHEINI NCOSASDAAA
52 0T 9T/ST/¥ ONI ‘H2IAYNES IXVYL OMTH
00" 8L9 91/SsT/¥% SIMAT LLCOS ‘T7asdEnd
zo"9s 9T/ST/V HOVZ TINIaYd
00 00% 9t/81T/% HIIIL ¥04 NCILYIDCSSY
00 00F% 9T/9T/¥% AIN J0 DOSSY 8 HOSSHSSY
0082 9T/T0/% d OIHDNV ‘INIVLHAA
0L €80'S ST/TO/¥% NYWNH-HLTYAH 40 AIQ AIN
ST %91 9T/ T0/ % aIYNOd SIWYL ‘3T
00°00T 9T/T0/% FIId TYNOIDHY HOHVL EAVI
00°00T 91/T0/% ¥04 NOILVANNOJ MI0LSWOD
00 008‘y 9T/T0/ ¥ NOOTYS aqooTd 40 La¥ond
00" 06§ 9T/8T/% SAHIHD HYIA AHN NUITHILION
ST ¥SH ST/8T/€ D OENAYM  MDIMINYH
00°5L 3T/8T/¢€ AN  DOSSY NOIINHAHJIA HMIA
00°T08 91/8T/€ : DONI DISOTAROD
00" %S¢ s1/z0/0t1 YHd TYNCILVN ALVILS dIAATIS
00°095 ST/Z0/0T DHYD LNTED
80° %1 ST/81/6 NCOVEVY ATMYH NNY ‘' A¥ddnW
00°G¢L ST/¥0/6 VYHLIEYL ‘NOSHOH
00" 8L SI/%E/L ONI DD HHYHIL
8T°06 G1/92/9 HONE ‘LYOD4A9
5098 SL/EL/9 AdUVE ¥ YANIT ‘¥EJIG
00" 06 ST/TT/9 NHOC 'ANSHYJANd
GL 6E ST/LT/% NHOI ‘AYdS
T6° 9T ST/LT/V OV¥HD ‘SNYAH
00 09 ST/LT/¥ HYHOgdd ‘YEINIY
00°SZ sT/0Z/C YOATUL ‘WNVITRAV
QUNOWY Ixed JoIUD sweN 23AoTdug/Iopusa

ST/TE/v - 00/00/0 woxg

666666 ybnoayy T #YOBUD WOTI

s3oeyDd butpuelsing
ONILNAOIOY SaddENSTHUL LD:S0%60
1 abeg AINNCD AHYOLS

TS8%0¥%
82CE0%
9TEvoYy
SL¥00T
€9%00T
9L¥v001
TLOEOY
ZZ¥007T
0E%00T
S8Z00T
619t0¥
0Z¥¥0¥
6%6C0F
StT00T
685101
0L¥PEOF
LSB¥O¥
S¥8VO0¥
€ZTEOT
€68€0¥
€86€0¥
8Z8%0%
S6€00¢€
S68t0¥
OFEEOCT
699%0%
S8¥IO0T
1#8%0¥%
TL9EQY
0¥8%07%
6SLTOF
T90E0T
S68E0V
ZTLE0¥
869%0%
Z66Z0T1
CEBYOY
9S%10¥%
LLTEOT
TeT¥0O¥
90%E0T
LLIEDY
£Z6E0Y
FPoLVCY
L6IVCY
9ELYOV
S8E6EOY
SLIVOY
0LI9%0¥%
ZBEEOV
6T3F0¥
TZ3v0¥
656L0%
LBSTFO¥

00 66T
00 661
00 661
0C 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 6671
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
0C 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
0C 66T
0¢ 6671
00 66T
00 661
0G 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 661
00 &6T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
C0 681
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
20 661

# uosieg bag yuesg

ToBWTYL unyg

9T/60/50
zoLtag

6LESE MDD
8LE88 D
LLESE MD
9LE£S8 MDD
GL£58 D
PLESS MDD
€LESE MDD
Ziesg M0
TLESE MDD
69£58 MDD
89¢€s8 D
L9ES8 MDD
S9ES8 MDD
¥9€58  MD
Z9ESg M
T9¢S8 D
09E£S88 MDD
85£58 D
Z5E£s8 MO
8%E£S8 MO
$%E£S8 D
SPESE MDD
SZESE D
$0ESE8 D
$92S8 D
TSZS8 D
LPTSE8 MDD
PTG D
€€ZS8 MDD
6TEZSS8 D
LTESS D
2TZS8 D
£L9798 D
T9TS8 D
SHPTS8 D
£FPTS58  d2
6ITS8 MO
LOTS8 D
55068  AD
91058 M
50058 D
666%8 D
2Ess8¢e8 MO
86FER D
06€EB D
05Z€8  MD
LI628 D
T&SES  AD
SLEFEB WD
¥0FZ8 MDD
CLETE D
LEGTE D
7gZeIB MDD
6SYT8 MDD

# Aosup di

Q23J uUny

roN aaodsy




00 TET’'T ST/6C/¥ ONI SHDIAHEA NOILDHLCHL 6EZCEOT 00 B6T YEysg MO

0086 9T/62/% HOIVASIA AITHE0IAd IVOIAAW 9ZTL0T 00 66T £EFS8 MDD
0E"TST 9T/62/% NYIdIMOd ZEOE0T 00 &6T ZEPSE D
66 8%0'T 91/6C/¥% (¥dT1) TY¥E01D SHEMOY AANLIE SEPTOT 00 66T TEPS8 WD
00°9¢ 91/62/% d OTHEDNY ‘INI¥IAd S68E0F 00 661 0EPS8 D
00°00T 91/62/% g¥¥D dTIIHD SLOY¥YD ¥ Svydd £S850% 00 66T 6ZFG8 MO
86°009°2 or1/62/% SEIYS LINIWIINOH SNEMO B6EEC0F 00 66T 8Z¥S8  AD
00°SLY 9T/62/% IS ¥ SOTHAVED HAIS HEHIL NO 0TEZEOT 00 56T LZTPGE MO
00" 65T 9T/6T/% FINED HIIYHEHE TYNOILYdADD0 90866 00 66T 9¢¥S8 MDD
0019 9T/6T/¥% OTT ONILINSNOD NOLYON £91%0% 00 &61 SZPeE8  AD
00 LET 91/62/¥% dYHINA NIYVTIAGHYED NYWHON CELTO¥ 00 461 YZPS8 A0
ST 2TIT 9T/62/% TAIW ‘NIAEN vS8%0F 00 6&6T €Z¥58 AD
PP OREE T 91/62/% SANNOYD ® D019 NIWGY ASN 8TZTIOT 00 661 zerag D
0091 91/68/% TAATIIYILAY HONYE ONYILSOW 889%0F 00 &6T TZb58 D
00°L09 9T/6E/ TV ID)ES ADNEDEAWA TYdIDINOW ¥80E0T 00 66T 0EFSE WD
00 €89 91/62/% VAYNYL “NYOIH 6Z9C0% 00 661 6TFS8 D
£L5°80§ 91/62/¥% NI SNOILOTIOS dADIAAQ QUALIW 880%0% 00 66T 8IPGE M2
92" SET 91/62/% ADYL T AIIANDDW 009%0% 00 5671 LIPSE MO
00°09 9T/62/% HREASOAKW NOISNYMW AVMOVH 69LYO0F 00 661 9TFS8 D
8T "LET 51/62/% : ONI SEI¥OIYVIOIYI W £9€30¥% 00 861 STPSE D
00°050°¢T 91/6Z2/% o7 SINIAH dN7d dINDIT ZOTTO0¥ 00 661 FIPS8  AD
00°882°'¢ 91/6¢/% DT SINIEAH HEOTH aIndIt ZOTH0O® 00 661 €TPS8 D
LY ZST 9T/6T/% ONI LSISSY-HAIT DEOTOT 00 661 ZIPS8  AD
SZ° £6L 91/62/% SNOS ® SILYEOD N 1 0F0TOT 00 661 TIPGE MO
6L°28 9T/6Z/ % o171 d4r LIEEDT 00 66T oIbGe8 MO
2T €0L’C 91/62/% D77 d0¥N0s TLI PEBEOF 00 661 60%FS8 D
T6°0€ 91/6T/% HAOLS ALINONWAWOD AW SLI TLLVOF® 00 661 80%¥58 D
00 GET 9T1/6Z/% TIDNNODEI0D TYNOILVNIELNI 6HTEOT 00 661 LOPGE MO
26" ¢T1 91/62/% A¥ES MVIELSOANI DITOVITAH $95T0T 00 661 90%58 D
L9°L0OS 91/62/% DLE SONILLIA ¥ HSOH SOTEO® 00 661 S0¥58 D
FLTO9TS'T ST/6T/¥% HOTANAS LIHIED LOJHEd ZWOH 68800T 00 66T ¥0¥S8 D
T1-L02 o1/6e/¥% ONIDYWIONDIW L¥HSHI HOIH $8600T 00 6671 £0PS8 D
91 E6€ 9t1/62/% NIZHDS Ad¥NIH 0%0E0F 00 661 Zo¥sg MO
SE' LG ST/62/% I7 AT4dNS ISNOD ATddNS (H 8IZE0T 00 661 I0PS8 MDD
00" L °T/62/% NYHEQ "HIOWAVYE LLBOOT 00 66T 00%PS8  MD
55 GF0’S °1/62/% dr3 ‘IvH 8LLEOF 00 651 66€58 D
00" Q%% 91/62/% SHd ¥ FALIWIH]L NISYd IW¥HdD 0LFECT 00 651 g6€58 MDD
00585 9T/62/% WOL ' AMHESNYED 805%0F 00 64T LEESE D
88 FS 91/62/% JADONIVED 668101 00 661 96€G8 MDD
€0TTLE'T 9T/6Z/% DT ADWANH SUTATA ZEGEQT 00 661 S6£58 MO
LS ES ot/6e/¥% IAVALES NENEAYYH 603¥0F 00 661 FP6ES8  MUD
60" %T 9T/62/% d7 SYDTIANIHI SLETOF 00 661 £6€E58 MO
00°0€6 91/62/% ONI SESTYdYHINT NOSOD¥HI S8FTOT 00 661 Z6ESE MO
00 ZEP'T 91/6T/¥ AV HIWWID ‘¥advd €58%0% 00 66T 06EG8  MD
SF CSL 9t/6z/¥® SIONA0¥d NOILVDIHNI DNIME S£8c0¥ D0 66T 68EG8 MD
00 SLE'T 91/6Z/% IWEIN0DE FIDIHEA ADNADHHWE SG8F0F 00 66T 88€£58 ¥MD
LY E9 9T/6E/ YV ONI ATd@ns OLNY ILOITIE LYSTO0¥% 00 66T LBESE MD
S8 6FT 91/6C/% ONI ¥SO SHOIVA 99¥F0% 0C 661 98€GE MO
00°0TT 91/62/% HSYHEWHN HIYSHTOHM 0DIS0D LYEEOT 00 66T $8€58 MO
SZ°8%9 9T1/6C/% (oA) TTOINOMHD MDOLSHOD 25966 00 661 ¥8€58 MO
00009 91/62/% NOZILONELSNOD SNITION 80L66 00 661 £€8E58 M)
69 €81 9T/6Z/¥% ABN A0 EDIANHS NOILIHTION ZTBEOT 00 &6T ZBESE MDD
66 LEZ $1/6T/¥% Z "ON NOLLVIOJUCD SVLNID 86LH0T 00 &6T1 T8ESE D
96 85T 91/62/% A1ddNs AVYILINYS TYLLNAD SE9E0F 00 66T 08g£58 M
JUNOWY 23ed ¥M29UD smey ssiordwm/Iopusn  # uosied bes jyueg # osud di

9r/te/% - 00/00/0 woxd

666666 UbnOIuy T #30PUD woad

syoalD Burpue3sino

ONILNOOIDOY SadTZdNsSvaEL LO:G0E0 ¢ PULL und  9T/60/S50 ° @3eg uny

4 abeg ALNNOD AEICLE zoLTid :on 3rodey




L9 SEEPIY tTe30%

L9 S96E ' FTIT rTelol yued
00 0te’T 9t/ee/¥% LZZE# DOSSY WEIHOIA HAIdA 105006 00 66T S¥0SE  ¥ud
S %95 9T/ze/¥ SHNC NOING/IW25dAY Z0¥006 00 66T FPPOGE  Hd
¥6°66 ot1/ee/¥ AONYANSNI LiEd 665006 00 66T £F05¢ ¥4
€6 9€EL 9T/80/% HONVINSNT BAIT €TI006 0C¢ 6671 €T10S5E ¥4
€S EFT’T ST/60/0T dNANY AFAAOTIWT/TYOTATN LOTI006 0C 66T PLLPE M
€L 09 ST/¥1/8 GZT “SNI HAIT TYINOTOD T0Z006 00 66T S50LFE 44
TL 0T YL/S1/8 YO/NOILOHETIOD HFA SAI¥IAHS ST9006 00 661 TEZFE dd
8G°0DET'8 ST/6Z/% DNI JLEEONOD dE 9ETH0P 00 66T g9%38 D
00 008 9T/62/% NVIL YTdvD ‘NOSTIIM 958%0% 00 66T ¥9¥58  AD
06°8%9 9T/82/ v GO ATddNS YAOYAEN NIALSHAM QEZETOT 00 661 £9¥s8 D
00°989'T 91/62/% SELVIDOSSY % HAMIVM 0Z8EZOF 00 66T T9%G8 D
00928 91/62/% DONI S¥MACIL ALID VINIDWUIA £68E0F 00 661 09%458  AD
001062 9T/62/¥% 0D ¥ AEMONNIL ¥ VINIDUIA PE8EOT 00 66T 65%58 D
ST 18L € 9T/6E/% YNIA INBWdINOE JU0ONYE S0 BEGEOY 00 66T £L5%58 D
3F G239 91/62/% STYLNIY JALINO L¥6T0T 00 66T 9GHE8 MO
LL°880°1T 9t/6e/¥ DT WAVAZN A0 ALIWICAINO Z96Z0T 00 66T 56%58 MO
16" 96L 91/6C/% DT WAHTOULAd SYWOHL S¥8P0F Q0 66T FS¥E8  AD
00" 8%T 9T1/62/% dWE LYWIAHL 98LTOT 00 66T £5PE8 AD
00 8TL 9T/6C/ ¥ SUSTIJYHILNE JIVHd NS Z6EREQY 00 6671 g5¥s8 AD
0070001 9T/62/% ILOTYISIA "TOOHDS COD 1S LTLTIOT 00 66T I5%¥58 MD
9L ETY 9T/62/% HONYINENY CD 1S TTLTIOT 00 66T 0§PS58  HMD
00°8tT 91/62/% III [ DINIWOQ ‘ENOTIVAS PETEOV 00 66T 6¥F58 MO
0T 8ET'T 91/62/% SLI¥IAS ONV HENIM NYHHLOOS S6TFOF 00 66T 8P5S8 MAD
00" SLE e1/62/% SATIAYNIA § NVQIS 88%%0% 00 66T L¥FG8 D
00°0G2 sT/62/% VEd O SETALSNANT ¥DITS 08%E0F 00 66T 9%¥$G8 MO
00°56 9T1/6T/¥% INHHML ‘YILLIANS S¥OEO0F 00 66T SEYSE MD
00" SL e1/6e/¥ ATM SSENISNT AN NIIHIAON €69E0% 00 66T £FFS8  MD
95" T%0'T 91T/6z/¥ ANYAWCD TYDIWHHD YIIHIS SESTOT 00 6671 ZEFS8 M0
06°0T 9T/62/% NHETIY NYI¥d ‘AY0OHS LBI¥OF 0C 66T TP¥E8 2D
88°6ET 91/62/¥% dT NI SEJIAMHES I¥H0OTD DdSs TPZEOT 00 66T 0%¥¥58 D
00" 0T 91/62/% LAEd NOILVONdd ¥SWHY ELEEOT 00 661 GETSE  AD
¥6 00T 91/62/% JNI SHISHAIVILE avyd BEEFOF 00 66T 8E¥SE D
00-"1€6’'¢2 9t/6T/% 0D HAgENd ¥ JEIL TTADUNd 8FE00T 00 661 LEFSS  AD
00°S6Z 91/6€/% ONINIVHL ADNEDY D2I7TdNd TL¥FO 00 68T 9EFSE MO
00"6%T 9T/6C/% ‘SNOTLOTOS DNINIYET ¥0OXdEd £¥8H0F 00 86T SEVSE D

Junowy 23E AOIUD suey 23ioTdug/iopusa  # uosisd beg jyued # yosup di

91/1e/¥ - 00/00/0 woixd
666666 UbnoIyr T #30oUD woag
syoay) Butpuwlsinec

DNIINNOIDY §.¥FdNSYIAL L0IGDIE0 ¢ SWIL UNY 9T/60/50 : ®3ed Uny
€ =beq XINQOD AEIOLE 75.TIg :oN axodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17,2016 Estimate of time required: 0.

Agenda: Consent [X]| Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of the Treasurer’s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due Notice for
all Delinquent Parcels.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Affidavit of annual mailing of delinquent tax statements.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

(?\U‘""\/County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. '7




STOREY COUNTY
TREASURERS AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING
PAST DUE NOTICE FOR ALL
DELINQUENT PARCELS

PER NRS 361.5648

I, VANESSA STEPHENS, Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Receiver for the County
of Storey, State of Nevada, do hereby affirm that I have mailed past due notices
to all property owners who are delinquent in their taxes for the 2015/2016 tax
year. 1 affirm that these notices were mailed on April 6, 2016. They were mailed

and returned as follows:

TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES MAILED: 390
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES RETURNED: 20
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES UNDELIVERABLE: 8

DATED THIS 2»d DAY OF MAY, 2016

APPROVED THIS 172 DAY OF MAY, 2016

Chairman Marshall McBride
Storey County Board of Commissioners




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/17/16 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including Policy 506 Acting Pay, and by adding Field Training Officer (FTO) Pay to the policy.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policy 506 Acting Pay, and including adding Field
Training Officer Pay in the policy as part of the update.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The
Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five
years.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: draft policy chapter 506

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
(@ __ Department Head Department Name:
(24| -€otmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~—r—
[ F— R

Agenda Item No. 8

Page 1 of 3




Enclosures: Draft policv chapter 506

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 506
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 05/05/15;12/15/15;

05/17/16
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Respensibility-or Acting Pay and Field Training Officer Pay

PURPOSE: To establish criteria for paying employees for temporarily performing work beyond
the assigned duties of their current job class, and for empleyees temporarily assigned to the duties
of a management or administrative position, and for temporarily performing the duties of a field
training officer.

POLICY: Employeces may occasionally be asked to perform duties beyond the scope of their
normal position or asked to temporarily assume the dutles ofa hlgher Ievel budgeted posmon ora
f eld trammg off' cer for a short perlod ' f-of

Employees performmg work in a hlgker class:f ication for 1 0 or more days, or petformmg Sfield
training officer duties for one or more days, are entitled to premium pay for these duties.

A. Acting Pay
1. Assignments

a) Employees may be temporarily assigned the duties and responsibilities of a budgeted,
higher level position provided the position is currently vacant, or the employee
normally filling the position is on authorized leave, or has been temporarily relieved
of all regular duties to complete a special project approved by the employer, or
because of temporarily increased workload requirements.

b) The same employee shall not be assigned to the higher level duties for more than six
(6} 6 consecutive months unless specifically approved by the Personnel Director
and/or Administrative Officer, who may ¢xtend the assignment for not more than an
additional si-£6} 6 months.

2. Employee Eligibility

Employees must be formally assigned and actually performing the duties of the
higher job class.

The salary range for the higher paid class must be at least five-pereent-(5%) 5 percent
above the range for the employee’s current job class.

a) Beginning on the tenth-(363 10" consecutive work day of performing the
duties of the higher level position, employees will be paid at a rate five
pereent-(5%) 5 percent above their current rate of pay, or at the entry rate of
the higher job class, whichever is greater, but not to exceed the top step of
the higher classification.

b) The provisions of this section shall not be used to authorize additional pay
for any of the following;:

Page 2 of 3




a. To provide additional compensation pending action on a request for
reclassification of a position or approval of a recommendation to
reclassify a position.

b. To reward employees neither for outstanding service, nor for any
purpose other than those stated.

B. Field Training Officer Pay

1. Corrections Officers and Communications series employees who are designated by the
department head to perform field training officer (FTO) duties shall receive an
additional one dollar (31.00) per hour for all hours actually spent functioning as an
FTO. The employee is determined to be functioning as an FTO when s/he is assigned
to and actively engaged in training another employee to perform specific duties
applicable to the job and is recording the progress of that trainee for reporting to the
department head (e.g., completion of a “Daily Observation Report [DOR]”). Subject to
approval of the Personnel Director, the department head shall have the discretion fo
make the FTO assignment and to remove someone from such assignment.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR-Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 17, 2016 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Announce a special meeting of the Storey County Commissioners scheduled for Tuesday,
May 24™ 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26
South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain
Department: County Manager Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Special meeting held to adhere to NRS 354.596 Notice of Publication
guidelines.

5. Supporting materials: Verbiage on Assembly Bill No. 19, NRS 354.596

6. Fiscal impact: no

Funds Available: Fund: ALL Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. RevieWy:
& Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
'ql/C(nty Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Lo N |
[

Agenda Item No q




Assembly Bill No. 19 of the 2015 Legislative
Session requires the public hearing of the
tentative budget be held not sooner than the third
Monday in May and not later than the last day in
May. The date, time and place of the public hearing
must be recorded at the botiom of this form as well
as the proposed date of the publication notice [NRS
354.596 (3)]. "354.596 (3) At the time of filing the
tentative budget, the governing body shali give notice
of the time and place of a public hearing on the
tentative budget and shall cause a notice of the
hearing to be published once in a newspaper of
general circuiation within the area of the local
government not more than 14 nor less than 7 days
before the date set for the hearing. The notice of
public hearing must state:

(a) The date, time and place of the public
hearing.

(b) That a tentative budget has been prepared in
such detail and on appropriate forms as
prescribed by the department of taxation.

(¢) The places where copies of the tentative
budget are on file and available for public
inspection.”

In addition to the certification signature the final
budget must be approved and signed by a majority
of all members of the governing body [NRS 354.598

(3.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5[ T—{{, Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
[ move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

@"év/(};mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1. Denied

Approved with Modifications
- Continued w

Py p—
e

Agenda Item No. |




Storey County Community Bebelopment

PBuginess Licenging

I

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office May 9, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

F & G CONSTRUCTION LTD. — Contractor / 20 Martin Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)
CLP RESOURCES, INC. -- General / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (temp employment agency)
CHRISTENSON ELECTRIC, INC. — Contractor / 17201 NE Sacramento St ~ Portland (elect cont.)
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - Contractor / 1601 Lewis St ~ Reno (contractor)
A CAMPAGNA CO., LLC - Contractor / 1993 Whitney Mesa Dr ~ Henderson (contractor)
ATLAS COPCO TOOLS & ASSEMBLY SYS, LLC ~ Contractor / 7 Campus Dr ~ Parsippany, NJ (cont.)
OLSON ELECTRICAL SVCS, — Contractor / 3237 E Mustang ~ Sparks (contractor)
GREGORY P LUTH & ASSOC — Professional / 3350 Scott Blvd ~ Santa Clara, CA (engineer)
E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINERY, INC. — General / 126 Mill St ~ Healdsburg, CA (distributor)
M & M CONSTRUCTION — Contractor / 4960 Gila-Bend Rd ~ Reno (contractor)
LOTUS AUTOMATION USA — Contractor / 9611 NE 117" Ave ~ Vancouver, WA (industrial svcs.)
KAHL COMMERCIAL INTERIORS — Contractor / 2675 Mill Street ~ Reno (installation svcs)

. CALDWELL TANKS, INC, — Contractor / 4000 Tower Road ~ Louisville, KY (steel construction)
ASPEN ENGINEERING — Professional / 5474 Longley Lane ~ Reno (engineer)
WESTERN LANDMARK ENT., LLC dba Reno Renovations — Contractor / 5401 Longley ~ Reno
{contractor)
W&W-AFCO STEEL, LLC - Contractor / 1730 West Reno ~ Oklahoma City, OK (steel fabricator)
JACOBS’S ENGINEERING GRP, INC. - Professional / 111 Corning Rd ~ Cary, NC (engineer)
OUTSOURCE, LLC — General / 1960 East Grand ~ El Segundo, CA (temp employment agency)
THE CIDER HOUSE — General / 420 South B Street (restaurant) vC
WESTERN SINGLE PLY - Contractor / 1560 Industrial Way ~ Sparks (contractor)
TOMARCO CONTRACTOR SPECIALTIES — Professional / 4125 Wagon Trail Rd ~ Las Vegas
(consultant)

CZEFR=FERAORBEAFEE

CH®EO

Inspection Required

ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sherift’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Comm Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review of the 39 Quarter 2016 Unaudited Budget to Actual Review

2. Recommended motion N/A

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4, Staff summary: Review of Departmental Budgets for the 3¢ Quarter of 2016 Budget Year
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: _x_Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__x__ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Cﬁunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
N Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | ).




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X} Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Consideration of and possible action to approve the transfer of the County’s allocation of
authority to issue private activity bonds to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority in the amount
of $208, 217.19

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the resolution authorizing Storey County to transfer
its allocated portion of authority to issue private activity bonds to the Nevada Rural
Housing Authority and authorize the county manager to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: See attached staff report

5. Supporting materials: Proposed Resolution

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
0

@_Mmy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

S ——

Agenda Item No. \Z\_




STAFF REPORT

Each year, Storey County is allocated a portion of the State’s allocation of authority to issue
private activity bonds. In 2016 Storey County’s allocation is $208,217.19. The amount of the allocation
is based upon population. By this allocation, the County is authorized to provide for the issuance of
private activity bonds up to that amount for projects within Storey County. The interest earned on
qualified private activity bonds is exempt from federal income taxation. For this reason developers can
utilize the bond revenues to finance projects at lower costs. Reno has recently transferred more than
$11,000,000.00 of its allocation to help finance the building of the Vintage Apartments, a low income
senior citizen residence project in the South Meadow area of Reno.

One of the things that can be accomplished with the allocated portion of the private activity
bonds is to convert the authority to issue private activity bonds into an authority to issue mortgage
credit certificates. Mortgage credit certificates allow first time home buyers who meet income
requirements to utilize a portion of their mortgage interest expense as a credit against their federal
income tax kability. This allows qualifying home buyers to show larger personal income when applying
for a mortgage. The Nevada Rural Housing Authority is asking Storey County to transfer all of its
allocation for the issuance of private activity bonds to the NRHA. The NHRA will then convert the
transferred allocation into an authority to issue mortgage credit certificates to qualifying first time

home-buyers.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a National Park Service
Historic Preservation Grant award in the amount of $25,088.00 for Training at the 2016 Historic
Preservation Forum and Storey County Courthouse Building Safety improvements and
authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve and accept a National Park Service Historic Preservation
Grant award in the amount of $25,088.00 for Training at the 2016 Historic Preservation Forum
and Storey County Courthouse Building Safety improvements and authorization for Cherie
Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Storey County applied for a National Park Service Historic Preservation Grant in
February 2016 for county staff and members of the Comstock Historic District Commission to attend
the 2016 Historic Preservation Forum in Mobile, Alabama and continued Building Safety
Improvements at the Storey County Courthouse, specifically to continue to move forward with planning
for seismic retrofitting. The amount of grant funds originally requested was $50,692.00, however that
amount was reduced due to the amount of funding available from the program. This grant is
administered by the Nevada State Historic Preservation Office. The grant notification was received on
April 27, 2016. The grant requires a match of $6,730.67 which will come from a cash match in the
building and grounds fund.

5. Supporting materials:  Grant Notification Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Building and Grounds Comptroller

7. Legal review required: L—
A/m- District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: .
&/ W’Ijepartment Head Department Name: Community Relations
Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. [




NEVADA .
, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
STATE HISTORIC Brian Sandoval, Governor

PRESERVATION OFFICE Leo M. Drozdofi, P.E., Director
Rebecca L. Palmer, SHPO

April 27, 2016

Cherie Nevin

Community Service Officer
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: 2016 Historic Preservation Fund (HPF) Grant Notification
Dear Ms. Nevin:

The State Historic Preservation Office finished its HPF grant selection for the 2016 calendar
year and is pleased to announce that your organization has been awarded $25,088.00,
$14,992.00 for attendance at NAPC’'s FORUM in July 2016 in Mobile, AL and $10,096.00
for courthouse safety and preservation. Enclosed is the preliminary list of awarded projects
for the 2016 grant cycle. This list will be official after our public meeting mentioned below.

As administrator of this program, the State Historic Praservation Office would like to take
this opportunity to point out several items of importance.

1. The HPF award is from the National Park Service (NPS) and requires a minimum
40% contribution from the grantee; for this award amount your minimum match is
$6,730.67. Please note, the SHPO administrator has declared that match is not
required for any FORUM costs. Note: This represents 40% of the entire project not
of the federal grant funds;

2. Each grant has been assigned an HPF project tracking number and SHPO grant
reviewer (see below):

e Your HPF Project Tracking Number is: TBD
Since we are dealing with multiple HPF grant years, it is very important to include
your project number with all of your correspondence - emails, faxes, letters,
memos, progress reports, and reimbursement requests.

e Your SHPO Grant Reviewer is: Elyse Jolly

| This individﬁal is your primary contact regarding this grant and all project
communication should be directed to him/her.

3. Project work as well as project costs should not be incurred or obligated until all
participants have signed the funding agreement;

4. Your HPF award of $25,088.00 will be available as soon as the following items have
been completed:

¢ Submission of a Revised Scope of Work
This should include the items your organization is planning on accomplishing with
your HPF award. Please be as detailed as possible and include it in a list format.

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 5004 + Carson City, Nevada 88701 + Phone: 775.684.3448 Fax; 775.684.3442
www.shpo.nv.gov




" Cherie Nevin
Page 2 of 2
Aprit 27, 2016

* Submission of a Revised ltemized Budget
This should reflect your HPF award and should be as detailed as possible. If the
HPF award is part of a larger budget (e.g., if you are combining several funding
sources), please make sure to identify the items that will be paid for by the HPF
funds. The remainder will be considered match.

¢ A Legal Property Description (only if working on a historic property)
This is the legal description of the historic property where the work will be done
and may be obtained from your local recorder’s office.

e Main Project Contact Person
i changes have been made since the application was submitted to our office,
please let your grant reviewer know as soon as possible.

Please mail items to:
Elyse Jolly
HPF Grant Program
State Historic Preservation Office
901 S. Stewart St., Suite 5004
Carson City, NV 89701

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact your grant reviewer at the
number and email listed below:

Elyse Jolly, HPF Grants Manager 775-684-3450
ejolly @shpo.nv.qoy

Sincerely,

Ul -

Elyse Jolly
Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manager

XXXX




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05-17-16 Estimate of time required: 15 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x ]

. Title: (Continued from the 02-16-16 meeting.) Discussion/Possible Action: Amend the

Cooperative Agreement for the Creation of Nevadaworks by and among 13 counties of the State
of Nevada and the Nevadaworks in order for the agreement to conform to the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

. Recommended motion, I Commissioner [ ] motion to approve amendments to the

Cooperative Agreement for the Creation of Nevadaworks by and among 13 counties of the
State of Nevada, including Storey County, and Nevadaworks in order for the agreement to
conform to the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

. Staff summary: (see Enclosures 1-3.)

. Supporting materials: Enclosure (1) Staff Summary; (2) Cooperative Agreement markup draft;

(3) Cooperative Agreement final copy.

. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
. Legal review required:
District Attorney
. Reviewed by:
__ (@’ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Wounty Manager : Other agency review:

. Board action:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved
[ Denied

™
et e

o




Agenda Jtem No.
Enclosure 1: Staff Summary for Agreement for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

Storey County is among the 13 counties in northern Nevada that participate and have
representation on the Nevadaworks Board. Nevadaworks is a regional agency focused on preparing
northern Nevada’s workforce to meet the needs of current and potential northern Nevada
employers. Nevadaworks does this by understanding workplace requirements of employers and
coordinating with area education institutions, public and private training providers, and state and
local agencies to craft necessary training programs. Nevadaworks also provides funding to
qualified employment improvement service providers who work directly with diverse populations
secking employment, skill upgrading, and who are entering the workforce for the first time.

The Workforce Innovation Act of 1998 provided workforce training services to job seekers thus
increasing their employment potential, job retention, and earnings while at the same time meeting
the employer’s demands for a skilled workforce. In 2014, the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act was signed into law by the U.S. President in order to strengthen and improve the
Workforce Investment Act of 1998.

The public law established Local Workforce Development Boards throughout the nation. Nevada
has two local boards, Nevadaworks in the north and Workforce Connections in the South. Each
board is comprised of local elected officials and other area business professionals. Nevadaworks’
service area includes the thirteen northern Nevada counties of Carson City, Churchill, Douglas,
Elko, Eureka, Humboldt, Lander, Lyon, Mineral, Pershing, Storey, Washoe, and White

Pine. Workforce Connections serves Clark, Esmeralda, Lincoln and Nye Counties. The Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act is only the initial framework for creating a world-class workforce
development system. The success of this system depends upon the commitment and collaboration
of local area businesses, educational facilities, other agencies and partners.




January 27, 2018Wednesday. January 27. 2016

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR THE
CREATION OF NEVADAWORKS

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of , 18882018, by and
among the following 13 counties, alf of which are political subdivisions of the State of
Nevada: Carson City, Churchifl County, Douglas County, Elko County, Eureka County,
Humboldt County, Lander County, Lyon County, Mineral County, Pershing County,
Storey County, Washoe County, and White Pine County.

WITNESSETH:

B { Formatted: Strikethrough

to _strengthen the United States
ation in,"'?athqaﬁqnment and improvement

';ted the Workforce Innovation
las by the President in 2014,

rkforce Innovation and Opportunity Act _..-{ Formatted: Not Highlight

in the United:States, particularly those individuals with+ = 1 Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned al
cess to and opportunities for_the employment, 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5
need to succeed in_the labor

° e ali of workforce development, education. and economic<—— "—"[Forrgatge?Bullet%d“;Level:1+Alignedal
development “systems in_support of a comprehensive, accessible, and high- 023 * Indentati 99
auality workforce-development system in the United States.

» Improve the qualily and labor market relevance of workiorce development+— *“[Forr:latted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at
education and economic development efforts to provide America’s workers with 025" + Indentat: 0.57

the skills and credentials necessary to secure and advance in employment with

family-sustaining wages and to provide America's emplovers with the skilled

workers the employers need to succeed in a global economy.




| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

United States workforce development system to better address the employment
and skill needs of workers, johseekers, and employers.

ecohomic growth of communities, regions, and states, and the globai
competitiveness of the Unites States.

development systems, that increase the employment. retention, and earnings of -
participants, and increase attainment of recognized postsecondary credentials by
participants, and as a result, improve the guality of the workforce, reduce weifare
dependency, increase economic self-sufficiency, meet the skill requirements of
employers, and enhance the productivity:and competitiveness of the Nation.

_ : _Ie'ét‘ed officials of such units may execute
an agreement that specufles the respective’rales of the individual chief elected officials;
and i

~this agreement is to establish a separate, legal and
ordinate the performance of responsibilities of the chief
elected officials asiset forth he WIAWIOA, to be the recipient of federal funds under
the WIAWIOA, an entity would also coordinate the activities of the local
workforce westmeﬂtdevetopment board; and

WHEREAS, " thie. purpose
administrative public entity t

WHEREAS, under the Cooperative Agreement which created JOIN-Nevadaworks and
pursuant to the JTRA-Workforce Investment Act (WIA) programs, including award of
JFRPA-WIA grant funds to subcontractor agencies, ard—JOIN-—coudprovideJTRA
prograFr-services—and

= Increase the prosperity of workers and employers in the United States. the<-—

¢ Provide workforce development activities, through statewide and local workforce« —

» Promote improvement in the structure of and delivery of services through the- *{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned ai

0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

‘{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned al

0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level; 1 + Aligned al
0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"




January 27. 2016Wednesday. January 27, 2018

WHEREAS, the WWIAWIOA, requires an open competitive process in the selection of
service providers and limits the entity administering the federal funds from being a
service provider of programs; and

WHEREAS, the changes brought about by the WIAWIOA necessitate changes in the
entity formally know as JOHNNevadaworks, and this Agreement is intended to and does
supersede the Cooperative Agreement dated July42-1885December 21, 1899 among
the thirteen county participants; and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.110 and 277.120 provide that any. power, privilege or authority
exercised or capable of exercise by a public agency of the state may be exercised by
two or more public agencies and that a separate Iegal or administrative entity may be
established to conduct the joint or cooperative undertakang, and

= investmentdevelopment
ich may be exercised

WHEREAS, the establishment and furtherance of workfol
programs s determined to be a proper governmental function
jointly by the thirteen county participants thatare partles to this Ag

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to develop: the most effective”’ programs to deal
with the employment and unem i ] residents of Northern Nevada,
and they have determined that suct resolved and such federal funds
may be best administered by a sep

the executlon of this Cooperativ

WHEREAS,

Agreement is ermmated as provided below.
2. The jurisdiction of NW shall consist of Carson City, Churchill County, Douglas
County, Elko County, Eureka County, Humboldt County, Lander County, Lyon
County, Mineral County, Pershing County, Storey County, Washoe County, and
White Pine County.
3. The Job Training Board {first established on May 19, 1983 by Cooperative
Agreement which was superseded by the July 12, 1985 Cooperative Agreement,
which_was superseded by the December 21, 1999 Cooperative Agreement for
the creation of Nevadaworks) consisting of the Chairman of each participating
thirteen County Commissions/Board of Supervisors will be known hereafter as




| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

the Board of Local Elected Officials or LEO-Board and is hereby constituted fo
fulfill the responsibilities of and to function as the "chief elected officials” of the
participating "units of local government" as those terms are used under the
WIAWIOA. Accordingly, the LEO-Board shall consist of the thirteen (13) counties
{representing the Northern Nevada Service Delivery Area) which shall be
represented by the Chairman of each county Commission or Board of .
Supervisors, or the Commissions/Supervisors' designee, who, whenever
possible shall be another County Commissioner or Supervisor.

4, The LEQ-Board may create an Executive Council consisting of a minimum of 3

members of the LEQO-Board as designated and agreed to by the LEO-Board. The

LEO- Board may delegate to the Executive Cou action on the LEQ-Board's

.in_the Cooperative
e new Workforce

Agreement of December 21, 1999.7st
Development Board (WDB) whlch may it

{ Formatted: Justified

+_are owners of busmesses chief executives or operating officers of
““pusinesses. or other business executives or employers with
fi policymaking or hiring authority; S
(i represent businesses. including small businesses. or organizations __,,_,A—--j{Formatted:Font: (Default) Ariai
representing_businesses described in this clause, that provide Co .
employment opportunities that, at a minimum. include high-quality,
work-relevant training and development in in-demand industry
sectors or occupations in the tocal area; and
{iii) are appointed from among individuals nominated by local business
organizations and business trade gssociations;

b. Not less than 20 percent of the members of each local board shall be
representatives of the workforce within the local area, who:




| January 27. 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

(i)

shall include representatives of labor organizations (for a focal area

(i)

in_ which employees are represented by labor organizations), whe
have been nominated by local labor federations. or (for a local area

in_ which no employeas are represented by such organizations)

other representatives of employees;

shall include a representative, who shall pe a member of a Iabor'

(iii)

organization or a training director, from a joint labor-management
apprenticeship program, or if no such joint program exists in the
area, such a representative of an aporentlceshm program in the
area. if such a program exists: ’
may include representatives of commumtv based organizations that

{iv)

have demonstrated experience’ ‘and: expertise in addressing the

employment needs of individuals with barriers to_employment,
inclugding organizations - ‘that serve veterans or_that provide or

support compefitive .ifitegrated emplovment for individuals with
disabilities; and
may___include representatlves of orqamzattons that have

demonstrated. experience . and- -expertise in “addressing the
empioyment: tralnmq or _education needs of eligible youth.
including representat:ves of orqanlzatlons that serve ouf-of-school

youth;

communlty -based organizations with demonstrated experience and
i n addressing the education or fraining needs of

B :individualcs-wrth bartiers to employment;

{i)

d. Each Iocal board shall include representatives of governmental and
economic afid community development enfities serving the local area,
who:

shall include a representative of economic and community

{ii)

development entities:
shall include an  appropriate  representative  from  the State

employment service office under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29 U.S.C.
49 et seq.) serving the local area;

.- Formatted: Font: (Default) Ariz)

— [ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial




| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

{iii} shafl include an appropriate representative of the programs carried
out under title | of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (28 U.S.C. 720 et

seq.). other than section 112 or part C of that title (29 U.S.C. 732,
741), serving the local area;

{iv) may include representatives of agencies or entities administering
programs serving the local area relating to transportation, housing,
and public assistance; and

(v} may include representatives of philanthropic organizations serving
the local area; and

e, Each local board may include such other:i
entities as the chief elected official in th Iocal area may determine to be

ividuals or representatives of~— Formatted: Justifiod

appropriate.,

’_,,,-.[ Formatted: Font: {Default) Arial




| January 27. 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

B. Membership of WIBWDB: Members of the WIBWDE that represent
organizations, agencies, or other entities shall be individuals with optimum
policymaking authority with the organizations, agencies, or entities. A majority of
the members of the WIBWDE shall be representatives described in paragraph (a)
() through (i) above. The \ABWDB shall elect a chair from among the
representatives described in (a) (i) through (i) above.

C. Pursuant to letter dated Qeeemlee4’—14~49988eptember 14 2015 from

local

administrative _entity for the

| 6.
demgnated as the policy-t
recognize and do not cor
which establish NW as a’
| ibilities under WIAWIOA in
e Governor of the State of
7. :
| tandards, ‘and goals in order to meet the
requirements of WHAWI the LEO-Board and the WABWDB may -
adopt pohcnes and Jliance with guidelines provided by the
8.

employee .
NevaéaWest-Nevad* rorks and are entitled to such benefits available to public
employees in the te of Nevada. However, the staff shall also perform staff
functions for the WIBWDB in performance of its responsibilities under the
WIAWIOA,

Whenever a vacancy occurs in the position of Executive Director/CEO of NW, a
new Executive Director/CEQ shall be selected by the LEO-Board. The Executive
Director/CEQ shall be directed by and answerable solely o the LEO-Board, and
shall serve at the pleasure of LEO-Board.

g The Executive Director/CEQ shall provide alt information and documentation
regarding all NW administrative, operational, and fiscal matters relating to the




| January 27, 2018Wednesday, January 27, 2016

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

WAAWICA to the LEO-Board and the WIBWDEB upon request. The nature, scope
and frequency of the information relating to the YWHAWIOA that is fo be provided
pursuant to this paragraph by the Executive Director/CEQ shall be specified by
the LEOQ-Board and WIBWDE. -
NW shall have the power to contract with any qualified private or public agency

or entity to secure the support staff and personnel needed by NW to carry out the -;

objectives and requirements set forth in this Agreement and by the State Job
Training Office. The staff and personnel of NW shall be under the direction and
control of the Executive Director/CEQ who reports, for purposes of meeting the
reguirements of the WHAWIOA, to both the WLBWDB and the LEO-Board. The
Executive Director/fCEQ shall have prepared per rsonnel policies which shall be
approved by the LEQ-Board. As the staff alsg provides staff support services fo
the WIBWDB, the WIBWDB may have | such policies, but any final

WABWDB to the LEO-Board.
The Executive Director/CEO has t

herein. If the Executive Commit
three must be present for the ;

accordmg mee:t“mg rules acceptable to all parties.

The LEO-Board and the WABWDB shall establish all boards, councils, or
committees, ther. advisory groups as mandated by federal laws and
regulations.
The LEQ-Board and the WIBWDB shall establish by-laws for meetings and other
matters of internal governance. These by-laws shall be consistent with any
applicable federal and state laws, any regulations promulgated by the Governor
and/or the State, and any provisions of this Cooperative Agreement. All meetings
of the WHBWDB, LEO-Board or its Executive Council Shall be conducted in
accordance with Nevada's Open Meeting Law.

The LEQ-Board and the WIBWDB shall approve the annual plan and local plan
to be submitted to the Governor. The Chairman of the LEQO-Board and the
Chairman of YWHBWDR shall be the signatories to the annual plan and local plan.




| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

17.

18.

19.

20.

21

”Additionany, the

22.

All proposed modifications to the annual plan or local plan shall be approved by
the WIBWDB and the LEO-Board and the signatories to such request for
modifications shall be the same as indicated in the previous paragraph.

Financing for the undertakings of the NW, the LEO-Board and the WABWODE is
provided as part of the federal funds made available under the WHAWIOA, in

addition to other funding sources that may be periodically available. The staff of .-

NW is responsible for preparing a budget for approval by the LEO-Board and
WIBWDB.

The LEO-Board and the WIBWDB shall consider and approve proposed
contracts necessary for the implementation of the WIAWIOA activities. All
contracts shall conform to any applicable fed tate and/or local laws and
regulations.
This Cooperative Agreement may be amend
by the governing bodies of the 13 county: partles he
This Cooperative Agreement may .be: terminated™at- the expiration of any
WHAWIOA Program Year by majority: ‘consent of the counties that are parties
hereto upon the giving of ninety (90) days written notice ofintent to terminate. In
addition, any party may terminate its participatio ,_in_ this Agreement by giving 120
days notice before expiration of the VWIAWIOA program year to the other parties
to this Agreement. In the event that one or more counties ceases to be a
participant in this Agreement;. the remammg‘pames shall determine whether the
Agreement may continue Wi : at county:or. countles In the event the

on written agreement signed

discharge. of all

mcurred pursu nt to this’

acqwred by NW pursuan this Agreement and state and federal law. The
dissolution pfan must provide for the disposition of all property acquired by NW to
this Agreement Furthermore, the dissolution plan shall provide for the
distribution ‘of any surplus funds, if any, once alt costs, liabilities and obligations
are dlscharge n accordance with state and federal law.

Any fiscal Iiab:itty of NW hot provided for in the dissolution plan, but determined
to be outstanding and determined to be validly incurred by the 13 counties, shall
be shared by the 13 counties on a pro rata basis as determined by the
distribution formula in the YWIAWIOA plan.

Upon execution of this Cooperative Agreement by all 13 counties, the

Cooperative Agreement dated July—+2—1885December 21, 1999 which created L

Jeb Cpportunitiesin-Nevada-(dONyNevadaworks shall be terminated.




\‘
x
\
\

| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto by their respective officers, duly
authorized, have executed this Cooperative Agreement, to be effective as provided
herein.

CARSON CITY

Date

Date

Date

" ELKO COUNTY

By

Date
ATTEST:

CLERK




| January 27. 2018Wednesday, January 27, 2016

Date

Date

EUREKA COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

HUMBOLDT COUNTY

Date

Date

Date

CLERK

MINERAL COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK




| January 27, 2016Wednesday, January 27, 2016

PERSHING COUNTY

By
Date

ATTEST:

CLERK

STOREY COUNTY
Date
Date

COUNTY

Date

Approved by Nevada Attorney General
Pursuant to NRS 277,140

Date Attorney General




COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR THE
CREATION OF NEVADAWORKS

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of , 20186, by and
among the following 13 counties, all of which are political subdivisions of the State of
Nevada: Carson City, Churchill County, Douglas County, Elko County, Eureka County,
Humboldt County, Lander County, Lyon County, Mineral County, Pershing County,
Storey County, Washoe County, and White Pine County.

WITNESSETH:

To amend the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 to strengthen the United States
workforce development system through innovation in, and alignment and improvement
of, employment, training, and education programs in the United States, and to promote
individual and national economic growth and for other purposes the Senate and House
of Representatives of the United States of America enacted the Workforce Innovation
and Opportunity Act which was subsequently signed into las by the President in 2014.

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)

to:

Increase, for individuals in the United States, particularly those individuals with
barriers to employment, access to and opportunities for the employment,
educations, training, and support service they need to succeed in the labor
market.

Support the alignment of workforce development, education, and etonomic
development systems in support of a comprehensive, accessible, and high-
quality workforce development system in the United States.

Improve the quality and labor market relevance of workforce development,
education and economic development efforts to provide America's workers with
the skills and credentials necessary to secure and advance in employment with
family-sustaining wages and to provide America’'s employers with the skilled
workers the employers need to succeed in a global economy.

Promote improvement in the structure of and delivery of services through the
United States workforce development system to better address the employment
and skill needs of workers, jobseekers, and employers.

Increase the prosperity of workers and employers in the United States, the
economic growth of communities, regions, and states, and the global
competitiveness of the Unites States.

Provide workforce development activities, through statewide and local workforce
development systems, that increase the employment, retention, and earnings of




participants, and increase attainment of recognized postsecondary credentials by
participants, and as a result, improve the quality of the workforce, reduce welfare
dependency, increase economic self-sufficiency, meet the skill requirements of
employers, and enhance the productivity and competitiveness of the Nation.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the WIOA, the chief elected officials in the local areas, and
based upon criteria established by the governor of the state and the state board, are to
appoint members to local workforce development boards and those chief elected
officials are responsible for carrying out other responsibilities assigned under the WIOA;
and

WHEREAS, the WIOA authorizes that in a local area which includes more than 1 unit of
general local governments, the chief elected officials of such unifs may execute an
agreement that specifies the respective roles of the individual chief elected officials; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to establish a separate, legal and
administrative public entity to coordinate the performance of responsibilities of the chief
elected officials as set forth in the WIQA, to be the recipient of federal funds under the
WIOA, and which entity would also coordinate the activities of the local workforce
development board; and

WHEREAS, under the Cooperative Agreement which created Nevadaworks and
pursuant to the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) programs, including award of WIA
grant funds to subcontractor agencies.

WHEREAS, the WIOA, requires an open competitive process in the selection of service
providers and limits the entity administering the federal funds from being a service
provider of programs; and

WHEREAS, the changes brought about by the WIOA necessitate changes in the entity
formally known as Nevadaworks, and this Agreement is intended to and does
supersede the Cooperative Agreement dated December 21, 1999 among the thirteen
county participants; and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.110 and 277.120 provide that any power, privilege or authority
exercised or capable of exercise by a public agency of the state may be exercised by
two or more public agencies and that a separate legal or administrative entity may be
established to conduct the joint or cooperative undertaking; and

WHEREAS, the establishment and furtherance of workforce development programs Is
determined to be a proper governmental function which may be exercised jointly by the
thirteen county participants that are parties to this Agreement; and




WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to develop the most effective programs to deal
with the empioyment and unemployment problems of residents of Northern Nevada,
and they have determined that such issues can best be resolved and such federal funds
may be best administered by a separate legal and administrative entity;

WHEREAS, the execution of this Cooperative Agreement will provide operational
framework for administration of and responsibility for these federal funds; and

WHEREAS, each party shall indicate its desire to enter into this cooperative Agreement
by formal resolution of the governing body of each of the respective parties;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual terms, covenants and
conditions herein agreed, the parties agree as follows:

1.

There is hereby created a separate legal and administrative public entity to be
known as Nevadaworks, hereinafter referred to as "NW". The purpose of NW is
to provide centralized administration of Northern Nevada's WIOA programs. NW
shall exist for the purposes set forth herein until this Agreement is terminated as
provided below.

The jurisdiction of NW shall consist of Carson City, Churchill County, Dougias
County, Elko County, Eureka County, Humboldt County, Lander County, Lyon
County, Mineral County, Pershing County, Storey County, Washoe County, and
White Pine County.

The Job Training Board (first established on May 19, 1983 by Cooperative
Agreement which was superseded by the July 12, 1985 Cooperative Agreement,
which was superseded by the December 21, 1999 Cooperative Agreement for
the creation of Nevadaworks) consisting of the Chairman of each participating
thirteen County Commissions/Board of Supervisors will be known hereafter as
the Board of Local Elected Officials or LEO-Board and is hereby constituted to
fulfill the responsibilities of and to function as the "chief elected officials" of the
participating "units of local government" as those terms are used under the
WIOA. Accordingly, the LEO-Board shall consist of the thirteen (13) counties
(representing the Northern Nevada Service Delivery Area) which shall be
represented by the Chairman of each county Commission or Board of
Supervisors, or the Commissions/Supervisors' designee, who, whenever
possible shall be another County Commissioner or Supervisor.

The LEO-Board may create an Executive Council consisting of a minimum of 3
members of the LEO-Board as designated and agreed to by the LEO-Board. The
LEO-Board may delegate to the Executive Council action on the LEO-Board's
behalf with a report of action taken by the Executive Council to be made to the
full LEO-Board on any issue which would ordinarily come before the LEO-Board.
When throughout this Agreement the term LEO-Board is used, it may refer to the
Executive Council of the LEO-Board if the Board has delegated to the Executive
Council authority to act on such matter.

A. The Workforce Development Board (WDB) referred to in the Cooperative
Agreement of December 21, 1999, shall be replaced by the new Workforce




Development Board (WDB) which may include members of the former Workforce
Investment Board. The LEO-Board shall appoint members to the Workforce
Development Board which must consist of the requisite number of members
necessary to satisfy the requirements under the WIOA. Pursuant to the WIOA,
criteria for membership is to be established by the state, but must include at a
minimum:

a.

A majority of the members of each local board shall be representatives of
business in the local area, who:

(i)

are owners of businesses, chief executives or operating officers of
businesses, or other business executives or employers with
optimum policymaking or hiring authority;

represent businesses, including small businesses, or organizations
representing businesses described in this clause, that provide
employment opportunities that, at a minimum, include high-quality,
work-relevant training and development in in-demand industry
sectors or occupations in the local area; and

are appointed from among individuals nominated by local business
organizations and business trade associations;

Not less than 20 percent of the members of each local board shall be
representatives of the workforce within the local area, who:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

shall include representatives of labor organizations (for a local area
in which employees are represented by labor organizations), who
have been nominated by local labor federations, or (for a local area
in which no employees are represented by such organizations)
other representatives of employees;

shall include a representative, who shall be a member of a labor
organization or a training director, from a joint labor-management
apprenticeship program, or if no such joint program exists in the
area, such a representative of an apprenticeship program in the
area, if such a program exists;

may include representatives of community based organizations that
have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the
employment needs of individuals with barriers to employment,
including organizations that serve veterans or that provide or
support competitive integrated employment for individuals with
disabilities; and '

may include representatives of organizations that have
demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the
employment, training, or education needs of eligible youth,
including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school
youth;




B.

C.

Each local board shall include representatives of entities administering
education and training activities in the local area, who:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

shall include a representative of eligible providers administering
adult education and literacy acftivities under title I1;

shall include a representative of institutions of higher education
providing workforce development activities (including community
colleges),

may include representatives of local educational agencies, and of
community-based organizations with demonstrated experience and
expertise in addressing the education or training needs of
individuals with barriers to employment;

Each local board shall include representatives of governmental and
economic and community development entities serving the local area,

who:

(i)
(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

shall include a representative of economic and community
development entities;

shall include an appropriate representative from the State
employment service office under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29 U.S.C.
49 et seq.) serving the local area;

shall include an appropriate representative of the programs carried
out under title | of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 720 et
seq.), other than section 112 or part C of that title (29 U.S.C. 732,
741), serving the local area;

may include representatives of agencies or entities administering
programs serving the local area relating to transportation, housing,
and public assistance; and

may include representatives of philanthropic organizations serving
the local area; and

Each local board may include such other individuals or representatives of
entities as the chief elected official in the local area may determine to be
appropriate.

Membership of WDB: Members of the WDB that represent organizations,
agencies, or other entities shall be individuals with optimum policymaking
authority with the organizations, agencies, or entities. A majority of the members
of the WDB shall be representatives described in paragraph (a) (i) through (iii)
above. The WDB shall elect a chair from among the representatives described in
(a) (i) through (iii) above.

Pursuant to letter dated September 14, 2015 from Nevada State Governor
Brian Sandoval, designating Nevadaworks to serve in the current capacity as the




10.

administrative entity for the local WDB. (See copy of letter attached hereto as
Exhibit "A").

The LEQ-Board and the Workforce Development Board are desighated as the
policy-making bodies for NW to the extent that such policies recognize and do
not conflict with State law and the terms of this Agreement which establish NW
as a public entity. These two Boards are responsible for carrying out their
respective and joint responsibilities under WIOA in accordance with guidelines
that may be approved by the Governor of the State of Nevada and the terms of
the WIOA.

The LEO-Board and the WDB shall have the responsibility to adopt and ensure
implementation of NW policies, standards, and goals in order to meet the
requirements of WIOA. In so doing, the LEO-Board and the WDB may adopt
policies and procedures in compliance with guidelines provided by the Governor
and/or the State and in compliance with this Agreement. All policies and
procedures adopted by the LEO-Board and WDB affecting the WIOA shall be
kept on file for public inspection in NW's Executive Office.

NevadaWorks is authorized to employ staff including, but not limited to, an
Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). The staff shall be considered
to be employees of the separate legal, administrative, public entity known as
Nevadaworks and are entitled to such benefits available to public employees in
the State of Nevada. However, the staff shall also perform staff functions for the
WDB in performance of its responsibilities under the WIOA.

Whenever a vacancy occurs in the position of Executive Director/CEO of NW, a
new Executive Director/CEO shall be selected by the LEO-Board. The Executive
Director/CEO shall be directed by and answerable solely to the LEO-Board; and
shall serve at the pleasure of LEO-Board.

The Executive Director/CEQ shall provide all information and documentation
regarding all NW administrative, operational, and fiscal matters relating to the
WIOA to the LEO-Board and the WDB upon request. The nature, scope and
frequency of the information relating to the WIOA that is to be provided pursuant
to this paragraph by the Executive Director/CEQO shall be specified by the LEO-
Board and WDB.

NW shall have the power to contract with any qualified private or public agency
or entity to secure the support staff and personnel needed by NW to carry out the
objectives and requirements set forth in this Agreement and by the State Job
Training Office. The staff and personnel of NW shall be under the direction and
control of the Executive Director/CEO who reports, for purposes of meeting the
requirements of the WIOA, to both the WDB and the LEQO-Board. The Executive
Director/CEO shall have prepared personnel policies which shall be approved by
the LEO-Board. As the staff alsc provides staff support services to the WDB, the
WDB may have input into such policies, but any final decision shall rest with the
Executive Director/CEQ, subject to appeal by the WDB to the LEO-Board.




11.

12.

13.

14.

13.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The Executive Director/CEO has the power of final decision regarding any daily
operation of the NW programs subject to a schedule of responsibilities which
shall be presented to the LEO-Board and the WDB for their approval.

A majority of the WDB constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business. The
Executive Committee of LEO-Board may transact business as provided herein. If
the Executive Committee has only 3 members of the LEO-Board, all three must
be present for the conduct of any business, but a majority of the three is sufficient
to carry any action. For all actions to be taken by the WDB and LEO-Board
pursuant to the WIOA, a majority vote of a quorum of both the WDB and the
|LEO-Board (or its Executive Council) is necessary, subject to the limitations set
forth in paragraph 13 below.

Pursuant to paragraph 12, the LEO-Board may withhold approval of any training
program, regardless of a majority vote, if:

a. There are insufficient funds available to support the program; or

b. Funding of the program is not authorized by WIOA. Reconsideration of
any matter or action taken by the LEO-Board and the WDB will be done
according to meeting rules acceptable to all parties.

The LEO-Board and the WDB shall establish ali boards, councils, or committees,
or other advisory groups as mandated by federal laws and regulations.

The LEQO-Board and the WDB shall establish by-laws for meetings and other
matters of internal governance. These by-laws shall be consistent with any
applicable federal and state laws, any regulations promulgated by the Governor
and/or the State, and any provisions of this Cooperative Agreement. All meetings
of the WDB, LEO-Board or its Executive Council Shall be conducted in
accordance with Nevada's Open Meeting Law.

The LEO-Board and the WDB shall approve the annual plan and local plan to be
submitted to the Governor. The Chairman of the LEOQ-Board and the Chairman of
WDB shall be the signatories to the annual plan and local plan. All proposed
modifications to the annual plan or local plan shall be approved by the WDB and
the LEO-Board and the signatories to such request for modifications shall be the
same as indicated in the previous paragraph.

Financing for the undertakings of the NW, the LEO-Board and the WDB is
provided as part of the federal funds made available under the WIOA, in addition
to other funding sources that may be periodically available. The staff of NW is
responsible for preparing a budget for approval by the LEO-Board and WDB.

The LEQ-Board and the WDB shall consider and approve proposed contracts
necessary for the implementation of the WIOA activities. All contracts shall
conform to any applicable federal, state and/or local laws and regulations.

This Cooperative Agreement may be amended upon written agreement signed
by the governing bodies of the 13 county parties hereto.

This Cooperative Agreement may be terminated at the expiration of any WIOA
Program Year by majority consent of the counties that are parties hereto upon
the giving of ninety (90) days written notice of intent to terminate. In addition, any
party may terminate its participation in this Agreement by giving 120 days notice




21.

22.

IN WI

before expiration of the WIOA program year fo the other parties to this
Agreement. In the event that one or more counties cease to be a participant in
this Agreement, the remaining parties shall determine whether the Agreement
may continue without that county or counties. In the event the remaining parties
deem that the Agreement cannot continue, the Agreement will terminate at the
end of that WIOA program year.

Upon receipt of a notice of termination or expiration of this Agreement, the LEO-
Board and the WDB shall, at their next regular meeting, prepare a plan for the
dissolution of NW. This dissolution plan shall consider and provide for the
discharge of all costs, expensed, charges and contractual obligations validly
incurred pursuant to this Cooperative Agreement.

Additionally, the dissolution plan shall provide for the disposition of all property
acquired by NW pursuant to this Agreement and state and federal faw. The
dissolution plan must provide for the disposition of all property acquired by NW to
this Agreement. Furthermore, the dissolution plan shall provide for the
distribution of any surplus funds, if any, once all costs, liabilities and obligations
are discharged in accordance with state and federal law.

Any fiscal liability of NW not provided for in the dissolution plan, but determined
to be outstanding and determined to be validly incurred by the 13 counties, shall
be shared by the 13 counties on a pro rata basis as determined by the
distribution formuia in the WIOA plan.

Upon execution of this Cooperative Agreement by all 13 counties, the
Cooperative Agreement dated December 21, 1999 which created Nevadaworks
shall be terminated.

TNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereio by their respective officers, duly

authorized, have executed this Cooperative Agreement, to be effective as provided

herein,

CARSON CITY

By

Date

ATTEST:

CLERK

CHURCHILL COUNTY

By

Date

ATTEST:




Date

Date

CLERK

DOUGLAS COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

ELKO COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK




Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

EUREKA COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

HUMBOLDT COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

LANDER COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

LYON COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK

MINERAL COUNTY

By

ATTEST:

CLERK




PERSHING COUNTY

By

Date
ATTEST:

CLERK

STOREY COUNTY

By

Date
ATTEST:

CLERK

WASHOE COUNTY

By

Date
ATTEST:

CLERK

WHITE PINE COUNTY

By

Date
ATTEST:

CLERK

Approved by Nevada Attorney General
Pursuant to NRS 277.140

Date Attorney General




Storey County Liquor Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: First reading of the Liquor Board Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 15.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic
Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the first reading of the Liquor Board Ordinance
no, 15-271.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Nevada Revised Statutes 244.095 ef seqg. requires the board of county
commissioners to approve ordinances. Nevada Revised Statutes 244.3501 further requires that
the liquor board approve the licensing and regulation of alcoholic beverages by ordinance and
any amendments to that licensing and regulation. While there is no record of separate approvals
for liquor board ordinances in Storey County this agenda item is to allow the liquor board to
consider the approval of portions of Ordinance no. 15-271 dealing with the licensing and
regulation of alcoholic beverages as required by NRS. The same ordinance is on the agenda for
approval by the board of county commissioners so that the liquor ordinance may continue to be
included in the Storey County Code. (Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: refer to sections II and III of Ordinance no. 15-271 attached to
previous item.

6. Fiscal impact: A new licensing department will be established but the amount of work or fees
should not change.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
mnty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. \'7




Issues from the workshop:
Are the current limitations on the number of off-premise sales (section 5.04.180) appropriate?

Should additional bars in the same establishment require an additional regular license fee of
$5007? (See sec. 5.12.100)

Issues for discussion:

1. Procedures for the investigation of applicants for county licenses. The current ordinance
has the sheriff’s department investigate and fingerprint applicants under SCC 5.12.010 (F). There
is an alternative that would allow the licensing division request the prints and get information
without going through the sheriff’s depariment.

2. Certified training programs for employees of establishments with liquor licenses. The
new ordinance doesn’t include this program. NRS 369.630 refers to completion of certified
program by certain employees of establishment, duties of owner or operator of establishment;
notice of civil infraction; payment and disposition of civil fine; denial of liability for infraction;
applicability of provisions. The provisions of this section apply only in a jurisdiction that is
located in a county whose population is less than 100,000, if the governing body of the
jurisdiction has, by the affirmative vote of a majority of its members, agreed to be bound by the
provisions of this section.




An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages

The Liquor Board of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

Ordinance Neo. 15-271

Summary

and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages, and

to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter
5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses,

and providing for other properly related matters.

SECTIONI:

Chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages is amended as follows:

Sections
3.12.005
5.12,006

Chapter 5.12

SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

License required.
Definitions.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liquor board.

5.12.010

Application form and accompanying data.

5.12.020 Application confidentiality.

5.12.030
5.12.035
5.12.040
5.12.050
5.12.055
5.12.060
5.12.070
5.12.080
5.12.085

Application--Investigation period.
Hearing on application.

Temporary license.,

Hearing on application.

Grounds for denial.

Liquor license fees and regulations.
Off-sale license.

Regular liqguor license--Requirements.
Bar liquor license.

Draft 5-17-2016 1




5.12.090¢ Supplemental bar liguor license.

5.12.100 Service bar liquor license,

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

3.12.110 Restaurant liquor license.

5.12:848 120 Transferability of license,

5.12.8658 /30 Abandonment of license.

5.12.8670-140 Hours of sale.

5.12.080 150 Minors--Employment and service prohibitions.
5.12.160 Right of inspection.

512170 Criminal Penalty Misdemeaner,

5.12.005 License required.

The board of county commissioners finds that in order to protect the health, safety and
welfare of the inhabitants of Storey County, it is necessary to license and confrol those persons
or businesses that are engaged in the making of, distribution or sale of alcoholic beverages.

An applicant for this privileged license does not have any right to a license. Any license issued
pursuant to the provisions of this title is a revocable privilege, and a holder does not acquire any
vested right in any license. The liquor board determines that alcoholic beverages may not be
dispensed or sold in any place where, in the judgment of the liquor board, the distribution or
sale creates or may create a public nuisance.

The board of county commissioners further determines that the liguor ordinances adopted
by the liquor board may be adopted by the board of county commissioners and be set forth in the
Storey County code and utilize the code’s numbering system.

(Ord. 83 § 6, 1983)

5.12.006 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings:

A. Alcoholic beverages or liquor include alcohol, spirits. wine and beer, and every liquid or
solid containing alcohol and are intended for human consumption.

B. Bar means any bar, cocktail lounge, club or tavern, with or without live or recorded
entertainment, and with or without dancing.

B. The liquor board consists of the members of the board of county commissioners and the

sheriff.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liquor board.
A. The liguor board must meet as often as its business requires during or immediately

Draft 5-17-2016 _ 2




following a meeting of the board of supervisors.

B. Three or more members of the board constitute a quorum and each member has one vofe.

C. A majority vote of the members present is necessary lo authorize the issuance of any
license or to transact any other business.

D. In the event of a tie vote, the matter being voted upon is not approved.

E. All members of the board serve withour additional compensation.

F. The board must elect a chairman from among its members.

G. The clerk treasurer serves as the clerk of the board.

5.12.010 Application form and a4ccompanying data.

In addition to holding a business license issued pursuant to chapter 5.04, aAll new
applicants for a liquor license; authorizing the sale of all alcoholic beverages, on or off the
premises, within the county, shalt must provide a completed application, on forms approved by
the liquor board, to the administrator for the eeunty liquor license board with the following,
including but not limited to:

A. Proof of financial standing to warrant an expected satisfactory and profitable business
operation; .

B. A complete background as to the applicant’s criminal record. and

C. The applicant’s experience in the saloon or liquor vending business;-.

D. A credit report from a national agency that is dated within sixty days of the application,

E. A complete list of licenses applied for and information for each license.

C E. A onethousand-delar §7000 nonrefundable investigative fee, unless otherwise
specifieed in this chapter, with the annual fee as set forth in this Gchapter 5-64-efthistitle.

D F. An authorization for the sheriff to conduct an investigation into the applicant’s criminal
history and an authorization signed by the applicant for the submission of the applicant’s
fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigations for a National Background check. The sheriff'
must Heensing-authority shall fingerprint the applicant and shall submit a complete set of the
applicant’s fingerprints, in accordance with the applicant’s authorization, to the Central
Repository for Nevada records of criminal history and to the Federal Bureau of Investigations as
authorized by NRS 239B.010(1)(a). (Ord. 83 § 1, 1983) (Ord. No. 08-215, § 1, 9-2-2008)

5.12.020 Application confidentiality.

Information submitted by the applicant showing the applicant’s personal information,
finances, net worth, earnings or revenues that is submiited as part of an application must be
treated as confidential except when:

A. Used in the ordinary course of the administration of this chapter. This includes liquor
board members and county staff that work in the application approval process.

B. Subject to a subpoena or other order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

C. Released to a duly authorized agent of a governmental agency acting pursuant to the
agency's authority and function.

Draft 5-17-2016 3




issued-as-provided-by-ordinanee: (Ord. 83 § 9, 1983)

5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.

A. Application for a new regular liquor license and any additional licenses for the business
may be submitted and considered for first reading by the liguor license board following a thirty-
day investigative period. The administrator must receive the report from the sheriff and
comptroller before the item is put on the board’s agenda  The first reading may be delayed for
aAdditional investigative time meayp-betaker by the administrator licensing-autherities, if
required. If the investigation is continued beyond thirty days, the administrator must notify the
applicant and the liqguor board in wrifing.

B. New applicants may not operate until all inspections are completed and licenses approved.
(Ord. 83 § 3, 1983)

5.12.040 Temporary license.

The administrator or the liquor board may issue a temporary liquor license for the purpose
of continuing an existing business during the period in which a liquor license application has
been made, and prior to its approval or disapproval by the liguor license board. No additional
fee is required.

A temporary license may be approved where there is a request for a new license for the
addition of new partners or change of corporate officers or directors of licensee or where the
new applicant is a member of the immediate family of a licensee who cannot continue operating
the business due to death, incompetency, retirement or other similar disability of present licensee.
The immediate family of a licensee includes one or more of the following: surviving spouse, son,
daughter, mother or father.

(Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.050 Hearing on application.

A. All licenses referred to in this chapter must be heard at two meetings of the liquor license
board before being acted upon. The administrator must include in the board’s agenda packet for
the hearing: a copy of the application with personal information redacted, a summary of the
investigation of the applicant’s criminal history and a summary of the comptroller’s review of
the applicant’s financial standing, and any documents not considered confidential submitted by
the applicant with the application. Confidential information may be reviewed by the liquor
board members at the administrator’s office or by delivery of a sealed packet that is reviewed by
the member and returned to the administrator in a manner that preserves confidentiality.

B. The liquor license board must consider the evidence presented at the hearing on the
application and may approve the license if the applicant meets the requirements of this chapter,
deny the application based on good cause, or continue the hearing.

C. The liquor license board is authorized fo issue temporary licenses or continue lemporary
licenses approved and previously given by the administrator, until final action on the license is
taken.

D. Before the liquor license board may approve a liquor license, the premises must be
inspected and approved by the state health department, the fire district, and the building official
or any other governmental agencies that may be required.

E. If the liguor license board denies an application the applicant may not reapply until six
months from the date of the board’s denial.

Draft 5-17-2016 4




5.12.055 Grounds for denial.

The grounds for denial of an application must be based on good cause, which includes but is
not limited to:

A. An application that is incomplete or that contains false, misleading or fraudulent
statements.

B. The applicant fails to satisfy any requirement imposed by this chapter or any local, state,
or federal law, regulation or policy pertaining to the license.

C. The applicant has been subject to administrative action imposing discipline or fines
relating to a liguor license in any jurisdiction, or denied a license or a work card due to
suitability issues.

D. The applicant has, within five years immediately preceding the date of the application,
been convicted, regardless of the jurisdiction of the conviction, of any of the following criminal
offenses.

1. A felony or any crime which under the laws of Nevada would be a felony.
2. Any crime with theft, fraud or intent to defraud is an element.
3. Sales or wafficking of a controlled substance.
4. Solicitation, prostitution or pandering.
E. Any cause reasonably related to protecting public health, safety and welfare.

5.12.060 Liquor license fees and regulations.
Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution, the liguor board imposes the following
fees:
A. These fees are in addition to any other business license fees in chapter 5.04
B. Fees:
1. An application investigative fee of $1000.00, if investigative costs exceed $1000, the
applicant is responsible to pay any additional costs.
2. The off-sale license fee is $100.00 per year.
3. The on-sale regular license fee, which includes the right to sell beer, wine and liquor
off-sale, is $500.00 per year.
3. The additional service bar fee is $50.00 for an additional service bar.
4. A special events liguor license fee is §10.00.
(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.12.070 Off-sale license.

The liguor board may approve an off-sale liquor license, provided:

A. An investigative fee is paid and the investigation shows the applicant meets the
requirements of this chapter.

B. The applicant has a business license.

C. The licensee is responsible to make sure off-sale alcoholic beverages are not consumed
on the premises, (Ord. 83 § 2H, 1983)

5.12.080 Regular liguor license--Requirements.

A. Each business for the sale of alcoholic beverages is required to have a regular liguor
license issued by the county. Any additional licenses may be approved or denied by the board at
the same time as the regular license. A regular liquor license is subject to the following

Draft 5-17-2016 5




requirements:

1. The license is limited to one contiguous location in a building,.

2. Additional full service bars in the same location require additional licenses.

3. No investigative fee or detailed application in addition to the fee and investigation
done for the regular license is required for an additional license.

B. A regular liquor license is required before applying for an additional licenses or the

application for a regular license and any other type of liquor license may be submitted at the
same time, except for temporary liquor licenses or off-sale liquor licenses. (Ord. 83 § 2A, 1983)

5.12.085 Bar liquor license.
A regular liguor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a bar.

5.12.096 Supplemental bar liquor license.

A. Any regular liquor licensee or applicant may apply for a supplemental liquor license for
an additional full bar to be operated in the same building. No investigation fee or detailed
application in addition to the fee and investigation done for the regular license is required.

B. Payment of an additional annual regular license fee is required. (Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.100 Service bar liguor license,

In addition to a regular liquor license, a service bar liguor license may be required and
issued under the following conditions:

A. The service must be for additional area, such as a dining area,

B. The service is limited to employees for delivery to customers in the area.

C. No sit-down or additional service for customers is allowed at a service bar.

D. The service bar must be in the same premises as the regular liquor license.

E. Payment of additional annual service bar license fee. (Ord. 83 § 2B, 1983)

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

It is unlawful for any person to permit any singing, dancing, floor show or entertainment to
be conducted or carried on in any establishment where alcoholic beverages are sold without first
obtaining a cabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liguor license.
A regular liquor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a restaurant, supper club or dinner house. (Ord. 83 § 2G, 1983)

5.12.040120 Transferability of license.

Liquor licenses are not transferable. exeept-as-provided-in Article-H-of thischapter: (Ord. 83
§ 5, 1983)

5.12.058 130 Abandonment of license.

A. A liquor licensee shal-be is deemed to have abandoned his liquor license if he fails to
have his establishment open for business for a continuous period of six months during any one
fiscal year.

B. Abandonment shall will not occur until notice and hearing by the liquor /icense board,

Draft 5-17-2016 6




and the licensee has the opportunity to be heard.

C. No 4 license shall will not be deemed abandoned if the closure was beyond the control of
the licensee.

D. Ne A4 new license shalt may not be issued when the licensee abandons his liquor license
until a period of one year from the date the liquor board declares the license abandoned. (Ord. 83
§ 4, 1983)

5.12.878 140 Hours of sale.

Liquermay-be-sold-bya A4 licensee may sell alcoholic beverages twenty-four hours a day,
seven days a week. (Ord. 83 § 7, 1983)

5.12.080 I 50 Mmors--Employment and service prohlbltmns

A. Alcoholic beverages may not be served, dispensed or sold to persons under the age of
twenty-one years, and persons under the age of twenty-one years are not allowed to loiter in or
about a saloon unless accompanied by theiv parents, or unless they are in a food-service areaq.

B. A person who has attained the age of 16 years and has not attained the age of 18 years
may be employed in a retail food store for the sale or disposition of liquor if:

1. He or she is supervised by a person who is 18 years of age or over and who is an
owner or an employee of the business that sells or disposes of the liquor.

2. The person 18 years of age or over who is supervising the person under 18 is aciually
present at the time that the person under 18 sells or disposes of the liquor.

3. The liquor is in a container or receptacle which is corked or sealed.. (Ord. 83 § 8,
1983)

5.12.160 Right of inspection.

All officials involved in the license process, the administrator, and the sheriff have access t0
every part and portion of the establishment for which a license is issued under the provisions of
this chapter at any time when the establishment is open for the transaction of business and at all
other reasonable times.

Draft 5-17-2016 7




Draft 5-17-2016




5.12.170 Criminal Penalty-Misdemeanor.
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § [, 10-1-
2013; Ord. 83 § 11, 1983)

SECTION III: Chapter 8.28 Special Events is amended as follows:

8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages.
A. The administrator eevnty sheriff may perrmt the sale of alcohohc beverages in pubhc
areas in COIlJuHCthI‘l with a spec1al event perxmt

, - e : ed-te. An application for the
sale oi alcoholic beverages in pubhc arcas must be ﬁled w1th an application for a special event
permit on a form approved by the liquor license board and-followallprocedures-therefor.

B. A special events liquor license may be issued by the license department subject to the
following conditions:

1. The applicant must hold a rRegular Sterey-County-liquor license or have written
permission from an existing regular liquor license holder required;

2. Tohe license may be issued for the purpose of a portable bar for customers and/or
employee service for holidays and special occasions only, within the same building or in another
location;

3. Valid for a period of five£5} days only;

4. Any license fec applicable to the sale of alcoholic beverages as set forth in c&hapter
5.12 110-ef this-Code must be paid in addition to any special event permit fees.

5. The licensee mMust adhere to the State of Nevada laws and Storey County Codes
pertaining to the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages

C. An application for the sale of alcoholic beverages in public areas must provide the
following information:

1. Whether alcoholic beverages will be sold or dispensed free of charge;

2. Is Whether entry to the event restricted to invited guests or open to the public;

3. What types of alcoholic beverages will be sold or consumed;

4. What containers will be used; iz is unlawful to use glass or metal containers;

Draft 5-17-2016 g




5. Who will be the on-site supervisor of alcoholic beverage service;
6. Such other information as-the administrator ecunty-sheriff deems appropriate. (Ord.

No. 09-224, § 1, 3-16-2010)

Proposed on , 2016,
by Member
Passed on , 2016.
Vote: Ayes: Members
Nays: Members
Absent Members
Marshall McBride,
Chair of Liquor Board
Attest:
Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County
This ordinance will become effective on , 2016.

Draft 5-17-2016

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2016 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey County Code chapter 5.04
Business Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic
Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the first reading of ordinance 15-271.
3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary: The county staff has been working on improving the Storey County Code
chapters on business licenses and on liquor licenses. The liquor licensing sections were originally
approved in 1983 with some recent amendments. New sections have been added that are required by
NRS as well as sections that need to be updated, The proposed ordinance has been drafted with the
idea of streamlining the process for applications for business and liquor licenses. An administrator
was added in 2002 with the power to issue licenses. NRS 364.010 (attached next page) makes the
sheriff the ex officio tax collector for licenses unless the county establishes a county license division
by ordinance. This ordinance establishes a business license division that goes under the administrator
within Community Development.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-271

6. Fiscal impact: A new licensing department will be established but the amount of work or fees
should not change.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

M@umy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda [tem No. \ '8




4. Staff summary continued:

The existing code combines sections for liquor licenses in the business license chapter.
These sections have been segregated to the appropriate chapters. The investigation of applicants
has been modified and language added to make sure the liquor board has the information necessary
to make a decision. The requirements for approval or denial stays the same but the hearing process
has been more fully set out. There may be additional changes that may be made based on the
discussion at the public hearings.

Issues to be discussed:

1. Creation of licensing department. The new ordinance creates a licensing department headed
by the administrator (designated by resolution of the board) and sets up procedures and regulations
for the department. NRS 364.010 provides that the sheriff of each county is the ex officio collector
of county licenses provided for in chapter 244 of NRS and by other laws, unless the board of
county commissioners by ordinance: (a) establishes a county license department; (b) adopts
procedures for the investigation of applicants for county licenses and for the administration,
collection and disposition of county license fees; and (¢) provides regulations for the operation of
the county license department.

2. Civil penalties. The existing and new ordinance both do not have civil penalties. NRS
244.33509 allows a board of county commissioners by ordinance to provide for the imposition of a
civil penalty in lieu of a criminal penalty for the violation of an ordinance enacted by the board
concerning the licensing or regulation of businesses unless state law provides a criminal penalty
for the same act or omission.




Ordinance No. 15-271

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.04 Business Licenses,
chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.04 Business Licenses,
chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses is amended as follows:

Chapter 5.04

BUSINESS LICENSES
Sections:
5.04.010 License required—Vielation—Criminal penalty.
5.04.012 Definitions.
5.04,015 Establishment of business license department and appointment of administrator.
5.04.020 Application.
5.04.050 30 Hearing on application.
3.04.040 Content, posting requirement.
5.04.050 Nontransferable.
5.04.060 Temporary licenses.
5.04.070 Recordkeeping by the administrator.
5.04.0780 Recordkeeping by the comptroller Auditor.
5.04.090 Office hours for license issuance and fee payments.
5.04.100 License approval or denial Refusal.
5.04.110 Suspension, cancellation or revocation of licenses.
5.04.120 Signs as proof of engaging in business,

5.04.150 Exemptions from licenses.

Draft 5-17-2016 1




5.04.160 Branch establishments.

5.04.170 Agents responsible for obtaining license.

5.04.180 Off-premises sales.

5.04.190 Inerease-or-deerease-offlees sef by resolution,

5.04.200 Fees and exemptions from fees.

5.04,220 Square footage fees.

5.04.230 Fees for employees.

5.04.240 Members of professional partnerships to be licensed individually.

5.04.250 Applicant required fo submit an affidavit or attestation concerning industrial
insurance.

5.04.260 Application for or renewal of license: Statement regarding obligation of child
support required, grounds for denial.

3.04.262 Mandatory suspension of license.

5.04.265 Social security number required for application.

5.04.25070Additional license required authorizing pawnbrokers to accept motor vehicles as
pledged property.

5.04.26875Reasonable classification.

5.04.27080False alarm service charge.

5.04.296 Annual payment prorated fee--Penalty for failure to pay--Display of license.

5.04.300 Recovery of fees by civil suit.

5.04.320 Other required licenses and permits.

5.04.330 Public utilities.

5.04.340 Criminal Penalty

5.04.010 License required—Vielation—Criminal penalty.

A person, firm, association or corporation within the limits of Storey County may not pursue
any calling, trade, business or professmn until he she they or it has taken out a license, and paid
all fees for the license. anet: (Ord. No.
13-249, § I, 10-1-2013; Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.012 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings:

A. "Board" means the board of county commissioners.

B. "Business"” or "doing business" means all professions, trades, occupations and callings
carried on for profit, and in addition includes labor unions, labor organizations and trade
unions, however, "business"” does not include the rental of three or less residential units.

C. "Cabaret” is live entertainment.

D. "Contract office business" means a person doing business in Storey County without
employees in Storey County by using the services of a shared resident office staff in Storey
County.

E. "Contractor" means a person required by the state of Nevada Contractors Board to have
a license as a contractor, whether the person is a general or subcontractor.

F. "Employee" has the meaning in NRS 608.010.

Draft 5-17-2016 2




G. "Home enterprise” means a person, excluding contractors conducting business out of a
residence and whose business does not invite the public.

H. "Independent contractor” means a person who contracts to do a piece of work according
to his or her own methods and is subject to an employer’s control only as to the final result of the
work. Examples are, but not limited to: insurance agents, stockbrokers, hairdressers, and shoe
shiners. Employees of licensees are not independent contractors for the purpose of this chapter.
Independent contractor does not include a brothel’s prostitutes.

L "Nonprofit organization” means all institutions, corporations, organizations or
associations that are registered under state or federal law, are for charitable, or civic purposes
and whose donations or receipts are not used for the private gain of any person.

J. "Off-premises sale" means a sale of goods or services held by a person licensed fo make
sales but which is held in Storey County at a site other than the site specified on the person’s
business license.

K. "Out of county business" means a person, excluding a contractor, conducting business in
Storey County without a physical address in Storey County.

L. "Person" means a corporation, association, syndicate, partnership, club, trust,
independent contractor or natural person but does not include employees of businesses licensed
under this chapter unless an employee is an owner of the business.

M. "Professional” means one whose practice of a profession requires advanced education
and a license from a state licensing agency, board, commission or court.

N. "Special events" are those authorized by chapter 8.28.

(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.015 Establishment of business license department and appointment of administrator.

The board establishes a business license depariment to administer the duties set out in this
title. An administrator of the depariment may be appointed esndy by resolution of the Sterey
County board of counfy commissioners. and-requires-a-writtenreselution: The appeinted
administrator shall or the administrator’s designee must carry out the functions prescribed to the
administrator in this title. Chapter-5:85: (Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.0620 Application.

All applications for licenses under this chapter, unless otherwise specified in this chapter,
shall must be made to the shesiffor administrator in writing on a form approved by the board,
vpon-blanksprovided-therefor, and each applicantion must include shall-make-signed-statements
thereonyof the full name of the applicant, and if a partnership, the full name of each member,
and if a corporation, the list of officers and the state of incorporation, the nature of the business
on-what, the street address of the business and-at-what-numberit-isto-be-earried-on, when it shall
will commence business, with sufficient information for the calculation of the license fee, a
written declaration by the applicant, under penalty of perjury, that the information contained in
rhe applzcaz‘zon is true and correct. M&H&aﬂ&e—&f{h@—apﬁlﬁaﬂ{—&ﬁd—kﬂa—p&ﬁ%{ﬁp—%—fﬁﬂ
z ~If a license is
sought by a person or partnershlp domg busmess under a ﬁctltlous name, sueh that name shall
must also be sct forth in the application sffidavit, and proof supplied that the requirements of
state law concerning registration of fictitious names shall-be have been met. (Ord. 161 § 2(part),
1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

Draft 5-17-2016 3




5! >, la] nf o
A% a3 ]

we%é——NeﬁﬁaﬂsﬁeF&bleJL(Ord 161 §2(part) 1999; Ord 179 § 1(part) 2002)

5.04.050 30 Hearing on application.

A. All business licenses referred to in this chapter, lcensing-board-regulations—and liguor
boardregulations;-shall must be heard read at leasttwe one meetings of the board applicable
heensing-ageney-before being acted upon.

B. The eowntylicensing board may, during the hearing, and-countyliquorbeard-are
autherized-to issue g temporary licenses or continue a temporary license approved previeusly
grven by the sheriff administrator, until final action is taken by the board.

C. The applicant must inform the board in writing of any change in the information

Submztred wzlh lhe appl:can(m The-countylicensing board-is-authorizedto-issue temporary

D Before the board may approve finalappreval-ofany a business license referred-to-in-this
chapter, the applicant must obtain all required public safety inspections and the approval by of
the state health department, fire chiet, building inspector and other governmental agencies that

may be required by-the-applicable licensing-ageney. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part),
2002)

3.04.040 Content, posting requirement.

All licenses issued under this title must be printed in blank form, signed by the administrator,
and must sef forih the name of the party to whom issued, the type of license, profession, or
business he, she, they or it is licensed to pursue, the time for which the license is granted, the
date of the license and the amount of fees paid; and must contain in plain view the word
"Nontransferable."

A. 4 business license for the transaction of any kind of business in any fixed or certain
locality must post the license conspicuously in the establishment or place of business, and keep it
conspicuously posted until the license has expired or the person ceases to transact the business.
If the business does not have a fixed place of business the license must be available on request.

B. Any person who fails to post or keep posted or have a license as required by this section
may be fined not more than $250. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

Draft 5-17-2016 4




3.04.050 Nontransferable.

A license may not be assigned or transferred and does not authorize any person or persons
other than those named to carry on the business specified, nor does the license authorize the
carrying on of the business in any other location or building than that named in the license. (Ord.
161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.060 Temporary licenses.

A. The board sheritf and the administrator are authorized to provide a temporary business
license for the operation of a business issuable-by-the Storey-Gounty-board-of commissioners
except for gaming licenses. AH-sueh temporary permissionshall-be license may be issued in sole
discretion of the sheriffand-the-sele-diseretion-of the administrator or the board, and is effective
allewed until the board acts upon the license application. acted-upon-by-the-Storey-County
bourd-ofcomrmisstoners,

B. 4 temporary license may not be issued um‘zl the applicant has obtamed all requzred
public safety inspections and approval of Bef : 5 Lo
this-chapterapproval-by the state health department fire chief, building 1nspect0r and other

governmental agencies that may be required. by-the-applicable licensing-ageney (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.070 Recordkeeping by the administrator.

1t is the duty of the administrator to keep a database for active business licenses, including
the amount received for fees. A report of all active business licenses, with the names of the
business, the owner’s name, the address of the business, and the area of the county where the
business is located, must be presented annually at the first regular meeting of the board in July
of each year.

5.04.0780 Recordkeeping by the comptrollerAuditor.

m-~B The comprroller ee&my—a&d&ef shal—L musr audit and balance the busmess llcense account
through the automated business license accounting system in the :
and-the-administrator’s office yearly. A detailed report shalt must be presented to the boai d

Storey-Connty-comnmissioners at the first regular meeting in July of each year. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.090 Office hours for license issuance and fee payments.
The sheriffand administrator shall must keep his office open between the hours of nine a.m.
and fve four p.m. of every weekday, excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, and declared

Draft 5-17-2016 3




emergencies exeepted, to issue licenses, and-it shatl-be [t is the duty of everyone from whom a
license-tax fee is due and owing to pay the fee same at the office of-the-sheritf-er-offiee of the
administrator during business hours or by electromc means. The hcense fees are due wzthout
demand or notice by the admmzstrafor :

- (Ord 161

§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.100 License approval or denial Refuasal.

A. The board may approve, deny, or continue a business license application or take any
other action it considers appropriate. The burden of showing qualifications, acceptability or
fitmess for a license is on the applicant. The board may refuse fo issue a license if the state
health department, fire district chief, building inspector or other governmental agencies find the
applicant is not in compliance with Storey County Code or state law. Alicense-may-berefused

The board may refuse a license by-any-licensing-ageney until an applicant complies or agrees to
comply with all e%hei—eaashﬂg—efd-mtmeeﬁ—aﬁel laws in fcnce including the county master plan;

B. Ne A business license may not shﬁi{ be issued or renewed when, at the time of making
application for any license or renewal thereef, the applicant, whether a tenant, legal owner, or
landlord of the intended place of business is indebted to the county for any unpaid real property
taxes or personal property taxes, or any fees due the county. The tax receiver may enter into an
agreement with any person so indebted to the county to establish a schedule for the payment of
sueh rhe indebtedness and any delinquencies and interest thereen. In sueh the agreement, the
debtor shall must acknowledge sueh the debt to the county and shall agree that if any default
occurs in the payment of any installment agreed to be paid thereunder, the entire amount to be
paid shatt will become immediately due and payable, and the subject business license may be
revoked. (Ord. 188, 2004: Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999) (Ord. No. 10-232, § 2, 8-3-2010)

5.04.110 Suspension, cancellation or revocation of licenses.
A. The shesiff-administrator is authorized to temporarily suspend al licenses issued by the

county-ticensing board and-the-countyHauer-beoard—suchsuspensien and to require the licensee
by wrltten notice to appear at the next regu]ar meetlng of the ajapheable board The-administrator

Ay bmme ss license

thereof; for the-condueting-of-business; may be suspended canceied or revoked for good cause
by the board of commissieners. Good cause for saeh suspension, cancellation or revocation shall

includes, but is not be limited to:

1. The existence of unsanitary conditions, noise, disturbance or other conditions at, near
or in the premises which cause or tend to create a public nuisance or which injuriously affects the
public health, safety or welfare;

2. The commission of, or permitting or causing the commission of, any act in the
operation of the business which act is made unlawful or is prohibited by any ordinance, rule or
law of Storey County, or state or federal government; or

3. Fraudulent practices or misrepresentations in the operation of the business, or

Draft 5-17-2016 6




concealment or misrepresentation in procuring the license.
B. Any business license issued-pursuant-io-the-provisions-of this-chapter may be suspended,
canceled or revoked in the following manner:
1. The board may, on its own motion or initiative, or upon complaint of any person,
institute proceedings to suspend, cancel or revoke a license by mailing a complaint setting forth

the violations al—l«eged—fe—&seﬂ—fer—saeh—pfeeeed-mg to the hcensee at the last address prov1ded to

the counly. efsuch-proceeding-to-Hieensee-as-shown by his-application-or by-a-suppleme

a1 > B
=) v

2. The licensee shalt may, within ten days of the date of sueh mailing, file with the
county clerk a written answer to the saeh-complaint, under oath.

3. The board shall must fix a day and time and send written notice to the licensee for a
hearing at which the licensee will be given an opportunity to be heard.

4. If the licensee fails to file a written answer within the time required, or if the licensee
fails to appear at the place and time designated for the hearing, the board may order the license
suspended, canceled or revoked.

5. The board shal must, within fifteen days after the date of sueh-the hearing, enter its
order to suspend, cancel or revoke, or refuse to suspend, cancel or revoke, the license, The
applicant will shall-be allowed o opelate until the 01de1 is entered w:th the clerk’s office.

l:censee to appear at the tlme and place demgnated by the board may shall, in and of itself,
constitute sufficient grounds for suspensmn cancellation or revocatlon of the hcensee s license.

C. In all proceedings under this fitle Tile-orany-otherprovisionotthis-cede, the board has
shatl-have the right to administer oaths, certify to official acts, issue subpoenas for the
attendance of witnesses and the productzon of documents books papers cmd recor ds and-all

D. In addition to the other remedies provided in this chapter, the Sterey-Ceounty district
attorney’s office is authorized to petition the district court for an injunction restraining any
business from conducting business without a valid license. (Ord. 161 § 2(part}, 1999; Ord. 179
§ 1(part), 2002)

Draft 5-17-2016 _ 7




5.04.120 Signs as proof of engaging in business,

A sign or advertisement kept, exhibited or published indicating that any person, partnership
or corporation is engaged in a business, trade, or profession for which a license is required under
this chapter ershall-hereafterberequired, or for the performance of services wherein a charge is
made or compensation accepted, shal-be is prima facie evidence that sueh the person,
partnership or corporation is so engaged-theretn. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

Draft 5-17-2016 g




5.04.150 Exemptions from licenses.

Ne A license is not required for:

A. Tewo or fewer garage sales in any calendar year so long as the each garage sales does not
exceed three days in duration.

B. Providing childcare in a private residence for 6 or fewer children. (Ord. 161 § 2(part),
1999)

5.04.160 Branch establishments.

A separate business license is required for each branch of an establishment or location of a
business. A business consisting of multiple buildings adjacent to each other is considered one
location if under one business name and management. Each license authorizes the licensee to
transact and carry on all business listed at the location in the manner designated on sueh the
license; provided, that warehouses, distributing plants, maintenance facilities or commercial
rentals used in connection with and incidental to a business licensed under the provisions of this
chapter are shall not be deemed to be separate places of business or branch establishments-=and
provided-finther,-that-warchouses and distributing plants engaged in retail or wholesale sales
are shatbbe deemed separate businesses and shall require separate licenses as-provided-inthis
chapter. A residential rental business having rentals at different locations need only have one
license listing all rental locations. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.170 Agents responsible for obtaining license.

The agents or other representatives of nonresidents who are doing business in Storey County
shall-be are personally responsible for their principal’s compliance with this chapter which
includes the procurement of business licenses and payment of fees. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.180 Off-premises sales.

A person must obtain permission from the administrator s sheriffs office to conduct an off-
premises sale. Ne-pPermission may not be given to conduct more than three off-premises sales
for a maximum of five days each calendar year, Off—premlses sale must meet all other applicable
state; or countys # ' requirements. (Ord. 161

§ 2(part), 1999)

5.04.190 Inerease-or-deerease-offFees sef by resolution.

All fees established heretnatter in this chapter may be sef or amended established inereased
or-decreasedfrom-timeto-time by resolution of the board of county commissioners. (Ord. 196,
2005)

5.04.200 Fees and exemptions from fees.
A. Except for documented nonprofit organizations, upon application for a new business
license, the applicant shal must pay a nonrefundable swenty—ve-dellar application fee to cover

Draft 5-17-2016 9




the costs of the review and processing of the application.

B. Every person, firm, association, or corporation required by this chapter to take out and
pay for a license, shall must take out and pay for a license for each of the kinds of businesses
enumerated in this chapter artiele, and for each separate class of business or trade enumerated
herein, and for each place where @ sueh business is carried on.

C. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following periodic fees are imposed on

the following kinds of business licenses:

General license

$ 75.00 per year

Independent contractors, professionals 100.00 per year
Out-of-county businesses, contractors 75.00 per year
Home enterprises businesses 100.00 per year
Nonprofit 0 per year

Massages, therapeutic services

135.00 per year

Subdivision sales

475.00 per year

Transportation companies

100.00 per year

Pawn shops

250.00 per year

Mining, excavation, earth-moving/processing companies

475.00 per year

D. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following fees are imposed on the
following kinds of business licenses in addition to any other fees specified:

Commercial units, apartments, storage units, RV and MH spaces,
pay parking lot spaces $2.00 | per unit annually
Per gaming machine 30.00 | per quarter
Per gaming table 150.00 | per quarter
Alarm companics per alarm per
10.00 | quarter
s 25:00 | pervender

E. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following fees for entertainment are

imposed on the following kinds of business licenses and-are-exemptfronrany-otherfee-schedules

————3, Fortunetellers, astrologer, clairvoyant, medium, palmist, phrenologist, or others who
profess to foresee the future, seven one hundred dollars per year; fortunetelling licenses may

shalt be approved at the sole discretion of the board efcounty-eommisstoners. Any employee in
an establlshment licensed under this sectlon is shall-be subject to work permit requirements. as

2002 Ord 161 §2(pa1't) 1999)

Draft 5-17-2016 10

- (Ord. 203 (part), 2006; Ord. 179 § 1(part),




the timeitisimposed: (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.220 Square footage fees.
A. Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution +he following additional fees shall
must be assessed annually based on the total square footage of each business within the county:

0-1,999 sq. ft. $ 15.00
2K-2,999 31.00
3K-4,999 63.00
5K-7,499 64.00
7.5K-9,999 125.00
10K-24,999 188.00
25K-100K 250.00
100K-500K 500.00
500K+ 1000.00

B. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to special events, home enterprises
eccupation-businesses, independent contractors and out-of-county contractors. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999)

5.04.230 Fees for employees.

A. Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution tFhe following additional fees shalt
must be assessed annually based on the average number of full time equivalent employees who
may reasonably be anticipated to be employed, within the county, during the peak employment or
production of the license period including the proprietor:

1-5 employees $25.00
6-10 40.00
11-25 75.00
26-50 125.00
Over 50 125.00 + 2.00 each

Draft 5-17-2016 11




B. For contractors the fees imposed pursuant to this section shaH include only those
employees who support the contracting business and does not include seasonal construction
employees.

C. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to contract office businesses, home
enterprises eccupation-businesses, independent contractors, special events and out-of-county
businesses. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.240 Members of professional partnerships to be licensed individually,
—Notwithstanding-any-other provisions-of this-chapter-eFach member of a professional
partnership practicing in Storey County shalk-must be licensed as tan individual in accordance
with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999}

5.04.250 Applicant required to submit affidavit or attestation concerning industrial insurance.
A. The board may not issue a business license unless the applicant for the license.
1. Signs an affidavit affirming that the business.
a. Has received coverage by a private carrier as required pursuant (o chapters
6164 to 616D, inclusive, and chapter 617 of NRS.
b. Maintains a valid certificate of self-insurance pursuant to chapters 6164 fo
616D, inclusive, of NRS.
c. Is a member of an association of self-insured public or private employers.
d. Is not subject to the provisions of chapters 6164 to 616D, inclusive, or chapter
617 of NRS.
2. Or, if the applicant submits his or her application electronically, attests to his or her
compliance with the provisions of paragraph (a).

B. The adminisirator must submit monthly a list of the names of those businesses that have
submitted an affidavit or aitestation required by subsections 1 and 2 to the administrator of the
Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry.

C. Upon receiving an affidavit or attestation required by this section, the administrator must
provide the owner of the business with a document setting forth the rights and responsibilities of
employers and employees to promote safety in the workplace, in accordance with regulations
adopted by the Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry
pursuant to NRS 618.376.

5.04.260 Application for or renewal of license: Statement regarding obligation of child
support required, grounds for denial.

A. An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a business license must submit to the board
the statement prescribed by the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the Department
of Health and Human Services pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
signed by the applicant,

B. The board must include the statement required pursuant to subsection 1 in:

1. The application or any other jorms that must be submitted for the issuance or
renewal of the license; or
2. On a separate form prescribed by the board.
C. A license may not be issued or renewed by a board if the applicant:
1. Fails to submit the statement required pursuant to subsection I, or

Draft 5-17-2016 : 12




2. Indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that the applicant is
subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a
plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

D. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitied pursuant to subsection 1 that the
applicant is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the
order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the board must advise the applicant to
contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions
that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage,

5.04.262 Mandatory suspension of license.

A. If the board or administrator receives a copy of a court order issued pursuant to NRS
423.540 that provides for the suspension of all professional, occupational and recreational
licenses, certificates and permits issued to a person who is the holder of a license, certificate or
permit to practice a profession or occupation in that county, the board or administrator must
deem the license, certificate or permit issued to that person to be suspended at the end of the
30th day after the date on which the court order was issued unless the board or administrator
receives a letter issued to the holder of the license, certificate or permit by the district attorney
or other public agency pursuant to NRS 425.550 stating that the holder of the license, certificate
or permit has complied with the subpoena or warrant or has satisfied the arrearage pursuant to
NRS 425.560.

B. The board or administrator must reinstate a license, certificate or permit to practice a
profession or occupation in that county that has been suspended by a district court pursuani to
NRS 425.540 if the board or administrator receives a lelter issued by the district attorney or
other public agency pursuant to NRS 423.550 to the person whose license, certificate or permit
was suspended stating that the person whose license, certificate or permit was suspended has
complied with the subpoena or warrant or has satisfied the arrearage pursuant to NRS 425,560,

5.04.265 Social security number required for application,
An application for the issuance of a license, permit or certificate to practice a profession or
occupation pursuant 1o must include the social security number of the applicant.

5.04.25070 Additional license required authorizing pawnbrokers to accept motor vehicles
as pledged property.

A. If a pawnbroker accepts motor vehicles a pledged property or in any other manner allows
the use of a motor vehicle as collateral for a loan, an additional license is required as required by
NRS 244.348.

B. An additional license authorizing a pawnbroker to accept motor vehicles as pledged
property shal may be issued approved by the board using the approval procedure in chapter
5.12, after report from the administrator and an investigation by the sheriff and upon payment of
Jive ene hundred dollars. The obligation for the payment of fees for the additional license is a
state law requirement. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.26075 Reasonable classification.
The shertbFand administrator shall may classify businesses not specifically defined into the

Draft 5-17-2016 13




class which most reasonable corresponds to the operation of the applicant or business. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.27080 False alarm service charge.

The time and effort for thesheritfand-deputies emergency responders through dispatch to
respond to false alarms detracts from other duties. The administrator shesitf, at his discretion,
shall may set fees which are-presented to-the commisstonerste may be adopted by resolution of
the board by-the-commmssioners for false alarm charges, except that one through four false alarm
calls per year shall must be handled at no charge. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.290 Annual payment prorated fee--Penalty for failure to pay—Bisplay-eflicense.
A. All fees for business hcenses—e*eeﬁ%as-e%hemse—pfeﬁéed%ﬁs—ehaﬁea—shaﬂ must be

pald yearly in advance :

B 0‘ any pex son, firm, association or corporatlon falls to take out a hcense Jora busmess for
the current year as-provided-in-this-ehapter, prior to the fifth day of July, he-she;they-orit-shall
be that person is subject and liable to pay an additional penalty of ten percent over and above the
amount of any fees due preseribedinthis-ehapter for ¢ sueh license.+-and if any person, firm,
association or corporation fails to take out a license for the current year-as-provided-in-this
ehapter; prior to the fifteenth day of July, his, her, their or its license may shalf, upon written
notice by the admmzslrator &ﬁph%b%&%eﬂ%ag-aﬂeﬂey be revoked.

;s During the first year in which a person,
firm, assocmtlon or corp01at10n apphes for a license after October 1st and before J anuary 1st, or
first applyies after January 1st, and before April 1st, the first year fees will be prorated by the
administrator for the remaining quarters and shel must be paid in advance by the licensee.

C D. Except-as-otherwise-provided-inthis-ehapter If a person, firm, association, or
corporation first applies for a license after April 1st, and before July 1st, the first year fees will be
prorated by the administrator for the remaining quarter; however, the licensee must pay a full
year and one-quarter license fee shalb-be-paid in advance. The yearand-one—quarter license will
shal expire on July 1st of the following calendar year. Nothing in subseetions-A;B-or-C-of this
section permits seasonal licenses.

E. Fees for business licenses may not be refunded. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.300 Recovery of fees by civil suit.
It is the duty of the district attorney when requested to do so by the shertHfer administrator

Draft 5-17-2016 14




or the board, to institute civil suits on behalf of -
of Storey County, before a court of competent jurisdiction for the recovery of the amount of
license fee due from any person, firm, association or corporation who is liable to pay a license
tax under the provisions of this chapter, and who refuses, fails or neglects to do so.—and-a A civil
suit se-commenced-shallnotbe-deemed-awaiver-otfa does not waive the right of the county to
prosecute the party se neglecting, failing or refusing to pay a license fee or obtain a license as

provided-in-this-ehapter. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.320 Other required licenses and permits.

A person conducting or planning to conduct a business for which a federal or state, license
or permit is required, shall must produce a copy of the license or permit er-exhibit-the-same or
affirm to the sheriff-or administrator that the state or federal license has or will be issued and has
complied with applicable state or federal laws and regulation affecting the business before any
Storey County business license shall may be issued. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part),
2002)

5.04.330 Public utilities.
A. Telecommunications Service.

1. Every business entity providing telecommunications service within Storey County
must obtain and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable not later
than thirty calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shall-be is two percent of the
total gross receipts for the quarter of the fiscal year commencing after the effective date of the
ordinance codified in this section.

2. "Total gross receipts" means:

a. All revenue received by a public utility from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for all intrastate telecommunications services.

b. In the case of a public utility that provides "commercial mobile radio service" as
defined in Part 20 of Title 47 of the Code of Federal Regulations, revenue received from the first
fifteen dollars charged monthly for each line of access for each of its customers located within
the county.

3. "Public utility" means a person or local government that provides a
telecommunication service, it the person or local government holds a certificate of public
convenience and necessity issued by the public service commission of Nevada and derives
intrastate revenue from the provision of that service to retail customers.

4, A license fec not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shalb-be is delinquent and the licensee shall must pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent amount per month and interest of one
percent of the delinquent amount per month.

5. Each telecommunications provider which derives or intends to derive intrastate
revenue from customers located within the county shalt must, not later than sixty calendar days
after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the
company begins to provide intrastate telecommunications service to those customers, whichever

Draft 5-17-2016 15




occurs later, provide to the county.

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

6. Each company that is subject to this section shall, not later than thirty calendar days
after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of revenue
the telecommunications company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of all
infrastate telecommunication services to each of its customers located within the county.

B. Natural Gas Service

1. Every business entity providing natural gas service within Storey County must obtain
and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable not later than thirty
calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shall-be is one percent of the total gross
receipts commencing on the date of service after effective date of the ordinance codified in this
section.

2. "Total gross receipts” means revenue received from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for natural gas service. Revenue includes proceeds from the sale of
natural gas to retail customers located within Storey County but does not include any proceeds
from the sale of natural gas to a provider of electric energy which holds a certificate of public
convenience and necessity issued by the public service commission of Nevada.

3. A license fee not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shall-be is delinquent and the licensee shall muss pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent fee amount per month and interest on one
percent of the delinquent amount per month.

4. Each natural gas provider which derives or intends to derive revenue from customers
located within the county shall must, not later than sixty calendar days after the effective date of
the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the company begins to
provide natural gas service to those customers, whichever occurs later, provide to the county:

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

5. Each company that is subject to this section-shatt must, not later than thirty calendar
days after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of
revenue the natural gas company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of natural gas
services to all customers located within the county.

6. This section does not alter the terms of any existing franchise agreement between the
county and any company providing natural gas services within the boundaries of the county.

C. Electric Service,

1. Every business entity providing electric service within the boundaries of Storey
County must obtain and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable
not later than thirty calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shall-be is one
percent of the total gross receipts commencing on the date of service after effective date of the
ordinance codified in this section.

2. "Total gross receipts" means revenue received from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for electric services.

Draft 5-17-2016 16




3. A license fee not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shall be delinquent and the licensee shalt must pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent fee amount per month and interest of one
percent of the delinquent fee amount per month.

4. Each electric energy provider which derives or intends to derive revenue from
customers located within the county-shalt musz, not later than sixty calendar days after the
effective date of the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the company
begins to provide electric energy service to those customers whichever occurs later, proved to the
county:

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

5. Each company that is subject to this section-shall must, not later than thirty calendar
days after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of
revenue the electric energy company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of
electric energy services to all customers located within the county.

6. This section does not alter the terms of any existing franchise agreement between the
county and any company providing electric energy services within the boundaries of Storey
County. {Ord. 161A § 2, 2000)

5.04.340 Criminal Penalty
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. {(Ord. No. 13-249, § 1, 10-1-
2013; Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

SECTION II: Chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages is amended as follows:
Chapter 5.12
SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

Sections

5.12.005 License required.

5.12.006 Definitions.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liquor board.

5.12.010 Application form and accompanying data.
5.12.020 Application confidentiality.
5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.
5.12.035 Hearing on application.

5.12.040 Temporary license.

5.12.050 Hearing on application.

5.12.055 Grounds for denial,

5.12.060 Liquor license fees and regulations.
5.12.070 Off-sale license.

Draft 5-17-2016 17




5.12.080 Regular liquor license--Requirements.
5.12.085 Bar liquor license.

5.12.090 Supplemental bar liquor license.
5.12.100 Service bar liquor license,

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

5.12.1180 Restaurant liguor license.

5.12:040 120 Transferability of license.
5.12.050 130 Abandonment of license.
5.12.070-140 Hours of sale.

5.12.086 /50 Minors--Employment and service prohibitions.
5.12.160 Right of inspection.

512170 Criminal Penalty Misdemeaneor.

5.12.005 License required.

The board of county commissioners finds that in order to profect the health, safeiy and
welfare of the inhabitants of Storey County, it is necessary to license and control those persons
or businesses that are engaged in the making of, distribution or sale of alcoholic beverages.

An applicant for this privileged license does not have any right to a license. Any license issued
pursuant to the provisions of this title is a revocable privilege, and a holder does not acquire any
vested right in any license. The liquor board determines that alcoholic beverages may not be
dispensed or sold in any place where, in the judgment of the liquor board, the distribution or
sale creates or may create a public nuisance.

The board of county commissioners further determines that the liguor ordinances adopied
by the liquor board may be adopted by the board of county commissioners and be sef forth in the
Storey County code and utilize the code’s numbering system.

{Ord. 83 § 6, 1983)

5.12.006 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings:

A. Alcoholic beverages or liguor include alcohol, spirits, wine and beer, and every liquid or
solid containing alcohol and are intended for human consumption.

B. Bar means any bar, cocktail lounge, club or tavern, with or without live or recorded
entertainment, and with or without dancing.

B. The liguor board consists of the members of the board of county commissioners and the

sheriff.

Draft 5-17-2016 18




5.12.008 - Meetings of liqguor board.

A. The liquor board must meet as often as its business requires during or immediately
Jollowing a meeting of the board of supervisors.

B. Three or more members of the board constitute a quorum and each member has one vote.

C. A majority vote of the members present is necessary to authorize the issuance of any
license or to transact any other business.

D. In the event of a tie vote, the matter being voted upon is not approved.

E. All members of the board serve without additional compensation.

F. The board must elect a chairman from among its members.

G. The clerk treasurer serves as the clerk of the board.

5.12.010 Application form and a4ccompanying data.

In addition to holding a business license issued pursuant to chapter 5.04, aAll new
applicants for a liquor license; authorizing the sale of all alcoholic beverages, on or off the
premises, within the county, shall must provide a completed application, on forms approved by
the liguor board, to the administrator for the eeunty liquor license board with the following,
including but not limited to:

A, Proof of financial standing to warrant an expected satisfactory and profitable business
operation; .

B. A complete background as to the applicant’s criminal record. and

C. The applicant 's experience in the saloon or liquor vending business:,

D. A credit report from a national agency that is dated within sixty days of the application.

E. A complete list of licenses applied for and information for each license.

€ F. A one-thousand-deHar §7000 nonrefundable investigative fee, unless otherwise
specifieed in this chapter, with the annual fee as set forth in this Gehapter 5-04-of thistitle.

B F. An authorization for the sheriff to conduct an investigation into the applicant’s criminal
history and an authorization signed by the applicant for the submission of the applicant’s
fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigations for a National Background check. The sheriff
must Heensing authority shall fingerprint the applicant and shalt submit a complete set of the
applicant’s fingerprints, in accordance with the applicant’s authorization, to the Central
Repository for Nevada records of criminal history and to the Federal Bureau of Investigations as
authorized by NRS 239B.010(1)(a). (Ord. 83 § 1, 1983) (Ord. No. 08-215, § 1, 9-2-2008)

5.12.020 Application confidentiality.

Information submitted by the applicant showing the applicant’s personal information,
finances, net worth, earnings or revenues that is submitted as part of an application must be
treated as confidential except when:

A. Used in the ordinary course of the administration of this chapter. This includes liguor
board members and county staff that work in the application approval process.

B. Subject to a subpoena or other order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

C. Released to a duly authorized agent of a governmenial agency acting pursuant to the
agency’s authority and function.

Draft 5-17-2016 19




5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.

A. Application for a new regular liquor license and any additional licenses for the business
may be submitted and considered for first reading by the liguor license board following a thirty-
day investigative period. The administrator must receive the report from the sheriff and
comptroller before the item is put on the board’s agenda  The first reading may be delayed for
aAdditional investigative time me-betaken by the administrator licensingauthorities, if
required. Ifthe investigation is continued beyond thirty days, the adminisirator must notify the
applicant and the liguor board in writing.

B. New applicants may not operate until ail inspections are completed and licenses approved.

(Ord. 83 § 3, 1983)

5.12.040 Temporary license.

The administrator or the liqguor board may issue a temporary liquor license for the purpose
of continuing an existing business during the period in which a liquor license application has
been made, and prior to its approval or disapproval by the liguor license board. No additional
fee is required.

A temporary license may be approved where there is a request for a new license for the
addition of new partners or change of corporate officers or directors of licensee or where the
new applicant is a member of the immediate family of a licensee who cannot continue operating
the business due to death, incompetency, relirement or other similar disability of present licensee.
The immediate family of a licensee includes one or more of the following: surviving spouse, son,
daughter, mother or futher.

(Ord. 83 § 2E, 1983)

5.12.050 Hearing on application.

A. All licenses referred 1o in this chapter must be heard at two meetings of the liquor license
board before being acted upon. The administrator must include in the board’s agenda packet for
the hearing: a copy of the application with personal information redacted, a summary of the
investigation of the applicant’s criminal history and a summary of the comptroller’s review of
the applicant’s financial standing, and any documents not considered confidential submitted by
the applicant with the application. Confidential information may be reviewed by the liguor
board members at the administrator’s office or by delivery of a sealed packet that is reviewed by
the member and returned to the administrator in a manner that preserves confidentiality.

B. The liguor license board must consider the evidence presented at the hearing on the
application and may approve the license if the applicant meets the requirements of this chapter,
deny the application based on good cause, or continue the hearing.

C. The liguor license board is authorized to issue temporary licenses or conlinue temporary
licenses approved and previously given by the administrator, until final action on the license is
taken.

D. Before the liguor license board may approve a liquor license, the premises must be
inspected and approved by the state health department, the fire district, and the building official
or any other governmental agencies that may be required.

Draft 5-17-2016 20




E. If the liquor license board denies an application the applicant may not reapply until six
months from the date of the board’s denial.

5.12.055 Grounds for denial.

The grounds for denial of an application must be based on good cause, which includes but is
not limited to:

A. An application that is incomplete or that contains false, misleading or fraudulent
Statementis.

B. The applicant fails to satisfy any requirement imposed by this chapter or any local, state,
or federal law, regulation or policy pertaining to the license.

C. The applicant has been subject to administrative action imposing discipline or fines
relating to a liguor license in any jurisdiction, or denied a license or a work card due to
suitability issues.

D. The applicant has, within five years immediately preceding the date of the application,
been convicted, regardless of the jurisdiction of the conviction, of any of the following criminal
© offenses:

1. A felony or any crime which under the laws of Nevada would be a felony.

2. Any crime with thefl, fraud or intent to defraud is an element.

3. Sales or trafficking of a controlled substance.

4. Solicitation, prostitution or pandering.

E. Any cause reasonably related fo protecting public health, safety and welfare.

5.12.060 Liquor license fees and regulations.
Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution, the liquor board imposes the following
Jees:
A. These fees are in addition to any other business license fees in chapter 5.04
B. Fees:
1. An application investigative fee of $1000.00, if investigative costs exceed §1000. the
applicant is responsible to pay any additional costs.
2. The off-sale license fee is $§100.00 per year.
3. The on-sale regular license fee, which includes the right to sell beer, wine and liguor
off-sale, is $500.00 per year.
3. The additional service bar fee is $50.00 for an additional service bar.
4. A special events liquor license fee is $10.00.
(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999) |

5.12.070 Off-sale license.

The liquor board may approve an off-sale liguor license, provided.

A. An investigative fee is paid and the investigation shows the applicant meeis the
requirements of this chapter.

B. The applicant has a business license.

C. The licensee is responsible to make sure off-sale alcoholic beverages are not consumed
on the premises. (Ord. 83 § 2H, 1983)

5.12.080 Regular liquor license--Requirements.
A. Each business for the sale of alcoholic beverages is required to have a regular liguor

Draft 5-17-2016 21




license issued by the county. Any additional licenses may be approved or denied by the board at
the same time as the regular license. A regular liquor license is subject to the following
requirements.

1. The license is limited to one contiguous location in a building.

2. Additional full service bars in the same location require additional licenses.

3. No investigative fee or detailed application in addition to the fee and investigation
done for the regular license is required for an additional license.

B. A regular liguor license is required before applying for an additional licenses or the

application for a regular license and any other type of liguor license may be submitted at the
same time, except for temporary liquor licenses or off-sale liquor licenses. (Ord. 83 § 2A, 1983)

5.12.085 Bar liquor license.
A regular liqguor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a bar.

5.12.090 Supplemental bar liguor license.

A. Any regular liquor licensee ov applicant may apply for a supplemental liquor license for
an additional full bar to be operated in the same building. No investigation fee or detailed
application in addition to the fee and investigation done for the regular license is required.

B. Payment of an additional annual regular license fee is required. (Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.100 Service bar liquor license.

In addition to a regular liguor license, a service bar liquor license may be required and
issued under the following conditions:

A. The service must be for additional area, such as a dining area.

B. The service is limited to employees for delivery to customers in the area.

C. No sit-down or additional service for customers is allowed at a service bar.

D. The service bar must be in the same premises as the regular liquor license.

E. Payment of additional annual service bar license fee. (Ord. 83 § 2B, 1983)

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

It is unlawful for any person to permit any singing, dancing, floor show or entertainment to
be conducted or carried on in any establishment where alcoholic beverages are sold without first
obtaining a cabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liqguor license.
A regular liquor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a restaurant, supper club or dinner house. {Ord. 83 § 2G, 1983)

5.12.040120 Transferability of license,

Liquor licenses are not transferable. exeept-as-provided-in Asticle-H-of this-chapter: (Ord. 83
§ 5, 1983)

5.12.050 130 Abandonment of license.

A. A liquor licensee shattbe is deemed to have abandoned his liquor license if he fails to
have his establishment open for business for a continuous period of six months during any one

Draft 5-17-2016 22




fiscal year.

B. Abandonment shall will not occur until notice and hearing by the liquor /icense board,
and the licensee has the opportunity to be heard.

C. Ne A license shall will not be deemed abandoned if the closure was beyond the control of
the licensee.

D. Ne 4 new license shall may not be issued when the licensee abandons his liquor license
until a period of one year from the date the liquor board declares the license abandoned. (Ord. 83
§4,1983)

5.12.0670 140 Hours of sale.
Liguormay-beseld-by-a A licensee may sell alcoholic beverages twenty-four hours a day,
seven days a week. (Ord. 83 § 7, 1983)

5.12.080 /50 Minors--Employment and service prohibitions.

CHERTATIC e

A. Alcoholic beverages may not be served, dispensed or sold to persons under the age of
twenty-one years, and persons under the age of twenty-one years are not allowed to loiter in or
about a saloon unless accompanied by their parents, or unless they are in a food-service area.
B. A person who has attained the age of 16 years and has not attained the age of 18 years

may be employed in a retail food stove for the sale or disposition of liquor if:

1. He or she is supervised by a person who is 18 years of age or over and who is an
owner or an employee of the business that sells or disposes of the liquor.

2. The person 18 years of age or over who is supervising the person under 18 is actually
present at the time that the person under 18 sells or disposes of the liquor.

3. The liguor is in a container or receptacle which is corked or sealed.. (Ord. 83 § 8,
1983)

5.12.160 Right of inspection.

All officials involved in the license process, the administrator, and the sheriff have access to
every part and portion of the establishment for which a license is issued under the provisions of
this chapter at any time when the establishment is open for the transaction of business and at all
other reasonable times.

Draft 5-17-2016 23




Draft 5-17-2016 24




5.12.170 Criminal Penalty-Misdemeanor.
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § 1, 10-1-
2013; Ord. 83 § 11, 1983)

SECTION III: Chapter 8.28 Special Events is amended as follows:

8.28.025 Alcobolic beverages.
A. The administrator eounty sheriff may permit the sale of aicohohc beverages in public

areas in conjunctmn with a special event permlt d-by
: . An apphcatlon for the

sale of alcoholic beverages in public areas must be filed with an apphcahon for a spec:1a1 event
permit on a form approved by the liquor license board and-

B. A special events liquor license may be issued by the license department subJ ect to the
following conditions:

1. The applicant must hold a rRegular Sterey-County-liquor license or have wrilten
permission from an existing regular liquor license holder required,

2. Tehe license may be issued for the purpose of a portable bar for customers and/or
employee service for holidays and special occasions only, within the same building or in another
location;

3. Valid for a period of fve-{5} days only;

4. Any license fee applicable to the sale of alcoholic beverages as sct forth in cChapter
5.12 H0-of this-Cede must be paid in addition to any special event permit fees.

S. The licensee mMust adhere to the State of Nevada laws and Storey County Codes
pertaining to the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages

C. An application for the sale of alcoholic beverages in public areas must provide the
following information:

1. Whether alcoholic beverages will be sold or dispensed free of charge;

2. Is Whether entry to the event restricted to invited guests or open to the public;

Draft 5-17-2016 25




3. What types of alcoholic beverages will be sold or consumed;

4., What containers will be used; it is unlawful to use glass or metal containers;

5. Who will be the on-site supervisor of alcoholic beverage service;

6. Such other information as-the administrator ecurtyshertt deems appropriate. (Ord.
No. 09-224, § 1, 3-16-2010)

Proposed on , 2016.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2016.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent Commuissioners
Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

| Vanessa Stephens
| Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on ,2016.

Draft 5-17-2016 2%




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/17/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance Ne. 16-272, an ordinance extending
interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by
extending through August 31, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will be
in effect until the comprehensive vpdate to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or August
31, 2016, whichever comes first.

2. Recommended motion: In conformance with the applicable federal, state, and county regulations, and
the recommendation for approval by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve Ordinance
Number 16-272 creating interim development regulations (i.e., moratorium on subdivisions and
planned unit developments) affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by creating Title
16A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by
limiting master plan amendments for an approvals of planned unit developments during the
master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4, Staff summary: See Enclosure A: staff summary.

5. Supporting materials: See Enclosure B: Draft Ordinance No. 16-272.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__@’___Department Head Department Name:

@Q_/ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No. [q




Enclosure A: Staff Summary for Request for Passage of Ordinance No., 16-272

It is the purpose of this ordinance to extend temporary residential development regulations and standards,
which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit developments (PUDs), and master plan
amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments until the comprehensive update to the existing
Storey County Master Plan is completed and adopted, or August 31, 2016, whichever comes first. The
moratorium on such residential development will ensure that the public interest in protecting the planning
process for the master plan furthers and balances with the private hardships that may result from the
imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform, orderly, and managed process by which development may
proceed concurrently with the master plan in a manner that complements the nature and extent of the
available resources, facilities and services; and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare
by contributing to the physical and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and
services, and protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character. The following types of
applications may be approved while the interim development guidelines are in effect: (a) approvals of
variances; (b) issuance of a building permit on an existing parcel; (c) approval of parcel maps or divisions
into large parcels; and (d) approval of a special use permit other than for a planned unit development.

Enclosure B: Draft Ordinance No. 16-272
Ordinance No. 15270 16-272
Summary

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16 A establishing minimum
interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and
title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process.

Title

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements
for subdivision map approvals and title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and
approvals of planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 17 is amended to create title 17A as follows:

17A.02.020 Purpose.

It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development
in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an
orderly fashion,

The board finds and declares that Storey County would be affected by the premature




development of residential property during the master plan process.

The board further finds that a premature amendment to the master plan for a large
residential development or the subdivision of property for residential use during the revision of the
master plan may jeopardize the ability of the Storey County to ensure orderly development and
adequate provision of services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before
the master plan is revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s
ability to economically provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps and master plan amendments are
necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

It is the purpose of this ordinance to enact femporary development regulations and
standards, which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit development (PUDs) and
master plan amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments, that expire on June
30,2016 August 31, 2016, or on the adoption of the master plan whichever occurs first, to ensure
that the public interest in protecting the planning process for the master plan furthers and balances
with the private hardships that may result from the imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform,
orderly, and managed process by which development{ may proceed concurrently with the master
plan in a manner that complements the nature and extent of the available resources, facilities and
services; and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare by contributing to the
physical and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and services, and
protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character.

The following types of applications may be approved while the interim development
guidelines are in effect:

A. Approvals of variances.

B. Issuance of a building permit on an existing parcel.

C. Approval of parcel maps or divisions into large parcels.

D. Approval of a special use permit other than one for a planned unit development.

17A.02.030 Application,

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July4:-2016
August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs
first, these interim guidelines apply to all of Storey County except where real property is subject to
an existing development agreement (NRS 278.0201).

17A.03.110 Amendments.

The board may amend these regulations before Jaby-1,-2016 August 31, 2016, or the
adoption of the master plan if it determines that one or more of the provisions is substantially
detrimental to the welfare of the Story County during the interim period and that the amendment
will not jeopardize the purpose of these regulations.

SECTION II: Title 16 is amended to create title 16A as follows:

Title 16A




Subdivision interim development regulations

16A.04.010 Purpose.

It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development
in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an
orderly fashion.

The board finds that a premature division of property during the revision of the master plan
may jeopardize the county’s ability to ensure orderly development and adequate provision of
services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before the master plan is
revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s ability to economically
provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps, and controls on other development
processes, are necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

16A.16.020 Approval process-planning commission.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July-15
2616 August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever
occurs first, the planning commission may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision or PUD
that involves any of the following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in areas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan.

C. The project results in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and
intersections.

The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the planning commission must
be accompanied by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will
result from the proposed subdivision.

16A.16.030 Board action.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until Julyt;
2016 August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever
occurs first, the board may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision that involves any of the
following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in arcas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan.

C. The project results in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and
intersections.

The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the board must be accompanied
by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will result from the
proposed subdivision.




Proposed on , 2016.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2016.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2016.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
i
Meeting date: §-| T—[ (- Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda {x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

- 3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
, District Attorney

x__ Department 3¢ Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[
[] Denied [

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. cQ O




Storey County Community Bevelopment

MBuginess Picenging
P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 88440 « (775) 84?_.-‘(\.)96\‘16 « Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org
To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office May 9, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

CRENEOMET AR

.

-

LUNA INSTRUMENT CO., LTD ~ Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (machine installation)

MMC CONTRACTORS WEST - Contractor / 4591 Longley Lane ~ Reno (plumbing contractor)
ACTION DIRECT dba Redpoint Contracting — Contractor / 39506 N. Daisy Mtn ~ Phoenix (gen. cont.)
SYSTEMS AUTOMATED CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 12751 Foothill ~ Sylmar, CA (elect cont)
SID TOOL CO., INC dba MSC Industrial Supply — Contractor / 2300 E. Newlands ~ Fernley (whse dist)
PANASONIC ENVIRONMENTAL SYS & ENG — Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (utility installation)
DIVERSIFIED CONSULTING SVCS. — Professional / 6490 S. McCarran ~ Reno (engineering)

BEST PLUMBING & HEATING, LL.C — Contractor / 1240 Greg St. ~ Sparks (plumbing contractor)
MASTEC NETWORK SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 3443 Airport Rd ~ Sacramento (wireless contractor)
MOLDMAN SYSTEMS, LLC — Contractor / 4649 Aircenter Circle ~ Reno (machinery assembly)
AFNOVAK HOLDINGS, LLC dba Rounds Bakery — General / 294 East Moana ~ Reno (whisle bakery)
TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo — General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry) vC

Inspection Required

ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office

Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office
Dean Haymore, Comm. Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office




